Town Council Meeting

Council Packet

August 1, 2023

‘1.11' 4

ollough=

 sa@eUNciimemiber: é@ﬁ g
Councilme avidson
Councilmember Michelle Janes

Town Manager Richard Marsh




Printed: 7/27/2023 2:48:58 PM

TOWN OF WELLTON
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
28634 OAKLAND AVENUE, WELLTON, ARIZONA
TUESDAY, AUGUST 1, 2023
6:00PM

6:00 PM Convene Regular Session of the Common Council of the Town of Wellton

Call to Order
A reminder to please turn your cell phones off or place them on vibrate. If you must
answer your cell phone or text, please step outside. Thank you.
Pledge of Allegiance
Invocation
Roll Call
Introduction of Guests
Final Call for submission of Speaker Request Forms
Call to the Public
This is a business meeting of the Wellton Town Council. The Town values and welcomes
public input. Please address the Council and not individual Council Members. Do not
address staff or members of the audience. The Open Meeting Law limits Council action
on items brought up in Call to the Public. The Council may direct staff to study the matter
and reschedule it for further consideration later. items on the agenda will not be heard
or discussed in Call to the Public. Individuals are limited to three (3) minutes.
Presentations

A. Presentation of Employee of the Month: Lt. Juan Salcido

B. Code Enforcement Update by Richard Marsh, Town Manager

Discussion and Action Items

Approval of Minutes:
a. For the Meeting of July 11, 2023 {Special Meeting).

Discussion and possible action on whether to revisit Ordinance No. 147 “Town of Wellton
Amendments to the 2018 International Property Maintenance Code”.

Recess Regular Session of the Common Council and open Public Hearing as Board of
Adjustment

Public Hearing for:

a. Variance Case #V-24-002: Scott and Twanette Stauth request a variance of
Planning & Zoning Code Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D {1): Minimum Interior Yard
Setback: 6 on his lot located at 11771 Castle Dome Street {Parcel #: 709-59-312).
The request is for a 5-foot variance of the interior yard setback for construction of



Agenda Page 2 August 1, 2023

2 storage sheds and a 2-foot variance of the rear yard setback for one of the
storage sheds.

b. Variance Case #V-24-003: Jose A Montoya requests a variance of Planning &
Zoning Code Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D (1): Minimum Interior Yard Setback: 6
feet on his lot located at 28412 Telegraph Avenue (Parcel #: 709-58-332). The
request is for a 6-foot variance of the interior yard setback for construction of a

carport.
. Close Public Hearing.
4. Discussion and possible action to approve Variance Case #V-24-001: Quick Fix Pools and

Spas LLC, agent for Jim and Tamra Wilcox, requests a variance of Planning & Zoning Code
Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D (1): Minimum Interior Yard Setback: 6 feet on their lot
located at 28731 Canal Avenue (Parcel #: 709-52-139) for the installation of a pool.

5. Discussion and possible action to approve the Professional Services Agreement between
Dennis Osuch, Osuch Consulting PLLC and the Town of Wellton for consulting services as
Finance Director.

. Future Agenda ltems
Town Manager Report
The Town Manager’s report is an informational item to inform the Town Council about
current developments with respect to Town business. No action will be taken on any
information presented.

L Council’s Report
The next scheduled Regular Council Meeting will be Tuesday, September 5, 2023, at
6:00PM.

" Executive Session

An Executive Session may be called during the public meeting on any item on this agenda
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) for the purpose of receiving legal advice.
. Adjournment

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Secuon 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 the Town of Wellton does not discriminate based on
disability in the admission of or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs, activities, or services. For information regarding rights and provisions of the
ADA or Section 504, or to request reasonable accommedations for participation in Town programs, activities, or services contact: ADA/Section 504 Coordinator, Town
of Wellton, 28634 Dakland Avenue, Wellton, Arizona 85356; (928) 785-3348 or TTY (928) 785-3349






MINUTES

Town Council Special Meeting

6:00PM - Tuesday, July 11, 2023
Wellton, Town Hall Council Chambers
28634 Oakland Avenue, Wellton, Arizona 85356

Mayor Scott Blitz called the special meeting to order at 6:00PM on Tuesday, July 11, 2023.
Mayor Blitz led the Pledge of Allegiance and gave the invocation. Roll call was taken.

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Scott Blitz, Councilmembers Barbara Biggs (via Zoom), Sylvia
Davidson, and Michelle Jones,

Councilmembers Absent: Vice Mayor Cecilia McCollough.

Staff Present: Town Manager Richard Marsh, Deputy Town Clerk Sandra Jones, Public Works
Director Joe Grant, Police Chief David Rodriguez, Grants Director Yolanda Galindo,
Receptionist/Permit Clerk Ashley Rivera, Utility/Accounts Payable Clerk Mary Miranda, Code
Enforcement Office Belen Medina, and Attorney John Austin Gaylord (via Zoom).

Guests Present: Audrey Zingler, Lynda Lake, Jim Sampson, Lila Wilson, Thomas Laybourne,
Catherine Blitz, Marisol Hernandez, Martin Hernandez, Bob Leeper, Peggy Leeper, Larry Kiliman,
Bob Newquist, Jane Newquist, Jeff Hubert, Brayden Hubert, Evie Pistone, Lou Lander, Brenda
Lander, Ralph Davidson, Sue Sanders, Michaela Treanor, and Luis Luna.

Call to the Public
None submitted.

Presentations and Introductions

® Presentation of SeeClickFix: Mary Miranda, Ashley Rivera, and Sandra Jones.

e Presentation of Employee of the Month: Ashley Baughn

e Introduction of Code Enforcement Officer: Belen Medina and Code Enforcement Update by
Richard Marsh, Town Manager

® Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to: Jeff Hubert — Gotta Paint

e Introduction of Tour de Fields by Joe Grant, Public Works Director

Discussion and Action Items

1. Approval of Minutes:

a. Forthe Meeting of June 7, 2023 {Regular Meeting).

b. For the Meeting of June 7, 2023 (Community Facilities District (CFD) Meeting).
Motion made by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Davidson, to approve
Minutes for the June 7, 2023 (Regular Meeting) and June 7, 2023 (CFD Meeting) as amended.

. Davidson: Yay
| Jones: Yay




Minutes Page 2 July 11, 2023

Blitz: Yay
McCollough: Absent
Biggs: Yay

Motion carried.

2. Discussion regarding CDBG Program by Yolanda Galindo, Grants Director.
Presentation by Grants Director Yolanda Galindo.

. Recess Regular Session of the Common Council and open Public Hearing as Board of
Adjustment

Motion made by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Davidson, to recess Regular
Session of the Common Council and open Public Hearing as Board of Adjustment at 7:00PM.

Davidson: Yay
Jones: Yay
Blitz: Yay
McCollough: Absent
Biggs: Yay

Motion carried.

3. Public Hearing for:
a. Variance Case #V-23-003: Quick Fix Pools and Spas LLC, agent for Jim and Tamra
Wilcox, requests a variance of Planning & Zoning Code Chapter 8, Section 8-
5.4.1-D (1): Minimum Interior Yard Setback: 6 feet on their lot located at 28731
Canal Avenue (Parcel #: 709-52-139) for the installation of a pool.

Discussion regarding the Variance Request.

. Close Public Hearing.

Motion made by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Davidson, to close Public
Hearing at 7:01PM.

Davidson: Yay

Jones: Yay
Blitz: Yay
McColiough: Absent
Biggs: Yay

Motion carried,

. Recess the Wellton Town Council Special Session and convene as the Board of Directors

of the Links at Coyote Wash Community Facilities Districts #2003-1 & #2005-1. :
Motion made by Councilmember Davidson, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to recess the
Wellton Town Council Special Session and convene as the Board of Directors of the Links at
Coyote Wash Community Facilities Districts #2003-1 & #2005-1 at 7:02PM.

Davidson: Yay




Minutes Page 3 July 11, 2023

Jones: Yay
Blitz: Yay
McCollough: Absent
Biggs: Yay

! Motion carried.

4., The Links at Coyote Wash Community Facilities District #2003-1:;

a. Public Hearing, discussion, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 57, a
resolution of the Board of the Links at Coyote Wash Community Facilities District
#2003-1, Yuma County, Arizona, levying upon the assessed valuation of the
property within the District subject to ad valorem taxation a certain sum upon
each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of valuation sufficient to raise the amounts
estimated to be required in the Annual Budget; all for Fiscal Year beginning July
1, 2023 and ending on June 30, 2024.

Motion made by Councilmember Davidson, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to adopt
Resolution No. 57, a resolution of the Board of the Links at Coyote Wash Community Facilities
District #2003-1, Yuma County, Arizona, levying upon the assessed valuation of the property
within the District subject to ad valorem taxation a certain sum upon each one hundred dollars
($100.00) of valuation sufficient to raise the amounts estimated to be required in the Annual
Budget; all for Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending on June 30, 2024.

Davidson: Yay

Jones: Yay
Blitz: Yay
McCollough: Absent
Biggs: Yay

Motion carried.

5. The Links at Coyote Wash Community Facilities District #2005-1:

a. Public Hearing, discussion, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 58, a
resolution of the Board of the Links at Coyote Wash Community Facilities District
#2005-1, Yuma County, Arizona, levying upon the assessed valuation of the
property within the District subject to ad valorem taxation a certain sum upon
each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of valuation sufficient to raise the amounts
estimated to be required in the Annual Budget; all for Fiscal Year beginning July
1, 2023 and ending on June 30, 2024.

Motion made by Councilmember Davidson, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to adopt
Resolution No. 58, a resolution of the Board of the Links at Coyote Wash Community Facilities
District #2005-1, Yuma County, Arizona, levying upon the assessed valuation of the property
within the District subject to ad valorem taxation a certain sum upon each one hundred dollars
($100.00) of valuation sufficient to raise the amounts estimated to be required in the Annual
Budget; all for Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending on June 30, 2024.

Davidson: Yay




Minutes Page 4 July 11, 2023

Jones: Yay
Blitz: Yay
McCollough: Absent

i Biggs: Yay

Mo_t?on carried.

. Adjourn as the Board of Directors for The Links at Coyote Wash Community Facilities
District #2003-1 and #2005-1 and reconvene the Wellton Town Council in Special
Session.

Motion made by Councilmember jones, seconded by Councilmember Davidson, to adjourn as
the Board of Directors for The Links at Coyote Wash Community Facilities District #2003-1 and
#2005-1 and reconvene the Wellton Town Council in Special Session at 7:06PM.

Davidson: Yay

Jones: Yay
Blitz: Yay
McCollough: Absent
Biggs: Yay

Motion carried.

6. Discussion and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 710 a Resolution of the Town
Council of the Town of Wellton, Arizona, adopting the Annual Public Safety Personnel
Retirement System {(PSPRS) Funding Policy for the Fiscal Year 2024.

Motion made by Councilmember Davidson, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to adopt
Resolution No. 710 a Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Wellton, Arizona, adopting
the Annual Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) Funding Policy for the Fiscal Year
2024,

Davidson: Yay

Jones: Yay
Blitz: Yay
McCollough: Absent
Biggs: Yay

Motion carried.

7. Discussion and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 711 a Resolution of the Town
Council of the Town of Wellton, Arizona, designating Richard Marsh as the Chief Fiscal
Officer for officially submitting the Town’s Fiscal Year 2024 Annual Expenditure
Limitation Report. o

Motion made by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Davidson, to adopt
Resolution No. 711 a Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Wellton, Arizona, designating
Richard Marsh as the Chief Fiscal Officer for officially submitting the Town’s Fiscal Year 2024
Annual Expenditure Limitation Report.

Davidson: Yay




Minutes Page 5 July 11, 2023

| Jones: Yay
| Blitz: Yay
' McCollough: Absent
' Biggs: Yay

' Motion carried.

8. Discussion regarding a possible meeting date to revisit the International Property
Maintenance Code.

The International Property Maintenance Code {IPMC) is to be added as a discussion and action

item to the Tuesday, August 1, 2023 Regular Meeting Agenda.

Future Agenda Items
¢ The International Property Maintenance Code (IPMC) will be revisited on the August 1,
2023 meeting agenda.
e Variance requests regarding setbacks.

Town Manager’s Report

o Clarifier Update — Staff have the parts for the second clarifier at the Water Plant. The
actual construction had been bid at $1.2 million dollars. There is currently only
$147,000 remaining in the ARPA funds for the construction. As reported in May, ADEQ
was consulted, and funds aren’t available through ADEQ for this project at this time.
They are willing to revisit if funding becomes available. ADEQ will still assist us in
implementing the future findings of the consultant they have hired to deal with other
issues at the plant. It appears a projected budget was not established for complete
clarifier project build out when the project was in the planning phase during 2021, as
mentioned in the April 4, 2023 Town Manager’s Update. The Town has issued a second
round of Request for Bids for this project. There has been substantially more interest in
this round. There were 8 companies in attendance at the pre-bid meeting, as opposed
to the 2 bids received during the first round. The bid opening will be this week. Staff
are in pursuit of additional grant opportunities and funding sources for this project, as
funding is not available in our budget. Updates will be provided as available.

¢ A heartfelt THANK YOU to our Staff (Brian Claar, Mary Miranda, Joe Grant, Ashley
Rivera, Sandra Jones, Adolfo Ponce, Steve Juarez, Lizeth Agundez, Angel Esparza, and
Juan Villfranca), Wellton Police Department, Wellton Fire Department, Tri-Valley
Ambulance, Fireworks Production of Arizona, booth participants, and the attendees that
helped make the 4" of July Celebration a success for 2023.

e The Police and Fire Cook-Out Celebration will be Friday, August 25, 2023 from 5:00PM —
7:00PM at Butterfield Park.

e | would like to express a Thank You to Staff and our CPAs for their hard work and
dedication to ensure a Clean Audit for the Town of Wellton.

¢ Court Enhancement Fee



Minutes Page 6 July 11, 2023

Our Finance Director presented his findings based on the average operating loss over the
last 24 years (utilizing the last 9 years’ worth of data) the total estimated operating loss
since 1999, then added back the court funds under the ordinance to show there would
have been a net operating loss to the Town of Wellton (not utilizing the funds under the
ordinance) of $500k + and the funds collected under the ordinance from the Court’s
calculation for that same time period is $200k +.
If the $200k was not used, that would mean that over the 24-year period, other general
fund resources would have been required to recover the deficit.
Findings as presented by our Finance Director (see attached worksheet):
o Scheduled out the Last 6 years (including revenues and expenditures for FY23
through today).
o Blue highlighted cells are expenses that are clearly direct court costs for
operations {salaries, wages, and related expenses; audits, office expenses and
insurance}.
o Orange highlighted cells are expenses that are likely not direct court operations
costs (| wasn’t sure about the defense attorney and prosecutor as those aren’t
operational costs)
o Total direct operating costs of the court over six years were $300,170.29.
o Total court revenue over that same period is $226,126.40, so clearly over this 6-
year period, the direct operating expenses are significantly more than revenues
generated.
Assumptions as presented by our Finance Director:
"The Town has (as evidenced in its audited financial statements, the flow assumption of
funds is to use restricted resources first}. If court fines collected under the ordinance are
restricted for court operations and the court fines are unrestricted, it would be
reasonable to assume the court fines collected under the ordinance would be expended
first. Over the 6-year period that is presented, court operating expenses far exceeded
total court revenues. In 2023 and 2022 that trend flattened out where there is a recovery
of costs, but it is not significant. In years prior to 2022, there was a significant excess
expenditure over revenues, which would indicate that it was necessary to utilize the funds
under the ordinance to simply operate the court. For this 6-year period, the excess court
operating expenses over revenues totaled $74,004.89 (which includes net revenues in
2023 and 2022 of $11,026.79). My guess and | can go back further, is that you will find a
similar trend in years prior to 2018 where you will see net expenses over revenues. | did
go back a few more years and found the following:

2017 — Net expenses over revenues $16,278.68

2016 — Net expenses over revenues $17,896.73

2015 — Net expenses over revenues $12,848.40
An analysis of the average net operating loss and average annual court fees collected
under the ordinance.
An estimate of the excess expenditures over revenues from 1999-2023 incurred in the
General Fund based on the average operating loss over the last 9 years without the use



Minutes Page 7 July 11, 2023

of the Court Fees collected under the ordinance. This represents the use of other General
Fund revenues in excess of Town Court Fees collected."
If you would like to discuss this issue further, please let me know.
Facebook Posts insights:
o Traffic has dramatically increased at the Town of Wellton’s Facebook page. We
have had as many as 6,000 hits on an individual post.
o Qur audience is 71.20% women/28.80% men; Women ages 25-34 is our highest
demographic, with men ages 35-44.
o Followers:
= December 2022 - 188
® February 2023 - 424
= March 2023 - 453
* May 2023 - 488
* June 2023 -520
®=  Current-558
Complaint re: Castle Dome Street setback viclation. The owners have applied for a
variance for the sheds. The Public Hearing will be on the August 1, 2023 Regular
Meeting agenda.

Council’s Report

Vice Mayor McCollough as per email received July 9, 2023, she attended:

o June 22™ - Parker, Arizona. WACOG Executive Board meeting. | serve as vice
chair. Updates on Budget and activities for area agency on aging, head start,
transportation plan. Rental assistance and energy assistance.

o June. 27 - San Luis, Arizona. General Services Administration Grand Opening
ceremony for San Luis Port of Entry 1. Governor Hobbs, Senator Kelly, GSA
representatives, Immigration and Custom Enforcement Representatives. Dept.
Of Homeland Security reps. Customs and Border Patrol and officials from Mexican
and US consulate. Yuma county leadership and staff. Elected leaders and staff
from Cities of San Luis, Somerton, Yuma. | was there representing the Town of
Wellton.

= Announcement of the studies being planned for the year 2024-25.

o June 29% - Zoom - YMPO Executive Board meeting. Serve as Vice-Chair.
Discussion on SMART transportation funds available for communities of 10,000 or
less in population. Wellton is encouraged to apply. Information is available on
the ADOT website.

= Announcement of the transportation studies for the year 2024-25.
= Approval of intergovernmental IGA with Yuma County for services.

Executive Session

None requested.



Minutes Page 8 July 11, 2023

Adjournment

Motion made by Councilmember Davidson, seconded by Councilmember Jones to adjourn.

Davidson: Yay

Jones: Yay
Blitz: Yay
McCollough: Absent
Biggs: Yay

Motion carried.

Meeting adjourned at 7:15PM.

Scott Blitz, Mayor

ATTEST:

Richard Marsh, Town Manager

CERTIFICATION:
| hereby certify that the forgoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the special meeting held
July 11, 2023, and the meeting was duly called and posted and that a quorum was present.

Richard Marsh, Town Manager






TOWN OF WELLTON
ORDINANCE NO. 147

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COMMON COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
WELLTON, ARIZONA, DECLARING AS A PUBLIC RECORD THAT CERTAIN
DOCUMENT ON FILE WITH THE TOWN CLERK ENTITLED THE “TOWN OF WELLTON
AMENDMENTS TO THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE"
BY REFERENCE; AND AMENDING THE WELLTON TOWN CODE BY AMENDING
CHAPTER 8, BUILDING, PLANNING, ZONING CODE, BY ADDING ARTICLE 8-8,
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR
VIOLATIONS.

WHEREAS, that certain document entitled the “Town of Wellton Amendments to the 2018
International Property Maintenance Code,” of which at least three paper copies or one paper copy
and one electronic copy are on file in the Office of the Town Clerk and open for public inspection
during normal business hours, is hereby declared to be a public record and said copies are ordered
to remain on file with the Town Clerk; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Wellton, Arizona {the “Town Councii”)
deem it necessary, to protect public health and safety, to update certain rules and regulations
for maintaining property within the Town of Wellton; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the proposed rules and regulations will further
protect public health and safety by updating the Town Code to incorporate changes provided for
in the 2018 International Property Maintenance Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of
Wellton, Arizona, as follows:

Section 1. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated as if fully set forth
herein.

Section 2. That certain document entitled the “Town of Wellton Amendments to the
2018 International Property Maintenance Code,” of which at least three paper copies or one paper
copy and one electronic copy are on file in the Office of the Town Clerk and open for public
inspection during normal business hours, is hereby referred to, adopted, and made a part hereof
as if fully set out in this Ordinance.

Section 3. Wellton Town Code, Chapter 8, Building, Planning, Zoning Code, is hereby
amended by adding a new Article 8-8, Property Maintenance Code, as set forth in that certain
document entitled “December 2022 Town of Wellton Amendments to the 2018 International
Property Maintenance Code.”

4650520.2



Section 4. The Town Code is hereby amended by amending Chapter 8, Building,
Planning, Zoning Code, Article 8-4, Building Official, as follows (additions shown in ALL CAPS):

The Buitding official and administrative authority as such may be referenced in any
section of this chapter for all matters pertaining to any building, PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE, plumbing, efectrical or any other inspections shall be vested in the
office of the clerk, provided that the council may authorize such deputies as needed
to perform any inspection work or other functions that may be required by this
chapter.

Section S. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance or any part of the “Town of Weliton Amendments to the 2018 International Property
Maintenance Code” adopted herein by reference are hereby repealed.

Section 6. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this
Ordinance or of the “Town of Wellton Amendments to the 2018 International Property
Maintenance Code” adopted herein by reference is for any reason to be held invalid or
unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.

Section 7. In accordance with Chapter 8, Building, Planning, Zoning Code, Article 8-8,
Property Maintenance Code, violations of this Ordinance are subject to the following penalties:

[A] 106.3 Prosecution of violation. Any person failing to comply with a notice of
violation or order served in accordance with Section 107 shall be deemed guilty of
a misdemeanor or civil infraction as determined by the local municipality, and the
violation shall be deemed a strict liability offense. If the notice of violation is not
complied with, the code official shall institute the appropriate proceeding at law
or in equity to restrain, correct or abate such violation, or to require the removal
or termination of the unlawful occupancy of the structure in violation of the
provisions of this code or of the order or direction made pursuant thereto. Any
action taken by the authority having jurisdiction on such premises shall be charged
against the real estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon
such real estate.

[A] 106.4 Violation penalties. Any person who shall violate a provision of this
code, or fail to comply therewith, or with any of the requirements thereof, shall
be prosecuted within the limits provided by state or local faws. Each day that a
violation continues after due notice has been served shall be deemed a separate
offense.

(Signatures on the following page)

4650520.2



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Common Council of the Town of Wellton,

Arizona, this 7' day of February 2023.

Sedte Blitz, Mayor

ATTEST,

ALz

Richard Marsh, Town Manager/Town Clerk

APP D AS TO FORM:

|

sen"feid PLC, Town Attorney
By: Andrew J. McGuire

4650520.2



TOWN OF WELLTON AMENDMENTS TO THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY

MAINTENANCE CODE

SECTION 1. Wellton Town Code, Chapter 8 (Building, Planning, Zoning Code), is hereby
amended by adding Article 8-8 (Property Maintenance Code), to read as follows:

4650464.2

Article 8-8
Section 8-8.1
Section 8-8.2

Section 8-8.3

Section 8-8.1

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE

Adoption of International Property Maintenance Code
Amendments to the International Property Maintenance Code

Must Conform to Zoning Ordinance

Adoption of International Property Maintenance Code

That certain document designated and marked as the 2018 International Property
Maintenance Code, as published by the International Code Council, three paper copies or
one paper copy and one electronic copy of which are on file in the office of the town clerk,
is hereby adopted by reference as the “Property Maintenance Code of the Town of
Wellton” as if fully set forth herein, and may be cited as such, or as the “Property

Maintenance Code.”

Section 8-8.2

Amendments to the International Property Maintenance Code

The following Sections of the 2018 International Property Maintenance Code, as adopted
by Section 8-8.1, are hereby amended as follows:

Section [A] 101.1, Title, is amended to read as follows:

[A] 101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Property Maintenance
Code of the Town of Wellton, hereinafter referred to as “this code.”

Section [A] 102.3, Application of other codes, is amended to read as follows:

[A] 102.3 Application of other codes. Repairs, additions, or alterations to a
structure, or changes of occupancy, shall be done in accordance with the procedures
and provisions of the Uniform Building Code of the Town of Wellton, the Fire
Prevention Code of the Town of Wellton, the Uniform Plumbing Code of the Town
of Wellton, and the Uniform Electrical Code of the Town of Wellton. Nothing in
this code shall be construed to cancel, modify, or set aside any provision of the
Town of Wellton Planning and Zoning Code.



4650464 2

References in this code to the International Building Code mean the Uniform
Building Code of the Town of Wellton, or the Town’s most recently adopted
building code.

References in this code to the International Fire Code mean the Fire Prevention
Code of the Town of Wellton, or the Town’s most recently adopted fire code.

References in this code to the International Plumbing Code mean the Uniform
Plumbing Code of the Town of Wellton, or the Town’s most recently adopted
plumbing code.

References in this code to the NFPA 70 mean the Uniform Electrical Code of the
Town of Wellton, or the Town’s most recently adopted electrical code.

Other references in this code to Infernational Codes not adopted by the Town mean
the Town’s most recently adopted equivalents, if applicable.

Section [A] 103.1, General, is amended to read as follows:

[A] 103.1 General. The department of property maintenance inspection is hereby
created and the Town of Wellton Building Official, as defined in Wellton Town
Code Article 8-4, shall be known as the code official.

Section [A] 103.2, Appointment, is amended to read as follows:

[A] 103.2 Appointment. The code official shall be appointed by the common
council of the Town of Wellton, Arizona.

Section [A] 103.5, Fees, is amended to read as follows:

[A] 103.5 Fees. The fees for activities and services performed by the department in
carrying out its responsibilities under this code shall be as indicated in the fee
schedule adopted by Town Council from time to time.

Section 201.3, Terms defined in other codes, is amended to read as follows:

201.3 Terms defined in other codes. Where terms are not defined in this code and
are defined in the Uniform Building Code of the Town of Wellton, the Fire
Prevention Code of the Town of Wellton, the Uniform Plumbing Code of the Town
of Wellton, the Uniform Electrical Code of the Town of Wellton, or the Town of
Wellton Planning and Zoning Code, such terms shall have the meanings ascribed
to them as stated in those codes.

Section 302.8, Motor vehicles, is amended to read as follows:



4650464 2

302.8 Motor vehicles. Except as provided for in other regulations, inoperative or
unlicensed motor vehicles shall not be parked, kept, or stored on any premises, and
vehicles shall not at any time be in a state of major disassembly, disrepair, or in the
process of being stripped or dismantled. Painting of vehicles is prohibited unless
conducted inside an approved spray booth.

Exception: A vehicle of any type is permitted to undergo major overhaul, including
body work, provided that such work is performed inside a structure or similarly
enclosed area designed and approved for such purposes.

Section 304.13.2, Openable windows, is deleted in its entirety.

Section 304.14, Insect screens, is deleted in its entirety.

Section 308.3.1, Garbage facilities, is amended to read as follows:
308.3.1 Garbage facilities. The owner of every dwelling shall supply an approved
mechanical food waste grinder in each dwelling unit or an approved leak-proof,
covered, outside garbage container.

Section 602.4, Occupiable work spaces, is amended to read as follows:
602.4 Occupiable work spaces. Indoor occupiable work spaces shall be supplied

with heat to maintain a minimum temperature of 65°F (18°C) during the period the
spaces are occupied.

Exceptions:
1. Processing, storage and operation areas that require cooling or special
temperature conditions.
2. Areas in which persons are primarily engaged in vigorous physical
activities.
Section 8-8.3 Must Conform To Zoning Ordinance

Whenever a building permit is issued and a building inspection performed, such building
must conform to the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance of Wellton in addition to the
provisions of this chapter.



IPMC

A vieonier of the International Coda Faimily

INTERNATIONAL
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE




INTERNATIONAL CODES®

| 2018 I-CODE BONUS OFFER

]
| Get a free 45-day online subscriptlon
to ICC's premiumACCESS™ 2018 I-Codes
Complete Collection. Test drive many
powarful, time-saving tools available to you |
from premiumACCESS. To activate your |
bonus, visit www.iccsafe.org/codebonus.

IPMC

A Member of the International Code Family™

INTERNATIONAL
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

INTERNATIONAL
CODE COUNCIE®

| N T E R N AT | G N A L C 0 D E C 0 U N C I [ distribution authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION 1S A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



2018 International Property Maintenance Code®

First Printing: August 2017

ISBN: 978-1-60983-748-8 (soft-cover edition)

COPYRIGHT © 2017
by
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL, INC.

Date of First Publication: August 31, 2017

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. This 2018 International Property Maintenance Code® is a copyrighted work owned by the Interna-
tional Code Council, Inc. Without advance written permission from the copyright owner, no part of this book may be repro-
duced, distributed or transmitted in any form or by any means, including, without limitation, electronic, optical or mechanical
means (by way of example, and not limitation, photocopying or recording by or in an information storage retrieval system). For
information on use rights and permissions, please contact: Publications, 4051 Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478.
Phone 1-888-1CC-SAFE (422-7233).

Trademarks: “International Code Council,” the “International Code Council” logo, “ICC,” the “ICC” logo, *“International Prop-
erty Maintenance Code,” “IPMC” and other names and trademarks appearing in this book are trademarks of the International
Code Council, Inc., and/or its licensors (as applicable), and may not be used without permission.

PRINTED IN THE US.A.

AN O TR ITIIII . oinmORIzED REpROOUGIROR O STRIBUTION 5 A VHOLATION OF THE FEORRAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LCRNSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER



PREFACE

Introduction

The International Property Maintenance Code® {IPMC®} establishes minimum requirements for
the maintenance of existing buildings through model code regulations that contain clear and spe-
cific property maintenance and property improvement Brovisions. This 2018 edition is fully com-
patible with all of the International Codes® {I-Codes®) published by the International Code
Council® (ICC®), including the International Building Code®, International Energy Canservation
Code®, international Existing Building Code®, International Fire Code®, International Fuel Gas
Code®, International Green Construction Code®, International Mechanical Code®, international
Plumbing Code®, international Private Sewage Disposal Code®, Internotional Residential Code®,
International Swimming Pool and Spa Code®, International Wildland-Urban Interface Code®, Inter-
national Zoning Code® and international Code Council Performance Code®.

The |-Codes, including this International Property Maintenance Code, are used in a variety of
ways in both the public and private sectors. Most industry professionals are familiar with the
I-Codes as the hasis of laws and regulations in communities across the U.S. and in other countries.
However, the impact of the codes extends well beyond the regulatory arena, as they are used in a
variety of nonregulatory settings, including:

»  Voluntary compliance programs such as those promoting sustainabllity, energy efficiency
and disaster resistance.

s The insurance industry, to estimate and manage risk, and as a tool In underwriting and rate
decisions.

e Certification and credentialing of individuals Involved in the fields of building design, con-
struction and safety.

e Certification of building and construction-related products.
e U.S5. federal agencies, to guide construction in an array of government-owned properties.
*  Facilities management.

»  “Best practices” benchmarks for designers and builders, including those who are engaged in
projects in jurisdictions that do not have a formal regulatory system or ¢ governmental
enforcement mechanism.

s  College, university and professional school textbooks and curricula.
»  Reference works related to building design and construction.

In addition to the codes themselves, the code development process brings together building pro-
fessionals on a regular basis. it provides an international forum for discussion and deliberation
about building design, construction methods, safety, performance requirements, technological
advances and innovative products.

Development

This 2018 edition presents the code as originally issued, with changes reftected in the 2003 through
2015 editions and further changes developed through the |CC Code Development Process through
2016. A new edition of the code is promulgated every 3 years.

This code is intended to establish provisions that adequately protect public health, safety and
weifare; that do not unnecessarily increase construction costs; that do not restrict the use of new
materials, products or methods of construction; and that do not give preferential treatment to par-
ticular types or classes of materials, products or methods of construction.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® n
i HTS RESERVED. Accessed 3 75 8; CC. No further
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [ mvibvwirioestiidummbin it yimspnmvepthisptstaisstisionp. sintatateoiti soriay

AGREEMENT, AND SUDJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



Maintenance

The International Property Maintenance Code is kept up to date through the review of proposed
changes submitted by code enforcement officials, industry representatives, design professionals
and other interested parties. Proposed changes are carefully considered through an open code
development process in which all interested and affected parties may participate.

The ICC Code Development Process reflects principles of openness, transparency, balance, due
process and consensus, the principles embodied in OMB Circular A-119, which governs the federal
government’s use of private-sector standards. The ICC process is open to anyone; there is no cost to
participate, and people can participate without travel cost through the ICC's cloud-based app, cdp-
Access®, A broad cross section of interests are represented in the ICC Code Development Process.
The codes, which are updated regularly, include safeguards that allow for emergency action when
required for health and safety reasons.

In order to ensure that organizations with a direct and material interest in the codes have a voice
in the process, the ICC has developed partnerships with key industry segments that support the
ICC's important public safety mission. Some code development committee members were nomi-
nated by the following industry partners and approved by the ICC Board:

*  American Institute of Architects {AIA)
*  National Association of Home Builders (NAHB}

The code development committees evaluate and make recommendations regarding proposed
changes to the codes. Their recommendations are then subject to public comment and council-wide
votes. The ICC's governmental members-—public safety officials who have no financial or business
interest in the outcome—cast the final votes on proposed changes.

The contents of this work are subject to change through the code development cycles and by any
governmental entity that enacts the code into law. For more information regarding the code devel-
opment process, contact the Codes and Standards Development Department of the International
Code Council.

While the I-Code development procedure is thorough and comprehensive, the ICC, its members
and those participating in the development of the codes disclaim any liability resulting from the
publication or use of the -Codes, or from compliance or noncompliance with their provisions. The
ICC does not have the power or authority to police or enforce compliance with the contents of this
code,

Code Development Committee Responsibilities
(Letter Designations in Front of Section Numbers)

In each code development cycle, proposed changes to this code are considered at the Committee
Action Hearings by the International Property Maintenance Code Development Committee, whose
action constitutes a recommendation to the voting membership for final action on the proposed
changes. Proposed changes to a code section having a number beginning with a letter in brackets
are considered by a different code development committee. For example, proposed changes to
code sections that have the letter [F] in front of them (e.g., [F] 704.1) are considered by the Interna-
tional Fire Code Development Committee at the Committee Action Hearings.

The content of sections in this code that begin with a letter designation is maintained by another
code development committee in accordance with the following:

(Al
[F)
[P]

Administrative Code Development Committee;

International Fire Code Development Committee;

International Plumbing Code Development Committee;
[BE] = IBC—Egress Code Development Committee; and
[BG]= IBC—General Code Development Committee.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®
Copyright © 2017 ICC, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, Acceised by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2018 5:30:21 PM. pursuant to License Agieement with ICC. Ne further teproduction or
distnbution authorized. ANY UNAUTRORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND I'HE LICENSE
AGREEMENT. AND SUBIECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.

iv
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL:




For the development of the 2021 edition of the |-Codes, there will be two groups of code devel-
opment committees and they will meet in separate years.

Group A Codes Group B Codes
(Heard in 2018, Code Change Proposals (Heard in 2019, Code Changa Proposals
Deadline: January 8, 2018) Deadline: January 7, 2019)

International Building Code Administrative Provisions (Chapter 1 of all

— Egress (Chapters 10, 11, Appendix E) codes except IECC, IRC and IgCC, administra-

— Fire Safety (Chapters 7, 8, 9, 14, 26) tive updates to currently referenced stan-

- General (Chapters 2-6, 12, 27-33, dards, and designated definitions)

Appendices A, B, C, D, K, N)

Internatianal Fire Code Internationat Building Code

— Structural {Chapters 15-25, Appendices F,
G,H, 1,1, L, M)

International Fuel Gas Code International Existing Building Code

International Mechanical Code International Energy Conservation Code—
Commercial

International Plumbing Code International Energy Conservation Code—
Residential

— |ECC—Residential
— IRC—Energy (Chapter 11)

International Property Maintenance Code International Green Construction Code
(Chapter 1)
Internatfonal Private Sewage Disposal Code International Residential Code

— IRC—Building {Chapters 1-10,
AppendicesE, F, H, K, L, M, 0,Q,R,S,T)

International Residential Code
— IRC—Mechanical (Chapters 12-23)
— IRC—Plumbing {Chapters 25-33,
Appendices G, |, N, P)

International Swimming Pool and Spa Code
International Wildland-Urban Interface Code

International 2oning Code

Note: Proposed changes to the ICC Performance Code™ will be heard by the code development committee noted in brack-
ets [ ] in the text of the ICC Performance Code™.

Code change proposals submitted for code sections that have a letter designation in front of
them will be heard by the respective committee responsible for such code sections. Because differ-
ent committees hold Committee Action Hearings in different years, proposals for the IPMC will be
heard by committees in both the 2018 {Group A} and the 2019 (Group B) code development cycles.

For instance, every section of Chapter 1 of this code is designated as the responsibility of the
Administrative Code Development Committee, which is part of the Group 8B portion of the hearings.
This committee will hold its Committee Action Hearings in 2019 to consider code change proposals
for Chapter 1 of all I-Codes except the International Energy Conservation Code, International Resi-
dential Code and International Green Construction Code, Therefore, any proposals received for
Chapter 1 of this code will be assigned to the Administrative Code Development Committee for con-
sideration in 2019,

it is very important that anyone submitting code change proposals understand which code devel-
opment committee is responsible for the section of the code that is the subject of the code change
proposal. For further information on the code development committee responsibilities, please visit
the ICC website at www.iccsafe.org/scoping.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® v
Capyright © 2017 [CC. ALL RIGHTS RESEAVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannen an Mar 9, 2058 :3821 PM. pursuant to License Agreement with ICC. No further teproduction o

| N T E R N AT | U N AL C 0 D E CO U N C I L disiibution authorized, ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION I5 A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT 'TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER,



Marginal Markings

Salid vertica) lines In the margins within the body of the code indicate a technical change from the
reguirements of the 2015 edition. Deletion indicators in the form of an arrow (=} are provided in
the margin where an entire section, paragraph, exception or table has been deleted or an item in a
list of items or a table has been deleted.

Coordination of the International Codes

The coordination of technical provisions is one of the strengths of the ICC family of model codes.
The codes can be used as a complete set of complementary documents, which will provide users
with full integration and coordination of technical provisions. Individual codes can also be used in
subsets or as stand-alone documents. To make sure that each Individual code is as complete as pos-
sible, some technical provisions that are relevant to more than one subject area are duplicated in
some of the model codes. This allows users maximum flexibility in their application of the |-Codes.

Italicized Terms

Words and terms defined in Chapter 2, Definitions, are italicized where they appear in code text and
the Chapter 2 definition applies. Where such words and terms are not italicized, common-use defi-
nitions apply. The words and terms selected have code-specific definitions that the user should read
carefully to facilitate better understanding of the code.

Adoption

The International Code Council maintains a copyright in all of its codes and standards. Maintaining
copyright allows the ICC to fund its mission through szles of books, in both print and electronic for-
mats. The ICC welcomes adoption of its codes by jurisdictions that recognize and acknowledge the
ICC’s copyright in the code, and further acknowledge the substantial shared value of the public/pri-
vate partnership for code development between jurisdictions and the ICC,

The ICC also recognizes the need for jurisdictions to make laws available to the pubtic. All I-
Codes and {-Standards, along with the laws of many jurisdictions, are available for free in a
nondownloadable form on the ICC’s website. Jurisdictions should contact the ICC at adop-
tions@iccsafe.org to learn how to adopt and distribute laws based on the International Prop-
erty Maintenance Code in a manner that provides necessary access, while maintaining the
ICC’s copyright.

To facilitate adoption, several sections of this code contain blanks for fill-in information
that needs to be supplied by the adopting jurisdiction as part of the adoption legislation. For
this code, please see:

Section 101.1. Insert: [NAME OF JURISDICTION]

Section 103.5. Insert: [APPROPRIATE SCHEDULE)

Section 112.4. Insert: [DOLLAR AMOUNT IN TWO LOCATIONS]
Section 302.4. Insert: [HEIGHT IN INCHES}

Section 304.14. Insert: [DATES IN TWO LOCATIONS)
Section 602.3. Insert: (DATES IN TWO LOCATIONS)

Section 602.4. Insert: [DATES IN TWO LOCATIONS]

vi 2018 INTERNATIONAL PROFPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®
i i . . E15 . L] further on
TRV TOOTUIYIHIH o ovoeroc. e oAU THOMZED REPROSUGTION O DSTRIBUTION 5 A VOLATION OF T PEDRAL COPYRGHT ACT AND TUELCENSE

AGREEMENT, AND SUDJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



EFFECTIVE USE OF THE INTERNATIONAL
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE

The international Property Maintenance Code (IPMC) is a model code that regulates the minimum
maintenance requirements for existing buildings.

The IPMC is a maintenance document intended to establish minimum maintenance standards for
basic equipment, light, ventilation, heating, sanitation and fire safety. Responsibllity is fixed among
owners, operators and occupants for code compliance, The IPMC provides for the regulation and
safe use of existing structures in the interest of the sacial and economic welfare of the community.

Arrangement and Format of the 2018 IPMC

Before applying the requirements of the IPMC it is beneficial to understand its arrangement and for-
mat. The IPMC, like other codes published by ICC, is arranged and organized to follow sequential
steps that generally occur during an inspection. The IPMC is divided into eight different parts:

Chapters Subjects
1 Scope and Administration
2 Definitions
3 General Requirements
4 Light, Ventilation and Occupancy Limitations
5 Plumbing Facilities and Fixture Requirements
6 Mechanical and Electrical Requirements
7 Fire Safety Requirements
8 Referenced Standards

The following is a chapter-by-chapter synopsis of the scope and intent of the provisions of the inter-
national Property Maintenance Code:

Chapter 1 Scope and Administration. This chapter contains provisions for the application,
enforcement and administration of subsequent requirements of the code. In addition to establish-
ing the scope of the code, Chapter 1 identifies which buildings and structures come under its pur-
view, Chapter 1 is largely concerned with maintaining “due process of law” in enforcing the
property maintenance criteria contained in the body of the code. Only through careful observation
of the administrative provisions can the building official reasonably expect to demonstrate that
“equal protection under the law” has been provided.

Chapter 2 Definitions. All terms that are defined in the code are listed alphabetically in Chapter
2. While a defined term may be used in one chapter or another, the meaning provided in Chapter 2
is applicable throughout the code.

Where understanding of a term’s definition is especially key to or necessary for understanding of
a particular code provision, the term is shown In italics. This is true only for those terms that have a
meaning that is unique to the code. In other words, the generally understood meaning of a term or
phrase might not be sufficient or consistent with the meaning prescribed by the code; therefore, it
is essential that the code-defined meaning be known.

Guidance is provided regarding tense, gender and plurality of defined terms as well as terms not
defined in this code.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® vii
W Copyright © 2017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Grogory Ca Mar 9, 2o BM License Agr with ICC. Mo further reproduction e¢
IN T E R N AT | 0 N Al C 0 D E COU NC‘ I. diuﬂbuth:n :unl;o.ﬂlud. ANY UNAUTHORIZED nspsonugn;:n C?;t D:;rn;l;: r:gr: :Alv)lzﬁlnonpt‘;mlswmt co':'::lzm ACT AND THE L:ceuz;:l e

AGREEMENT, AHD SUB]ECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER



Chapter 3 General Requirements. Chapter 3, “General Requirements,” is broad in scope. It
includes a variety of requirements for the exterior property areas as well as the interior and exterior
elements of the structure, This chapter provides requirements that are intended te maintain a min-
imum level of safety and sanitation for both the general public and the occupants of a structure, and
to maintain a building’s structurai and weather-resistance performance, Chapter 3 pravides specific
criteria for regulating the instaliation and maintenance of specific building components; mainte-
nance requirements for vacant structures and land; requirements regulating the safety, sanitation
and appearance of the interior and exterior of structures and all exterior property areas; accessory
structures; vehicle storage regulations and establishes who is responsible for complying with the
chapter’s provisions, This chapter also contains the requirements for swimming pools, spas and hot
tubs and the requirements for protective barriers and gates in these barriers. Chapter 3 establishes
the responsible parties for exterminating insects and rodents, and maintaining sanitary conditions
in all types of occupancies.

Chapter 4 Light, Ventilation and Occupancy Limitations. The purposes of Chapter 4 are to
set forth these requirements in the code and to establish the minimum environment for occupiable
and habitable buildings, by establishing the minimum criteria for light and ventilation and identify-
ing occupancy limitations including minimum room width and area, minimum ceiling height and
restrictions to prevent overcrowding. This chapter also provides for alternative arrangements of
windows and other devices to comply with the requirements for light and ventitation and prohibits
certain room arrangements and occupancy uses.

Chapter 5 Plumbing Facilities and Fixture Requirements. Chapter 5 establishes the mini-
mum criteria for the installation, maintenance and location of plumbing systems and facilities,
including the water supply system, water heating appliances, sewage disposal system and related
plumbing fixtures.

Sanitary and clean conditions in occupied buildings are dependent upon certain basic plumbing
principles, including providing potable water to a building, providing the basic fixtures to effectively
utilize that water and properly removing waste from the building. Chapter 5 establishes the mini-
mum criteria to verify that these principles are maintained throughout the life of a building.

Chapter 6 Mechanical and Electrical Requirements. The purpose of Chapter 6 is to establish
minimum performance requirements for heating, electrical and mechanical facilities and to estab-
lish minimum standards for the safety of these facilities.

This chapter establishes minimum criteria for the instailation and maintenance of the following:
heating and air-conditioning equipment, appliances and their supporting systems; water heating
equipment, appliances and systems; cooking equipment and appliances; ventilation and exhaust
equipment; gas and liquid fuel distribution piping and components; fireplaces and solid fuel-burning
appliances; chimneys and vents; electrical services; lighting fixtures; electrical receptacle outlets;
electrical distribution system equipment, devices and wiring; and elevators, escalators and dumb-
waiters.

Chapter 7 Fire Safety Requirements. The purpose of Chapter 7 is to address those fire hazards
that arlse as the result of a building’s occupancy. it also provides minimum requirements for fire
safety issues that are most likely to arise in older buildings.

This chapter contains requirements for means of egress in existing buildings, including path of
travel, required egress width, means of egress doors and emergency escape openings.

Chapter 7 establishes the minimum requirements for fire safety facilities and fire protection sys-
tems, as these are essential fire safety systems.

viil 2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

AT TOIIIIINIRR oo, e cnnmions e REPRODLCTON R STRBLTION 5 A WIOLNTHON OF T FEDSRAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE ERE

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.




Chapter 8 Referenced Standards. The code contains numerous references to standards that
are used to regulate materials and methods of construction. Chapter 8 contains a comprehensive
list of all standards that are referenced in the code. The standards are part of the code to the extent
of the reference to the standard. Compliance with the referenced standard is necessary for compli-
ance with this code. By providing specifically adopted standards, the construction and installation
requirements necessary for compliance with the code can be readily determined. The basis for code
compliance is, therefore, established and available on an equal basis to the code official, contractor,
designer and owner.

Chapter B is organized in a manner that makes it easy to locate specific standards. It lists all of
the referenced standards, alphabetically, by acronym of the promulgating agency of the standard.
Each agency's standards are then listed in either alphabetical or numeric order based upon the stan
dard identification. The list also contains the title of the standard; the edition (date} of the standard
referenced; any addenda included as part of the |CC adoption; and the section or sections of this
code that reference the standard.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® ix

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [RRntivibvwitarirenisottosmstumespibiihmmi st ety e hisivatesioniang

AGREEMENT, AND SUBECT TO CIVH. AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



x 2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®
H L RIGHTS RES! . Asccased by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2014 2:33: e Mg further reprod
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [Rpssteviiuinsriyremotitmmbivsrmmsiiigsimsrmmdieapiitammhimty s v s

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER1 SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION ....1

PART 1—SCOQOPE AND APPLICATION............. 1
Section

101 General. .. .. . . e 1
102 Applicability. . ...........ooo i 1

PART 2—ADMINISTRATION AND

ENFORCEMENT, ... vcvnreinnrernnsnananennanees ]
Section
103  Department of Property Maintenance

InSpection ... ... .ottt 2
104 Duties and Powers of the Code Official . . ......... 2
105 Approval. ... ... .. i i e 3
106 Violations. ...t iin i s 3
§07 NoticesandOrders.................civivvanns 3
108 Unsafe Structures and Equipment . .............. 4
109 Emergency Measures.........covvvineneannenns 5
110 Demolition . ......cooviviniinrre e 6
111 Meansof Appeal ............. ... .cocuvinnnn. 6
112 StopWorkOrder .......... ...t 7
CHAPTER 2 DEFINITIONS .........cciivviveaes 9
Section
201 General.........cc i e 9
202 General Definitions .............. 0o 9
CHAPTER 3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS....... 1n
Section
301 General. ... ... e 11
302 Exterior Property Areas ...........o0veeiian. 11
303 Swimming Pools, Spasand Hot Tubs .. ......... 12
304 ExteriorStructure.......... ... .civeiinii.ns 12
305 InteriorStructure ............coiiiiiiiiian 14
306 Component Serviceability .................... 14
307 Handrails and Guardrails . .................... 15
308 Rubbishand Garbage.......... ... ........... 15
309 PestElimination....... ...t 15

CHAPTER 4 LIGHT, VENTILATION AND
OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS ...... 17

Section
401 General......... ...t 17

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

402 Light. ... .o e 17
403 Ventilation.......... ... .. ... oo 17
404 Occupancy Limitations . .................. ... 18

CHAPTER 5 PLUMBING FACILITIES AND

FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS ....... 21
Section
S01 General........cociiiiiiii i iiiia e 21
502 Required Facilities. ...................... .. 21
503 ToiletRooms............coviiiiiiiiiiiinen 21
504 Plumbing Systems and Fixtures. ............... 21
505 WaterSystem..........ciiiiiiiiiii i 22
506 Sanitary Drainage System . ................ ... 22
507 StormDrainage ........ .. 00 iiieiaaaiaans 22

CHAPTER 6 MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL

REQUIREMENTS........0ovnuivns 23
Section
60 General. . ... ... . ... i 23
602 Heating Facilities................ ..ot 23
603 Mechanical Equipment ............ 0000000 23
604 Electrical Facilities. . ..............coivivats 24
605 Electrical Equipment .. .......... . 24
606 Elevators, Escalators and Dumbwaiters. . ........ 25
G607 DuctSystems.........c.iiiiiiiiiiiiaa 25

CHAPTER 7 FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS ... 27

Section

FO1 General.. .. ... ..ttt 27
702 Meansof Egress.........oiviiiiiiiiniien 27
703  Fire-resistance Ratings. ............. ... 0000 27
704 Fire Protection Systems . . .................... 28
705 Carbon Monoxide Alarms and Detection ........ 31
CHAPTER S8 REFERENCED STANDARDS....... 33
APPENDIX A BOARDING STANDARD.......... as
Section

AlOE General ... ... i e 35
Al02 Materials ... ........ .. e 35
Al03 Installation. .........coveriiniiniiunennnns 35
Al104 Referenced Standard.................... ... 35
sl ¥ 3, S 0A R a3 00 00 6aa86a8 00800000000 0880000 37

Copyright 43017 [CC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2010 3:58:31 PM pursuant to License Agreoment with ICC. No further reproduction or
distribution authorized, ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMENAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



il 2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

TR BT ARRIEIIRIH 6ot s s s eamopuamon o BTN 5 OLATION OF THE FEDEAAL GOPYRKHT ACT AND THE LENSE

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



CHAPTER 1
SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

User note:

About this chapter: Chapter 1 eslablishes the limits of applicabitity of the code and describes how the code is to be applied and enforced.
Chapter 1 is in two parls: Part 1—Scope and Application (Sections 101 and 102) and Part 2—Administration end Enforcement (Seclions
103 - 112) Section 101 identifies which buildings and structures come under its purview and references other l-Codes as applicable.

This code is intended to be adopled as a fegally enforceable document and it cannot be effective without adequate provisions for its adminis-
tration and enforcement. The provisions of Chapter 1 establish the authority and dulies of the code officlal appointed by the authority having

jurisdiction and aiso establish the rights and privileges of the property owner and buiiding occupants.

PART 1 — SCOPE AND APPLICATION

SECTION 101
GENERAL

[A] 101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the
International Property Maintenance Code of [NAME OF
JURISDICTION}, hereinafter referred to as “this code.”

|A] 101.2 Scape. The provisions of this code shall apply to
all existing residential and nonresidentia! structures and all
existing premises and constitute minimum requirements and
standards for premises, structures, equipment and facilities
for light, venriation, space, heating, sanitation, protection
from the elements, a reasonable level of safety from fire and
other hazards, and for a reasonable level of sanitary mainte-
nance; the responsibility of owners, an owner’s authorized
agent, operators and occupants; the occupancy of existing
structures and premises, and for administration, enforcement
and penalties.

|A] 101.3 Intent. This code shall be construed to secure its
expressed intent, which is to ensure public health, safety and
welfare insofar as they are affected by the continued occw-
pancy and maintenance of structures and premises. Existing
structures and premises thal do not comply with these provi-
sions shall be altered or repaired to provide a minimum level
of health and safety as required herein.

[A] 101.4 Severability. If a section, subsection, sentence,
clavse or phrase of this code is, for any reason, held to be
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this code.

SECTION 102
APPLICABILITY

[A] 102.1 General. Where there is a conflict between a gen-
eral requirement and a specific requirement, the specific
requirement shall govern. Where differences occur between
provisions of this code and the referenced standards, the pro-
visions of this code shall apply. Where, in a specific case, dif-
ferent sections of this code specify different requirements, the
most restrictive shall govern,

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

102.2 Maintenance. Equipment, systems, devices and safe-
guards required by this code or a previous regulation or code
under which the structure or premises was constructed,
altered or repaired shall be maintained in good working order.
An owner, owner’s authorized agent, operator or occupant
shall not cause any service, facility, equipment or utility that
is required under this section to be removed from, shut off
from or discontinued for any occupicd dwelling, except for
such temporary interruption as necessary while repairs or
alterations are in progress. The requirements of this code are
not intended to provide the basis for removal or abrogation of
fire protection and safety systems and devices in existing
structures. Exceplt as otherwise specified herein, the owner or
the owner’s authorized agent shall be responsible for the
maintenance of buildings, structures and premises.

[A] 102.3 Application of other codes. Repairs, additions or
alterations to a structure, or changes of eccupancy, shall be
done in accordance with the procedures and provisions of the
International Building Code, Infernational Existing Building
Code, International Energy Conservation Code, Interna-
tional Fire Code, International Fuel Gas Code, International
Mechanical Code, International Residential Code, Interna-
tional Plumbing Code and NFPA 70. Nothing in this code
shall be construed to cancel, modify or set aside any provi-
sion of the fnternational Zoning Code.

[A] 102.4 Existing remedies. The provisions in this code
shall not be construed to abolish or impair existing remedies
of the jurisdiction or its officers or agencies relating to the
removal ot demolition of any structure that is dangerous,
unsafe and insanitary.

[A] 102.5 Workmanship. Repairs, maintenance work, alter-
ations or installations that are caused directly or indirectly by
the enforcement of this code shall be executed and installed
in a workmanlike manner and instatled in accordance with the
manufacturer’s instructions,

|A] 102.6 Historic buildings. The provisions of this code
shall not be mandatory for existing buildings or structures
designated as historic buildings where such buildings or
structures are judged by the code official to be safc and in the
public interest of health, safety and welfare.

[A] 102.7 Referenced codes and standards. The codes and
standards referenced in this code shall be those that are listed
in Chapter 8 and considered part of the requirements of this

1

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL; JRPsaianbimiprermistianeinchimospinishmatieiriiry ottt isaapasvwissish s

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER



SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

code to the prescribed extent of each such reference and as
further regulated in Sections 102.7.1 and 102.7.2.

Exception: Where enforcement of a code provision would
violate the conditions of the listing of the equipment or
appliance, the conditions of the listing shall apply.

[A] 102.7.1 Conflicts. Where conflicts occur between pro-
visions of this code and the referenced standards, the pro-
visions of this code shall apply.

[A] 102.7.2 Provisions in referenced codes and stan-
dards. Where the extent of the reference to a referenced
code or standard includes subject matter that is within the
scope of this code, the provisicns of this code, as applica-
bie, shall take precedence over the provisions in the refer-
enced code or standard,

[A] 102.8 Requirements not covered by code. Require-
ments necessary for the strength, stability or proper operation
of an existing fixture, structure or equipment, or for the pub-
lic safety, health and general welfare, not specifically covered
by this code, shall be determined by the code official.

[A] 102.9 Application of references. References to chapter
or section numbers, or to provisions not specifically identi-
fied by number, shall be construed to refer to such chapter,
section or provision of this code.

[A] 102.10 Other laws. The provisions of this code shall not
be deemed to nullify any provisions of local, state or federal
law,

PART 2 — ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

SECTION 103
DEPARTMENT OF PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE INSPECTION

[A] 103.1 General. The department of property maintenance
inspection is hereby created and the executive official in
charge thereof shall be known as the code official.

[A] 103.2 Appointment. The code official shall be appointed
by the chief appointing authority of the jurisdiction.

[A] 103.3 Deputies. In accordance with the prescribed proce-
dures of this jurisdiction and with the concurrence of the
appointing authority, the code afficial shall have the authority
to appoint a deputy(s). Such employees shall have powers as
delegated by the code official.

[A] 103.4 Liability. The code official, member of the board
of appeals or employee charged with the enforcement of this
code, while acting for the jurisdiction, in good faith and with-
out malice in the discharge of the duties required by this code
or other pertinent law or ordinance, shall not thereby be ren-
dered civilly or criminally liable personally, and is hereby
relieved from all personal liability for any damage accruing
to persons or property as a result of an act or by reason of an
act or omission in the discharge of official duties.

|A] 103.4.1 Legal defense. Any suit or criminal complaint
instituted against any officer or employee becausc of an
act performed by that officer or employee in the lawful

2
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL

discharge of duties and under the provisions of this code
shall be defended by the legal representative of the juris-
diction until the final termination of the proceedings. The
code official or any subordinate shall not be liable for
costs in an action, suit or proceeding that is instituted in
pursuance of the provisions of this code.

{A] 103.5 Fees. The fees for activities and services performed
by the department in carrying out its responsibiliiies under
this code shall be as indicated in the following schedule.

[JURISDICTION TO INSERT APPROPRIATE SCHEDULE.]

SECTION 104
DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE CODE OFFICIAL

[A] 104.1 General. The code gfficial is hereby authorized
and directed to enforce the provisions of this code. The code
official shall have the authority to render interpretations of
this code and to adopt policies and procedures in order to
clarify the application of its provisions. Such interpretations,
policies and procedures shall be in compliance with the intent
and purpose of this code. Such policies and procedures shall
not have the effect of waiving requirements specifically pro-
vided for in this code.

[A] 104.2 Inspections. The code official shall make all of the
required inspections, or shall accept reports of inspection by
approved agencies or individuals. Reports of such inspections
shall be in writing and be certified by a responsible officer of
such gpproved agency or by the responsible individual, The
code afficial is authorized to engage such expert opinion as
deemed necessary to report on unusual technical issues that
arise, subject to the approval of the appeinting authority.

[A] 104.3 Right of entry. Where it is necessary v make an
inspection to enforce the provisions of this code, or whenever
the code official has reasonable cause to believe that there
exists in a sfructure or upon a premises a condition in viola-
tion of this code, the code afficial is authorized to enter the
structure or premises at reasonable times to inspect or per-
form the duties imposed by this code, provided that if such
struciure or premises is occupied the code official shall pres-
ent credentials to the occupant and request entry. If such
structure or premises is unoccupied, the code qfficial shall
first make a reasonable effort to locate the owner, owner’s
authorized agent or other person having charge or control of
the struciure or premises and request entry. If entry is
refused, the code official shall have recourse to the remedies
provided by [aw to secure eniry.

[A] 104.4 1dentification. The code official shall carry proper
identification when inspecting structures or premises in the
performance of duties under this code.

[A] 104.5 Notices and orders. The code aofficial shall issue
all necessary notices or orders to ensure compliance with this
code.

[A] 104.6 Department records. The code official shall keep
official records of all business and activities of the depart-
ment specified in the provisions of this code. Such records
shall be retained in the official records for the pericd required
for retention of public records.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright © 1017 IGC. ALL RIGHTS HESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon oh Mat 9, 2018 3:58:21 PM. pursuans io License Agicement with {CC. Mo further reproduction or
Jistribution authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION [S A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE

AGHEEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL

SECTION 105
APPROVAL

{A] 105.1 Modifications. Whenever there are practical diffi-
culties involved in carrying out the provisions of this code,
the code official shall have the authority to grant modifica-
tions for individual cases upon application of the owner or
owner s authorized agent, provided that the code gfficial shall
first find that special individual reason makes the strict letter
of this code impractical, the medification is in compliance
with the intent and purpose of this code and that such modifi-
cation does not lessen health, life and fire safety require-
ments. The details of action granting modifications shall be
recorded and entered in the department files.

[A] 1052 Alternative materials, design and methods of
construction and equipment. The provisions of this code
are not intended 1o prevent the installation of any material or
to prohibit any design or method of construction not specifi-
cally prescribed by this code, provided that any such alterna-
tive has been approved. An alternative material, design or
method of construction shall be approved where the code
official finds that the proposed design is satisfactory and
complies with the intent of the provisions of this code, and
that the material, method or work offered is, for the purpose
intended, not less than the equivalent of that prescribed in this
code in quality, strength, effectiveness, fire resistance, dura-
bility and safety. Where the alternative material, design or
method of construction is not approved, the code official shall
respond in writing, stating the reasons why the alternative
was not approved.

[A] 105.3 Required testing. Whenever there is insufficient
evidence of compliance with the provisions of this code or
evidence that a material or method does not conform to the
requirements of this code, or in order to substantiate claims
for alternative materials or methods, the code official shall
have the authority to require tests to be made as evidence of
compliance without expense to the jurisdiction,

|A] 105.3.1 Test methods. Test methods shall be as speci-
fied in this code or by other recognized test standards. In
the absence of recognized and accepted test methods, the
code official shall be permitted to approve appropriate
testing procedures performed by an approved agency.

[A] 105.3.2 Test reports. Reports of tests shall be retained
by the code official for the period required for retention of
public records.

[A] 105.4 Used material and equipment. Materials that are
reused shall comply with the requirements of this code for
new materials. Materials, equipment and devices shall not be
reused unless such elements are in good repair or have been
reconditioned and tested where necessary, placed in good and
proper working condition and appraved by the code official.

[A] 105.5 Approved materials and equipment. Materials,
equipment and devices approved by the code gfficial shall be
constructed and installed in accordance with such approval.

|A} 105.6 Research reports. Supporting data, where neces-
sary to assist in the approval of materials or assemblies not
specifically provided for in this code, shall consist of valid
research reports from approved sources.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

SECTION 106
VIOLATIONS

[A] 106.1 Unlawful acts. [t sha!l be unlawful for a person,
firm or corporation to be in conflict with or in violation of
any of the provisions of this code.

[A] 106.2 Notice of violation. The code aofficial shall serve a
notice of vielation or order in accordance with Section 107,

[A] 106.3 Prosecution of violation. Any person failing to
comply with a notice of violation or order served in accor-
dance with Section 107 shall be deemed guilty of a misde-
meanor or civil infraction as determined by the local
municipality, and the violation shall be deemed a strict liabil-
ity offense. If the notice of violation is not complied with, the
code official shall institute the appropriate proceeding at law
or in equity to restrain, correct or abate such violation, or to
require the removal or termination of the unlawfui eccupancy
of the structure in violation of the provisions of this code or
of the order or direction made pursuant thereto. Any action
taken by the authority having jurisdiction on such premises
shall be charged against the real estate upon which the struc-
ture is located and shall be a lien upon such real estate.

[A] 106.4 Violation penalties. Any person who shall violate
a provision of this code, or fail to comply therewith, or with
any of the requirements thereof, shall be prosecuted within
the limits provided by state or local laws. Each day that a vio-
lation continues after due notice has been served shall be
deemed a separate offense.

[A] 106.5 Abatement of violation. The imposition of the
penalties herein prescribed shall not preclude the legat officer
of the jurisdiction from instituting appropriate action lo
restrain, correct or abate a violation, or to prevent illegal
occupancy of a building, structute or premises, ar to stop an
illegal act, conduct, business or utilization of the building,
structure or premises.

SECTION 107
NOTICES AND ORDERS

107.1 Notice to person responsible. Whenever the code offi-
cial determines that there has been a viotation of this code or
has grounds to believe that a violation has occurred, notice
shall be given in the manner prescribed in Sec.ions 107.2 and
107.3 to the person responsible for the violation as specified
in this code. Notices for condemnation procedures shall com-
ply with Section 108.3.

107.2 Form, Such notice prescribed in Section 107.1 shall be
in accordance with all of the following:
1. Be in writing.
2. Include a description of the real estate sufficient for
identification.

3. Include a statement of the violation or viclations and
why the notice is being issued.

4. Include a correction order allowing a reasonable time to
make the repairs and improvements required to bring
the dwelling unit or structure into compliance with the
provisions of this code.

3

Copyright © 2017 ICC. ALL IGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon an Mar 5, 2012 3:38:21 FM pursuant 1o Licenie Agreement with ICC. No further reproduction ar
distribution authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION (S A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

5. Inform the property owner or owner’s authorized agent
of the right to appeal.

6. Include a statement of the right to file a lien in accor-
dance with Section 106.3.

107.3 Methed of service. Such notice shall be deemed to be
properly served if a copy thereof is: delivered personally, or
sent by certified or first-class mail addressed to the last
known address. If the notice is returned showing that the let-
ter was not delivered, a copy thereof shall be posted in a con-
spicuous place in or about the structure affected by such
notice.

107.4 Unauthorized tampering. Signs, tags or seals posted
or affixed by the code official shall not be mutilated,
destroyed or tampered with, or removed without authoriza-
tion from the code official.

107.5 Penalties. Penalties for nancompliance with orders and
notices shall be as set forth in Section 106.4.

107.6 Transfer of ownership. It shall be unlawful for the
owner of any dwelling unit or structure who has received a
compliance order or upon whom a notice of violation has
been served to sell, transfer, mortgage, lease or otherwise dis-
pose of such dwelling unit or structure to another until the
provisions of the compliance order or notice of violation have
been complied with, or until such owrer or the owner’s
authorized agent shall first furnish the grantee, transferee,
mortgagee or lessee a true copy of any compliance order or
notice of violation issued by the code official and shall fur-
nish to the code official a signed and notarized statement
from the grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee, acknowl-
edging the receipt of such compliance order or natice of vio-
lation and fully aceepting the responsibility without condition
for making the corrections or repairs required by such com-
pliance order or notice of violation,

SECTION 108
UNSAFE STRUCTURES AND EQUIPMENT

108.1 General. When a structure or equipment is found by
the code gfficial to be unsafe, or when a structure is found
unfit for human eccupancy, or is found unlawful, such struc-
ture shall be condemned pursuant to the provisions of this
code.

108.1.1 Unsafe structures. An unsafe structure is one that
is found to be dangerous to the life, health, property or
safety of the public or the occupanis of the structure by not
providing minimum safeguards to protect or warn occu-
panis in the event of fire, or because such structure con-
tains unsafe equipment or is so damaged, decayed,
ditapidated, structurally unsafe or of such faulty construc-
tion or unstable foundation, that partial or complete col-
lapse is possible.

108.1.2 Unsafe equipment. Unsafe equipment includes
any boiler, heating equipment, elevator, moving stairway,
electrical wiring or device, flammable liquid containers or
other equipment on the premises or within the structure
that is in such disrepair or condition that such equipment is
a hazard to life, health, property or safety of the public or
occupants of the premises or structure.

108.1.3 Structure unfit for human eccupancy. A struc-
ture is unfit for human occupancy whenever the code offi-
cial finds that such structure is unsafe, unlawful or,
because of the degree to which the structure is in disrepair
or lacks maintenance, is insanitary, vermin or rat infested,
contains filth and contamination, or lacks vemtilation, illu-
mination, sanitary or heating facilities or other essential
equipment required by this code, or because the location
of the structure constitutes a hazard to the sccupants of the
structure or to the public.

108.1.4 Unlawful structure. An unlawful structure is one
found in whole or in part to be occupied by more persons
than permitted under this code, or was erected, altered or
occupied contrary to law,

108.1.5 Dangerous structure or premises. For the pur-
pose of this code, any structure or premises that has any or
all of the conditions or defects described as follows shall
be considered to be dangerous:

1. Any door, aisle, passageway, stairway, exil or
other means of egress that does not conform to the
approved building or fire code of the jurisdiction
as related to the requirements for existing build-
ings.

2. The walking surface of any aisle, passageway,
stairway, exil or other means of egress is S0
warped, wom loose, torn or otherwise unsafe as to
not provide safe and adequate means of egress.

3. Any portion of a building, structure ¢: appurte-
nance that has been damaged by fire, earthquake,
wind, flood, deterioration, neglect, abandonment,
vandalism or by any other cause to such an extent
that it is likely to partially or completely collapse,
or to hecome detached or dislodged.

4. Any portion of a building, or any member, appur-
tenance or ornamentation on the exterior thereof
that is not of sufficient strength or stability, or is
not so anchored, attached or fastened in place so
as to be capable of resisting natural or artificial
loads of one and one-half the original designed
value.

5. The building or structure, or part of the building or
structure, because of dilapidation, deferioration,
decay, faulty construction, the removal or move-
ment of some portion of the ground necessary for
the support, or for any other reason, is likely to
partially or completely collapse, or some portion
of the foundation or underpinning of the building
or structure is likely to fail or give way.

6. The building or structure, or any portion thereof, is
clearly unsafe for its use and occupancy.

7. The building or structure is neglected, damaged,
dilapidated, unsecured or abandoned so as to
become an attractive nuisance to children who
might play in the building or structure to their dan-
ger, becomes a harbor for vaprants, criminals or
immoral persons, or enables persons to resort to
the building or structure for committing a nuisance
or an unlawful act.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

4
B igh HTS RESERVED. Accesssd Mar 9, 2010 358 Agreement with [CC. No funther
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [Pssttistiarsinaripeeriptrimbiossmnt s Aoy tosemmprosypt Aot e

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



8. Any building or structure has been constructed,
exists or is maintained in violation of any specific
requirement or prohibition applicable to such
building or structure provided by the approved
building or fire code of the jurisdiction, or of any
law ot ordinance to such an extenl as to present
either a substantial risk of fire, building collapse or
any other threat to life and safety.

9. A building or structure, used or intended to be
used for dwelling purposes, because of inadequate
maintenance, dilapidation, decay, damage, faulty
construction or arrangement, inadequate light,
ventilation, mechanical or plumbing system, or
otherwise, is determined by the code official to be
unsanitary, unfit for human habitation or in such a
condition that is likely to cause sickness or dis-
€ase.

10. Any building or structure, because of a lack of suf-
ficient or proper fire-resistance-rated construction,
fire protection systems, electrical system, fuel con-
nections, mechanical system, plumbing system or
other cause, is determined by the code official to
be a threat to life or health.

11. Any portion of a building remains on a site afler
the demolition or destruction of the building or
structure or whenever any building or structure is
abandoned so as o constitute such building or per-
tion thereof as an aftractive nuisance or hazard to
the public.

108.2 Closing of vacant structures. If the structure is vacant
and unfit for human habitation and ececupancy, and is not in
danger of structural collapse, the code official is authorized to
post a placard of condemnation on the premises and order the
structure closed up so as not to be an attractive nuisance.
Upon failure of the owner or owner’s authorized agent to
close up the premises within the time specified in the order,
the code official shall cause the premises to be closed and
secured through any available public agency or by contract or
arrangement by private persons and the cost thereof shall be
charged against the real estate upon which the structure is
located and shall be a lien upon such real estate and shall be
collected by any other legal resource.

108.2.1 Authority to disconnect service utilities. The
code official shall have the authority to authorize discon-
nection of utility service to the building, structure or sys-
tem regulated by this code and the referenced codes and
standards set forth in Section 102.7 in case of emergency
where necessary to eliminate an immediate hazard to life
or property or where such utility connection has been
made without approval. The code afficial shal! notify the
serving ulility and, whenever possible, the owner or
owner’s authorized agent and occupant of the building,
structure or service system of the decision to disconnect
prior to taking such action. If not notified prior to discon-
nection the owner, owner’s authorized agent or occupant
of the building structure or service system shall be notified
in writing as soon as practical thercafter.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

108.3 Notice. Whenever the code official has condemned a
structure or equipment under the provisions of this section,
notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place in ar about the
structure affected by such notice and served on the owner,
owner’s authorized agent or the person or persons responsible
for the structure or equipment in accordance with Section
107.3. If the notice pertains to equipment, it shall be placed
on the condemned equipment. The notice shall be in the form
prescribed in Section 107.2.

108.4 Placarding. Upon failure of the owner, owner’s autho-
rized agent or person responsible to comply with the notice
provisions within the time given, the code official shall post
on the premises or on defective equipment a placard bearing
the word “Condemned” and a statement of the penalties pro-
vided for occupying the premises, operating the equipment or
removing the placard.

108.4.1 Placard removal. The code official shall remove
the condemnation placard whenever the defect or defects
upon which the condemnation and placarding action were
based have been eliminated. Any person who defaces or
removes a condemnation placard without the approval of
the code official shall be subject to the penalties provided
by this code.

108.5 Prohibited occupancy. Any occupied structure con-
demned and placarded by the code official shall be vacated as
ordered by the code official. Any person who shall occupy a
placarded premises or shall operate placarded equipment, and
any owner, owner’s authorized agent or person responsible
for the premises who shall let anyone occupy a placarded
premises or operate placarded equipment shall be liable for
the penalties provided by this code.

108.6 Abatement methods. The owner, owner’s authorized
agent, operalor ot eccupant of a building, premises or equip-
ment deemed unsafe by the code official shall abate or cause
to be abated or corrected such unsafe conditions either by
repair, rehabilitation, demolition or other approved corrective
action.

108.7 Record. The code official shall cause a report to be
filed on an unsafe condition. The report shall state the occue-
pancy of the structurc and the nature of the unsafe condition.

SECTION 109
EMERGENCY MEASURES

109.1 Imminent danger. When, in the opinion of the code
official, there is imminent danger of failure or collapse of a
building or structure that endangers life, or when any struc-
ture or part of a structure has fallen and life is endangered by
the occupation of the structure, or when there is actual or
potential danger to the building occupants or those in the
proximity of any structure because of explosives, explosive
fumes or vapors or the presence of toxic fumes, gases or
materials, or operation of defective or dangerous equipment,
the code official is hereby authorized and empowered to order
and require the occupants to vacate the premises forthwith.
The code official shall cause to be posted at each entrance to
such structure a notice reading as follows: “This Structure Is
Unsafe and Its Occupancy Has Been Prohibited by the Code

DTN TMAITIRI o s, S mrromatsesmanetoo o SSTABUTION S A HOLATION OF T4t PIOTAAL COPFRIGHT ACT AND THE LCENSE

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



6
tNTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

Official.” 1t shall be unlawful for any person to enter such
structure except for the purpose of securing the structure,
making the required repairs, removing the hazardous condi-
tion or of demolishing the same.

1092 Temporary safeguards. Notwithstanding other provi-
sions of this code, whenever, in the opinion of the code offi-
cial, there is imminent danger due to an unsafe condition, the
code official shall order the necessary work to be done,
including the boarding up of openings, to render such struc-
turc temporarily safe whether or not the legal procedure
herein described has been instituted; and shall cause such
other action to be taken as the code official deems necessary
to meet such emergency.

109.3 Closing streets, When necessary for public safety, the
code official shall temporarily close structures and close, or
order the authority having jurisdiction to close, sidewalks,
streets, public ways and places adjacent to unsafe structures,
and prohibit the same from being utilized.

109.4 Emergency repairs. For the purposes of this section,
the code official shall employ the necessary labor and materi-
als to perform the required work as expeditiously as possible.

109.5 Costs of emergency repairs. Costs incurred in the per-
formance of emergency work shall be paid by the jurisdic-
tion. The legal counse] of the jurisdiction shall institute
appropriale action against the owner of the premises or
owner’s authorized agent where the unsafe structure is or was
located for the recovery of such costs.

109.6 Hearing. Any person ordered to take emergency mea-
surcs shall comply with such order forthwith. Any affected
person shall thereafter, upon petition directed to the appeals
board, be afforded a hearing as described in this code.

SECTION 110
DEMOLITION

110.1 General. The code official shall order the owner or
owner’s authorized agent of any premises upon which is
located any structure, which in the code official 's or owner’s
authorized agent judgment after review is so deleriorated or
dilapidated or has become so out of repair as to be dangerous,
unsafe, insanitary or otherwise unfit for human habitation or
occupancy, and such that it is unrecasonable to repair the
structure, to demolish and remove such structure; or if such
structure is capable of being made safe by repairs, to repair
and make safe and sanitary, or to boatd up and hold for future
repair or to demolish and remove at the owner's option; or
where there has been a cessation of normal construction of
any structure for a period of more than two years, the code
afficial shall order the owner or owner’s authorized agent to
demolish and remove such structure, or board up until future
repair. Boarding the building up for futurc repair shall not
extend beyond one year, unless approved by the building
official.

110.2 Notices and orders, Notices and orders shall comply
with Section 107.

110.3 Failure to comply. If the owner of a premises or
owner’s authorized agent fails to comply with a demolition

order within the time prescribed, the code gfficial shall cause
the structure to be demolished and removed, ¢ither through an
available public agency or by contract or arrangement with
private persons, and the cost of such demolition and removal
shall be charged against the real estate upon which the struc-
ture is located and shall be a lien upon such real estate.

110.4 Salvage materials. Where any structure has been
ordered demolished and removed, the governing body or
other designated officer under said contract or arrangement
aforesaid shall have the right to sell the salvage and valuable
materials. The net proceeds of such sale, after deducting the
expenses of such demolition and removal, shall be promptly
remitted with a report of such sale or transaction, including
the itemns of expense and the amounts deducted, for the per-
son who is entitled thereto, subject to any order of a court. If
such a surplus does not remain to be turned over, the report
shall so state.

SECTION 111
MEANS OF APPEAL

[Al 111.1 Application for appeal. Any person directly
affected by a decision of the code official or a notice or order
issued under this code shall have the right to appeal to the
board of appeals, provided that a written application for
appeal is filed within 20 days after the day the decision,
notice or order was served. An application for appeal shall be
based on a claim that the true intent of this code or the rules
legally adopted thercunder have been incorrectly interpreted,
the provisions of this code do not fully apply, or the require-
ments of this code are adequately satisfied by other means.

[A] 111,2 Membership of board. The board of appeals shall
consist of not less than three members who are qualified by
experience and training to pass on matters pertaining to prop-
erty maintenance and who are not employees of the jurisdic-
tion. The code official shall be an ex-officio member but shall
not vole on any matter before the board. The board shall be
appointed by the chief appointing authority, and shall serve
staggered and overlapping terms.

[A] 111.2.1 Alternate members. The chief appointing
authority shall appoint not less than two alternate members
who shall be called by the board chairman to hear appeals
during the absence or disqualification of a member. Alter-
nate members shall possess the qualifications required for
board membership.

[A] 111.2.2 Chairman. The board shall annually select
one of its members to serve as chairman.

[A] 111.2.3 Disqualification of member. A member shall
not hear an appeal in which that member has # personal,
professional or financial interest.

[A] 111.2.4 Secretary. The chief administrative officer
shall designate a qualified person to serve as secretary to
the board. The secretary shall file a detailed record of all
proceedings in the office of the chief administrative offi-
cer.

[A] 111.2.5 Compensation of members. Compensation
of members shall be determined by law.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright © 2017 ICC. ALL REGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2018 3:30:31 PM puriuant to License Agreement with ICC. No Further reproduction or
distribution authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



[A] 111.3 Notice of meeting. The board shall meet upon
notice from the chairman, within 20 days of the filing of an
appeal, or at stated periodic meetings.

[A] 111.4 Open hearing. Hearings before the board shall be
open to the public. The appellant, the appellant’s representa-
tive, the code official and any person whose interests are
affected shall be given an opportunity to be heard. A quorum
shall consist of not less than two-thirds of the board member-
ship.

[A] 111.4.1 Procedure. The board shall adopt and make
available to the public through the secretary procedures
under which a hearing will be conducted. The procedures
shall not require compliance with strict rules of evidence,
but shall mandate that only relevant information be
received.

[A] 111.5 Postponed hearing. When the full board is not
present to hear an appeal, either thc appellant or the appel-
lant’s representative shall have the right to request a post-
ponement of the hearing.

[A] 111.6 Board decision. The board shall medify or reverse
the decision of the code official only by a concurring vote of a
majority of the total number of appointed board members.

[A] 111.6.1 Records and copies. The decision of the
board shall be recorded. Copies shall be furnished to the
appellant and to the code official.

(A] 111.6.2 Administration. The code official shall take
immediate action in accordance with the decision of the
board.

JA] 111.7 Court review. Any person, whether or not a previ-
ous party of the appeal, shall have the right to apply to the
appropriate court for a writ of certiorari to correct errors of
law. Application for review shall be made in the manner and
time required by law following the filing of the decision in
the office of the chief administrative officer.

[A] 111.8 Stays of enforcement. Appeals of notice and
orders (other than /mminent Danger notices) shall stay the
enforcement of the notice and order until the appeal is heard
by the appeals board.

SECTION 112
STOP WORK ORDER

[A] 112.1 Authority. Whenever the code official finds any
work regulated by this code being performed in a manner
contrary to the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or
unsafe manner, the code official is authorized to issue a stop
work order.

|A] 112.2 Issuance. A stop work order shall be in writing and
shall be given to the owner of the property, to the owner's
authorized agent, or to the person doing the work. Upon issu-
ance of a stop work order, the cited work shall immediately
cease. The stop work order shall state the reason for the order
and the conditions under which the cited work is authorized
to resume.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

[A] 112.3 Emergencies. Where an emergency exists, the
code official shall not be required to give a written notice
prior to stopping the work.

[A] 112.4 Failure to comply. Any person who shall continue
any work afler having becn served with a stop work order,
except such work as that person is directed to perform to
remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be liable to a
fine of not less than [AMOUNT] dollars or more than JAMOUNT]
dollars.

7

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL ot o hammaikie sy Ayttt ey

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER



8 2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®
) Copyright ©2017 [ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 3018 3:58:2¢ PM Ppursuant to License Agreement with 1ICC. No Further reproduction or
| N T E R NAT } D NA |_ C D E CO U N C | L dletribution authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REFRODUCTION OR DISTRIDUTION 15 A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



-

CHAPTER 2
DEFINITIONS

User note:

About this chapter: Codes, by their very nature, are technical documents. Every word, term and punctuation mark can add lo or change the
maaning of a technical requirement. It is necessary lo maintain & consensus on the specific meaning of each lerm contained in the code
Chapter 2 performs this funciion by stating clearly what specific terms mean for the purpose of the code.

SECTION 201
GENERAL

201.1 Scope. Unless otherwise expressly stated, the follow-
ing terms shall, for the purposes of this code, have the mean-
ings shown in this chapter.

201.2 Interchangeability, Words stated in the present tense
include the future; words stated in the masculine gender
include the feminine and neuter; the singular number jncludes
the plural and the plural, the singular.

201.3 Terms defined in other codes. Where terms are not
defined in this code and arc defined in the International
Building Code, International Existing Building Code, Inter-
national Fire Code, International Fuel Gas Code, Interna-
tional Mechanical Code, International Plumbing Code,
International Residential Code, International Zoning Code or
NFPA 70, such terms shall have the meanings ascribed to
them as stated in those codes.

201.4 Terms not defined. Where terms are not defined
through the methods authorized by this section, such terms
shall have ordinarily accepted meanings such as the context
implies,

201.5 Paris. Whenever the words “dwelling unit,” “dwell-
ing,” “premises,” “building,” “rooming house,” “rooming
unit,” “housekeeping unit” or “story™ are stated in this code,
they shall be construed as though they were followed by the
words “or any part thereof.”

SECTION 202

GENERAL DEFINITIONS
ANCHORED. Secured in a manner that provides positive
connection.
|A] APPROVED. Acceptable to the code official.
BASEMENT. That portion of a building that is partly or
completely below grade.
BATHROOM. A room containing plumbing fixtures includ-
ing a bathtub or shower.
BEDROOM. Any room or space used or intended to be used
for sleeping purposes in cither a dweltling or sleeping unit.

|A] CODE OFFICIAL. The official who is charged with the
administration and enforcement of this code, or any duly
authorized representative.

CONDEMN. To adjudge unfit for occupancy.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

COST OF SUCH DEMOLITION OR EMERGENCY
REPAIRS, The costs shall include the actual costs of the
demolition or repair of the structure less reverues obtained if
salvage was conducted priar to demolition or repair. Costs
shall include, but not be limited to, expenses incurred or
necessitated related to demolition or emergency repairs, such
as asbestos survey and abatement if necessary; costs of
inspectors, testing agencies or expeits retained relative to the
demolition or emergency repairs; costs of testing; surveys for
other materials that are controlled or regulated from being
dumped in a landfill; title searches; mailing(s); postings;
recording; and attorney fees expended for recovering of the
cost of emergency repairs or to obtain or enforce an order of
demolition made by a code official, the governing body or
board of appeals.

DETACHED. When a structural element is physically dis-
connected from another and that connection is necessary to
provide a positive connection.

DETERIORATION. To weaken, disintegrate, cotrode, rust
or decay and lose effectiveness.

[BG] DWELLING UNIT. A single unit providing complete,
independent living facilities for onc or more persons, includ-
ing permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking
and sanitation,

[Z] EASEMENT. That portion of land or property reserved
for present or future use by a person or agency other than the
legal fee owner(s) of the property. The easement shall be per-
mitted to be for use under, on or above said lo* or lots.

EQUIPMENT SUPPORT. Those structural members or
assemblies of members or manufactured elements, including
braces, frames, lugs, snuggers, hangers or saddles, that trans-
mit gravity load, lateral load and operating load between the
equipment and the structure,

EXTERIOR PROPERTY. The open space on the premises
and on adjoining property under the control of owners or
operators of such premises.

GARBAGE. The animal or vegetable waste resulting from
the handling, preparation, cooking and consumption of food.

[BE] GUARD. A building component or a system of build-
ing components located at or near the open sides of elevated
walking surfaces that minimizes the possibility of a fall from
the walking surface to a lower level.

{BG] HABITABLE SPACE, Space in a structure for living,
sleeping, eating or cooking. Bathrooms, toilet rooms, closels,

|NTERNATI U NAI_ EODE COUNCIL Copyright ® 2017 1CC. ALL RIGUTS RESERVED, Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 1018 158:2¢ PM pursuant to License Agreement with ICC. No further reproduction or

distribution authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION 15 A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



DEFINITIONS

halls, storage or utility spaces, and similar areas are not con-
sidered habitable spaces.

HISTORIC BUILDING. Any building or structure that is
one or more of the following:

1. Listed or certified as eligible for listing, by the State
Historic Preservation Officer or the Keeper of the
National Register of Historic Places, in the National
Register of Historic Places.

2, Designated as historic under an applicable state or local
law.

3. Certified as a contributing resource within a National
Register or state or locally designated historic district.

HOUSEKEEPING UNIT. A room or group of rooms form-
ing a single habitable space equipped and inlended to be used
for living, sleeping, cooking and eating that does not contain,
within such a unit, a toilet, lavatory and bathtub or shower.

IMMINENT DANGER. A condition that could causec seri-
ous or life-threatening injury or death at any time.

INFESTATION. The presence, within or contiguous to, a
structure or premises of insects, rodents, vermin or other
pests.

INOPERABLE MOTOR VEHICLE. A vehicle that cannot
be driven upon the public streets for reason including but not
limited to being unlicensed, wrecked, abandoned, in a state of
disrepair, or incapable of being moved under its own power.

{A] LABELED. Equipment, materials or products to which
have been affixed a label, seal, symbol or other identifying
mark of a nationally recognized testing laboratory, approved
agency of other organization concerned with product evalua-
tion that maintains periodic inspection of the production of
the above-labeled items and whose labeling indicates either
that the equipment, material or product meets identified stan-
dards or has been tested and found suitable for a specified
purpose.

LET FOR OCCUPANCY or LET. To permit, provide or
offer possession or cccupancy of a dwelling, dwelling unit,
roonting unit, building, premise or structure by a person who
is or is not the legal owner of record thereof, pursuant to a
writlen or unwritten lease, agreement or license, or pursuant
to a recorded or unrecorded agreement of contract for the sale
of land.

NEGLECT. The lack of proper maintenance for a building
or siructure.

IA] OCCUPANCY. The purpose for which a building or
portion thereof is utilized or occupied.

OCCUPANT. Any individual living or sleeping in a build-
ing, or having possession of a space within a building.
OPENABLE AREA. That part of a window, skylight or
door which is available for unobstructed venrilation and
which opens directly to the outdoors.

OPERATOR. Any person who has charge, care or control of
a structure or premises that is let or offered for occupancy.

[A] OWNER. Any person, agent, operator, firm or corpora-
tion having legal or equitable interest in the property; or
recorded in the official records of the state, county or munici-
pality as holding title to the property; or otherwise having
control of the property, including the guardian of the estate of

10

any such person, and the executor or administrator of the
estate of such person if ordered to take possession of real
property by a court.

PERSON. An individual, corporation, partnership or any
other group acting as a unit.

PEST ELIMINATION. The control and elimination of
insects, rodents or other pests by eliminating their harborage
places; by removing or making inaccessible materials that
serve as their food or water; by other approved pest efimina-
tion methods.

[A] PREMISES. A lot, plot or parcel of land, easement or
public way, including any structures thereon.

[A] PUBLIC WAY. Any street, alley or other parcel of land
that; is open to the outside air; leads to a street; has been
deeded, dedicated or otherwise permanently appropriated to
the public for public use; and has a clear width and height of
not less than 10 feet (3048 mm).

ROOMING HOUSE. A building arranged or occupied for
lodging, with or without meals, for compensation and not
occupied as a one- or tlwo-family dwelling.

ROOMING UNIT. Any room or group of rooms forming a
single habitable unit occupied or intended to be occupied for
sleeping or living, but not for cooking purposes.

RUBBISH. Combustible and noncombustible waste materi-
als, except garbage; the term shall include the residue from
the burning of wood, coal, coke and other combus:ible mate-
rials, paper, rags, carlons, boxes, wood, excelsior, rubber,
leather, tree branches, yard trimmings, tin cans, metals, min-
eral matter, glass, crockery and dust and other similar materi-
als.

IBG] SLEEPING UNIT. A room or space in which people
sleep, which can also include permanent provisians for fiv-
ing, eating and either sanitation or kitchen facilities, but not
both. Such rooms and spaces that are also part of a dwelling
unit are not sleeping units.

STRICT LIABILITY OFFENSE. An offense in which the
prosecution in a legal proceeding is not required to prove
criminal intent as a part of its case. It is enough to prove that
the defendant either did an act which was prohibited, or failed
to do an act which the defendant was legally required to do.
[A] STRUCTURE. That which is built or constructed.
TENANT. A person, corporation, partnership or group,
whether or not the legat owner of record, occupying a build-
ing or portion thereof as a unit.

TOILET ROOM. A room containing a water closet or urinal
but not a bathtub or shower.

ULTIMATE DEFORMATION. The deformation at which
faiture occurs and that shall be deemed to occur if the sustain-
able load reduces to 80 percent or less of the maximum
strength.

[M] VENTILATION. The natural or mechanical process of
supplying conditioned or unconditioned air to, or removing
such air from, any space.

WORKMANLIKE. Executed in a skilled manner; e.g., gen-
erally plumb, level, square, in line, undamaged and without
maiTing adjacent work.

[Z] YARD. An open space on the same lot with a structure.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANGCE CODE®

Copyright © 2017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar % 2008 3:58:21 PM Pustuant to Licenss Agreement with ICC. No further reproducden or
distribution authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REFRODRICTION OR DASTRIBLTTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL



CHAPTER 3
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

User note:

About this chapter: Chapter 3 is broad in scape and includes a variety of requirements for the maintenance of exterior properly areas, as
well as the interior and exterior elements of the structure, that are intended to maintain & minimum level of safely and sanitalion for both the
general public and the occupants of a struclure, and to maintain a buitding's structural end waather-resisiance performance. Specifically,
Chapter 3 contains criteria for the maintenance of building componenis; vacant struciures and land; the safely, sanitation and appearance of
the Interior and exterior of structures and ail exterior properly areas; accessory structures; extermination of insects and rodents; access barmi-
ers to swimming pools, spas and hot tubs; vehicle slorege and owner/occupant responsibilities.

SECTION 301
GENERAL

301.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the
minimum conditions and the responsibilities of persons for
maintenance of structures, equipment and exterior property.

301.2 Responsibility. The owner of the premises shall main-
tain the structures and exterior property in compliance with
these requirements, except as otherwise provided for in this
code. A person shall not occupy as owner-accupant or permit
another person lo occupy premises that are not in a sanitary
and safe condition and that do not comply with the require-
ments of this chapter. Qccupants of a dwelling unit, rooming
unit or housekeeping unit are responsible for keeping in a
clean, sanitary and safe condition that part of the dwelling
unii, rooming unit, housekeeping unit or premises they
occupy and control.

301.3 Vacant structures and land. Vacant structures and
premises thereof or vacant land shall be maintained in a
clean, safe, sccure and sanitary condition as provided herein
so as not to cause a blighting problem or adversely affect the
public health or safety.

SECTION 302
EXTERIOR PROPERTY AREAS

302.} Sanitation. Exterior property and premises shall be
maintained in a clean, safe and sanitary condition. The occu-
pant shall keep that part of the exterior property that such
occupant occupies or controls in a clean and sanitary condi-
tion.

302.2 Grading and drainage. Premises shall be graded and
maintained to prevent the erosion of soil and to prevent the
accumulation of stagnant water thereon, or within any struc-
ture located thereon.

Exception: Approved retention areas and reservoirs.

302.3 Sidewalks and driveways. Sidewalks, walkways,
stairs, driveways, parking spaces and similar areas shali be
kept in a proper state of repair, and maintained free from haz-
ardous conditions.

302.4 Weeds. Premises and exterior property shail be main-
tained free from weeds or plant growth in excess of [JURIS-

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

DICTION TO INSERT HEIGHT IN INCHES). Noxious weeds shall
be prohibited. Weeds shall be defined as all grasses, annual
plants and vegetation, other than trees or shrubs provided;
however, this term shall not include cultivated flowers and
gardens.

Upcn failure of the owner or agent having charge of a
property to cut and destroy weeds after service of a notice of
violation, they shall be subject to prosecution in accordance
with Section 106.3 and as prescribed by the authority having
Jurisdiction. Upon failure to comply with the notice of viola-
tion, any duly authorized employee of the jurisdiction or con-
tractor hired by the jurisdiction shall be authorized to enter
upon the property in violation and cut and destroy the weeds
growing thereon, and the costs of such removal shall be paid
by the owner or agent responsible for the property.

302.5 Rodent harborage. Structures and exterior property
shall be kept free from rodent harborage and infestation.
Where rodents are found, they shall be promptly extermi-
nated by approved processes that will not be injurious to
human health. After pest elimination, proper precautions
shall be taken to eliminate rodent harborage and prevent rein-
festation.

302.6 Exhaust vents. Pipes, ducts, conductors, fans or blow-
ers shall not discharge gases, stearn, vapor, hot air, grease,
smoke, odors or other gaseous or particulate wastes directly
on abutting or adjacent public or private property or that of
another tenant.

3027 Accessory structures. Accessory struclures, including
detached garages, fences and walls, shall be maintained
structurally sound and in good repair.

302.8 Motor vehicles. Except as provided for in other regula-
tions, inoperative or uniicensed motor vehicles shall not be
parked, kept or stored on any premises, and vehicles shall not
at any time be in a state of major disassembly, disrepair, or in
the process of being stripped or dismantled. Painting of vehi-
cles is prohibited unless conducted inside an approved spray
booth.

Exception: A vehicle of any type is permitted to undergo
major overhaul, including body work, provided that such
work is performed inside a structure or similarly enclosed
area designed and approved for such purposes.

11

| N T E R N A-l- | U NAI_ C 0 D E COU N C I !_‘ Copyright © 2017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar #, 2018 5:58:20 PM pussuani 1o License Agreement with ICC. Ne further reproduction or

distributon authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION 1§ A YIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGHREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

302.9 Defacement of property. A person shall not willfully
or wantonly damage, mutitate or deface any exterior surface
of any structure or building on any private or public property
by placing thereon any marking, carving or graffiti.

It shall be the responsibility of the owner to restore said
surface to an approved state of maintenance and repair.

SECTION 303
SWIMMING POOLS, SPAS AND HOT TUBS

303.1 Swimming pools. Swimming pools shall be main-
tained in a clean and sanitary condition, and in good repair.

303.2 Enclosures. Private swimming pools, hot tubs and
spas, containing water more than 24 inches (610 mm) in
depth shall be completely surrounded by a fence or barrier
not less than 48 inches (1219 mm) in height above the fin-
ished ground level measured on the side of the barrier away
from the pool. Gates and doors in such barriers shall be self-
closing and self-latching. Where the self-latching device is
less than 54 inches (1372 mm) above the bottom of the gate,
the release mechanism shatl be located on the pool side of the
gate. Self-closing and self-latching gates shall be maintained
such that the gate will positively close and latch when
released from an open position of 6 inches (152 mm) from the
gatepost. An existing pool enclosure shall not be removed,
replaced or changed in a manner that reduces its effectiveness
as 3 safety barrier.

Exception: Spas or hot tubs with a safety cover that com-
plies with ASTM F1346 shall be exempt from the provi-
sions of this section.

SECTION 304
EXTERIOR STRUCTURE

304.1 General, The exterior of a structure shall be main-
tained in good repair, structurally sound and sanitary 50 as not
1o pose a threat to the public health, safety or welfare.

304.1.1 Unsafe conditions. The following conditions
shall be determined as unsafe and shall be repaired or
replaced to comply with the International Building Code
or the International Existing Building Code as required for
existing buildings:
1. The nominal strength of any structural member is
exceeded by nominal loads, the load effects or the
required strength.

2. The anchorage of the floor or roof 10 walls or col-
umns, and of walls and columns to foundations is
not capable of resisting all nominal loads or load
effects.

3. Structures or components thereof that have
reached their limit state.

4. Siding and masonry joints including joints
between the building envelope and the perimeter
of windows, doors and skylights are not main-
tained, weather resistant or water tight.

12

5. Structural members that have evidence of dererio-
ration or that are not capable of safely supporting
all nominal loads and load effects.

6. Foundation systems that are not firmly supported
by footings, are not plumb and free from open
cracks and breaks, are not properly anchored or
are not capable of supporting all nominal loads
and resisting all load effects.

7. Exterior walls that are not anchored to supporting
and supported elements or are not plumb and free
of holes, cracks or breaks and loose or rotting
malerials, arc not properly anchored or are not
capable of supporting all nominal loads and resist-
ing all load effects.

8. Roofing or roofing components that have defects
that admit rain, roof surfaces with inadequate
drainage, or any portion of the roof framing that is
not in good repair with signs of deterioration,
fatigue or without proper anchorage and incapable
of supporting all nominal loads and resisting all
load effects.

9. Flooring and flooring components with defects
that affect serviceability or flooring components
that show signs of deterioration or fatigue, are not
properly anchored or are incapable of supporting
all nominal [oads and resisting all load effects.

10. Veneer, cornices, belt courses, corbels, trim, wall
facings and similar decorative features not prop-
erly anchored or that are anchored with connec-
tions not capable of supporting all nominal loads
and resisting all load effects.

1. Overhang extensions or projections including, but
not limited to, trash chutes, canopies, marquees,
signs, awnings, fire escapes, standpipes and
exhaust ducts not properly anchored or that are
anchored with connections not capable of support-
ing all nominal loads and resisting all load effects.

12. Exterior stairs, decks, porches, balconies and all
similar appurtenances attached thereto, including
guards and handrails, are not structurally sound,
not properly anchored or that are anchored with
conneclions not capable of supporting ait nominal
loads and resisting all load effects.

13. Chimneys, cooling towers, smokestacks and simi-
lar appurtenances nol structurally sound or not
properly anchored, or that are anchored with con-
nections not capable of supporting all nominal
loads and resisting all load effects.

Exceptions:

1. Where substantiated otherwise by an agpproved
method.
2. Demolition of unsafe conditions shall be permit-
ted where approved by the code official.
304.2 Protective treatment. Exterior surfaces, including but
not limited to, doors, door and window frames, cornices,
porches, trim, balconies, decks and fences, shall be main-
teined in good condition. Exterior woed surfaces, other than

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright © 3017 1GC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar #, 2018 3:98:24 PM pursant to License Agreement with [CC. Ne furiher reproduction ar
distribution suthorlzed. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND $UBJECT TQ CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL




decay-resistant woods, shall be protected from the elements
and decay by painting or other protective covering or treat-
ment. Pecling, flaking and chipped paint shall be eliminated
and surfaces repainted. Siding and masonry joints, as well as
those between the building envelope and the perimeter of
windows, doors and skylights, shall be maintained weather
resistant and water tight. Metal surfaces subject to rust or cor-
rosion shall be coated to inhibit such rust and corrosion, and
surfaces with rust or corrosion shall be stabilized and coated
to inhibit future rust and corrosion. Oxidation stains shall be
removed from exterior surfaces. Surfaces designed for stabili-
zation by oxidation are exempt from this requirement,

IF] 304.3 Premises identification. Buildings shall have
approved address numbers placed in a position to be plainly
legible and visible from the street or road fronting the prop-
erty. These numbers shall contrast with their background.
Address numbers shall be Arabic numerals or alphabet let-
ters. Numbers shall be not less than 4 inches (102 mm) in
height with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inch (12.7 mm).

304.4 Strectural members. Structural members shall be
maintained free from deferioration, and shall be capable of
safely supporting the imposed dead and live loads.

304.5 Foundation walls. Foundation walls shall be main-
tained plumb and free from open cracks and breaks and shall
be kept in such condition so as to prevent the entry of rodents
and other pests.

304.6 Exterior walls. Exterior walls shall be free from holes,
breaks, and loose or rotting materials; and maintained weath-
erproof and properly surface coated where required to pre-
vent deferioration.

304.7 Roofs and drainage. The roof and flashing shall be
sound, tight and not have defects that admit rain. Roof drain-
age shall be adequate to prevent dampness or deferioration in
the walls or interior portion of the structure. Roof drains, gut-
ters and downspouts shall be maintained in good repair and
free from obstructions. Roof water shall not be discharged in
a manner that creates a public nuisance.

304.8 Decorative features, Cornices, belt courses, corbels,
terra cotta trim, wall facings and similar decorative features
shall be maintained in good repair with proper anchorage and
in a safe condition.

304.9 Overhang extensions. Overhang extensions including,
but not limited to, canopies, marquecs, signs, metal awnings,
fire escapes, standpipes and exhaust ducts shall be maintained
in good repair and be properly anchored so as to be kept in a
sound condition. Where required, all exposed surfaces of
metal or wood shall be protected from the elements and
ageinst decay or rust by periodic application of weather-coat-
ing materials, such as paint or similar surface treatment.

304.10 Stairways, decks, porches and balconies. Every
exterior stairway, deck, porch and balcony, and all appurte-
nances attached thereto, shall be maintained structurally
sound, in good repair, with proper anchorage and capable of
supporting the imposed loads.

304.11 Chimneys and towers. Chimneys, cooling towers,
smake stacks, and similar appurtenances shall be maintained
structuraily safe and sound, and in good repair. Exposed sur-

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

faces of metal or wood shall be protected from the elements
and against decay or rust by periodic application of weather-
coating materjals, such as paint or similar surface treatment.

304.12 Handrails and guards. Every handrail and guard
shait be tirmly fastencd and capable of supporting normally
imposed loads and shall be maintained in good condition,

304,13 Window, skylight and door frames. Every window,
skylight, door and frame shall be kept in sound condition,
good repair and weather tight.

304.13.1 Glazing. Glazing materials shall be maintained
free from cracks and holes.

304.13.2 Openable windows, Every window, other than a
fixed window, shall be easily openable and capable of
being held in position by window hardware.

304.14 Insect screens. During the period from [DATE] to
[DATE], every door, window and other outside opening
required for ventilation of habitable rooms, food preparation
areas, food service areas or any areas where products to be
included or utilized in food for human consumption are pro-
cessed, manufactured, packaged or stored shall be supplied
with approved tightly fitting screens of minimum 16 mesh
per inch (16 mesh per 25 mm), and every screen door used for
insect control shall have a self-closing device in good work-
ing condition.

Exception: Screens shall not be required where other
dpproved means, such as air curtains or insect repellent
fans, are employed.

304.15 Doors. Exterior doors, door assemblies, operator sys-
tems if provided, and hardware shall be mairtained in good
condition. Locks at all entrances to dwelling units and sleep-
ing units shall tightly secure the door. Locks on means of
egress doors shall be in accordance with Section 702.3.

304.16 Basement hatchways. Every basement hatchway
shall be maintained to prevent the entrance of rodents, rain
and surface drainage water,

304.17 Guards for basement windows, Every basement
window that is openable shall be supplied with rodent shields,
storm windows or other approved protection against the entry
of rodents,

304.18 Building security. Doors, windows or hatchways for
dwelling units, room units or housekeeping units shall be pro-
vided with devices designed to provide security for the oceu-
pants and property within.

304.18.1 Doors. Doors providing access to a dwelling
unil, rooming unit or housekeeping unit that is rented,
leased or let shall be equipped with a deadbolt lock
designed to be readily openable from the side from which
egress is to be made without the need for keys, special
knowledge or effort and shall have a minimum lock throw
of | inch (25 mm). Such deadbolt lacks shall be installed
according to the manufacturer’s specifications and main-
tained in good working order. For the purpose of this sec-
tion, a stiding bolt shall not be considered an acceptable
deadboit lock.

304.18.2 Windows. Operable windows located in whole
or in part within 6 feet (1828 mm) above ground level or a

13

INTERNAT.ONAL CODE COUNCIL [RpssAvibyomrmeeio st s Aty o iamdevsp oot o

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.




GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

walking surface below that provide access to a dwelling
unit, rooming unit or housekeeping unit that is rented,
leased or let shall be equipped with a window sash locking
device.

304.18.3 Basement hatchways. Basement hatchways that
provide access to a dwelling unit, rooming unit or house-
keeping unit that is rented, leased or let shall be equipped
with devices that secure the units from unauthorized entry.

304.19 Gates. Exterior gates, gate assemblies, operator sys-
tems if provided, and hardware shall be maintained in good
condition. Latches at all entrances shall tightly securc the
gates.

SECTION 305
INTERIOR STRUCTURE

305.1 General. The interior of a structure and equipment
thercin shall be maintained in good repair, structurally sound
and in a sanitary condition. Occupanis shall keep that part of
the structure that they occupy or control in a clean and sani-
tary condition. Every owner of a structure containing a rooum-
ing house, housekeeping units, a hotel, a dormitory, two or
more dwelling units or two or more nonresidential occupan-
cies, shall maintain, in a clean and sanitary condition, the
shared or public areas of the structure and exterior property.

305.1.1 Unsafe conditions., The following conditions
shall be determined as unsafe and shall be repaired or
replaced to comply with the International Building Code
or the International Existing Building Code as required for
existing buildings:
1. The nominal strength of any structural member is
exceeded by nominal loads, the load effects or the
required strength,

2. The anchorage of the floor or roof to walls or col-
umns, and of walls and columns to foundations is
not capable of resisting all nominal loads or load
effects.

3. Structures or components thereof that have reached
their limit state,

4. Structural members are incapable of supporting
nominal loads and load effects.

5. Stairs, landings, balconies and all similar walking
surfaces, including guards and handrails, are not
structurally sound, not propetly anchored or are
anchored with connections not capable of support-
ing all nominal loads and resisting all load effects.

6. Foundation systems that are not firmly supported by
footings are not plumb and free from open cracks
and breaks, are not propetly anchored or are not
capable of supporting all nominal loads and resisting
all load effects.

Exceptions:

I. Where substantiated otherwise by an approved
method.

2. Demolition of unsafe conditions shall be permit-
ted where approved by the code official.

14

305.2 Structural members. Structural members shall be
maintained structurally sound, and be capable of supporting
the imposed loads,

305.3 Interior surfaces. Interior surfaces, including win-
dows and doors, shall be maintained in good, clean and sani-
tary condition. Peeling, chipping, flaking or abraded paint
shall be repaired, removed or covered. Cracked or loose plas-
ter, decayed wood and other defective surface conditions
shall be corrected.

305.4 Stairs and walking surfaces. Every stair, ramp, land-
ing, balcony, porch, deck or other walking surface shall be
maintained in sound condition and good repair.

305.5 Handrails and guards. Every handrail and guard shall
be firmly fastened and capable of supporting normally
imposed loads and shall be maintained in good condition.

305.6 Interior doors. Every interior door shall fit reasonably
well within its frame and shall be capable of being opened
and closed by being properly and securely attached to jambs,
headers or tracks as intended by the manufacturer of the
attachment hardware.

SECTION 306
COMPONENT SERVICEABILITY

306.1 General. The components of a structure and equipment
therein shall be maintained in good repair, structurally sound
and in a sanitary condition.

306.1.1 Unsafe conditions. Where any of the following
conditions cause the component or system to be beyond its
limit state, the component or system shall be determined
as unsafe and shall be repaired or replaced to comply with
the /nternational Building Code or the International Exist-
ing Building Code as required for existing buildings:

1. Soils that have been subjected to any of the follow-

ing conditions:
1.1, Collapse of footing or foundation system.

1.2. Damage to footing, foundation, concrete or
other structural element due to soil expan-
sion.

1.3. Adverse effects to the design strength of
footing, foundation, concrete or other struc-
tural element due to a chemical reaction
from the soil.

1.4. Inadequate soil as determined by a geotech-
nical investigation.

1.5. Where the allowable bearing capacity of the
soil is in doubt.

1.6. Adverse effects to the footing, foundation,
concrete or other structural element due to
the ground water table.

2. Concrete that has been subjected to any of the fol-
lowing conditions:

2.1. Deterioration.
2.2. Ultimate deformation.
2.3. Fractures,

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright 02017 ICC, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 1018 3:38:11 PM pursuant to License Agreement with 1ICC. Na further reproduction or
distribution authoiized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUB|ECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL




2.4. Fissures.

2.5, Spalling.

2.6. Exposed reinforcement,

2.7. Detached, dislodged or failing connections.

3. Aluminum that has been subjected to any of the fol-
lowing conditions:

3.1, Deterioration.

3.2. Corrosion.

3.3. Elastic deformation.

3.4. Ultimate deformation.

3.5. Stress or strain cracks.

3.6. loint fatipue.

3.7. Detached, dislodged or failing connections.

4. Masonry that has been subjected to any of the fol-
lowing conditions:

4.1, Deterioration.

4.2. Ultimate deformation.

4.3. Fractures in masonry or mortar joints.

4.4, Fissures in masonry or mortar joints.

4.5. Spalling.

4.6. Exposed reinforcement,

4.7. Detached, dislodged or failing connections.

5. Steel that has been subjected to any of the following
conditions:

5.1. Deterioration.

5.2. Elastic deformation.

5.3. Ultimate deformation.

5.4. Metal fatigue.

3.5. Detached, dislodged or failing connections.
6. Wood that has been subjected to any of the follow-

ing conditions:
6.1. Ultimate deformation.
6.2, Deterioration.

6.3. Damage from insects, rodents and other
vermin.

6.4. Fire damage beyond charring.

6.5. Significant splits and checks.

6.6. Horizontal shear cracks.

6.7, Vertical shear cracks.

6.8. Inadequate support.

6.9. Detached, dislodged or failing connections.
6.10. Excessive cutting and notching,

Exceptions:
1. Where substantiated otherwise by an approved
method.

2. Demolition of unsafe conditions shall be per-
mitted where approved by the code official.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

SECTION 307
HANDRAILS AND GUARDRAILS

307.1 General. Every exterior and interior flight of stairs
having more than four risers shall have a handrail on one side
of the stair and every open portion of a stair, landing, bal-
cony, porch, deck, ramp or other walking surface that is more
than 30 inches (762 mm) above the floor or grade below shall
have guards. Handrails shall be not less than 30 inches (762
mm) in height or more than 42 inches (1067 mm) in height
measured vertically above the nosing of the tread or above
the finished floor of the landing or walking surfaces. Guards
shall be not less than 30 inches (762 mm) in height above the
floor of the landing, balcony, porch, deck, or ramp or other
walking surface.

Exception: Guards shalt not be required where exempted
by the adopted building code.

SECTION 308
RUBBISH AND GARBAGE

308.t Accumulation of rubbish or garbage, Exterior prop-
erty and premises, and the interior of every structure, shall be
free from any accumulation of rubbish or garbage.

308.2 Disposal of rubbish, Every occupant of a structure
shall dispose of all rubbish in a clean and sanitary manner by
placing such rubbish in approved containers.

308.2.1 Rubbish storage facilities. The owner of every
occupied premises shall supply approved covered contain-
ers for rubbish, and the owner of the premises shall be
responsible for the removal of rubbish.

308.2.2 Refrigerators. Refrigerators and similar equip-
ment not in operation shall not be discarded, abandoned or
stored on premises withoul first removing the doors.

308.3 Disposal of garbage. Every occupant of a structure
shall dispose of garbage in a clean and sanitary manner by
placing such garbage in an gpproved garbage disposal facility
or approved garbage containers.

308.3.1 Garbage facilities. The owner of every dwelling
shail supply one of the following: an approved mechanical
food waste grinder in each dwelling unit; an approved
incinerator unit in the structure available 1o the occupants
in each dwelling unit; or an approved lcakproof, covered,
outside garbage container.

308.3.2 Containers. The operaror of every establishment
producing garbage shall provide, and at all times causc to
be utilized, approved lcakproof containers provided with
close-fitting covers for the storage of such materials until
removed from the premises for disposal.

SECTION 309
PEST ELIMINATION

309.1 Infestation. Structures shali be kept free from insect
and rodent infestation. Structures in which insects or rodents
are found shall be promptly exterminated by approved pro-
cesses that will not be injurious to human health. After pest

18

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL Jbstiabsistaripuivitsimeinshaemtriitiisiaisnisprseptiidsmmiirasor-usiphoitiien

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.




GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

elimination, proper precautions shall be taken to prevent rein-
festation.

309.2 Owner. The owner of any structure shall be responsi-
ble for pest elimination within the structure prior to renting or
leasing the structure.

309.3 Single occupant. The occupant of a one-family dweil-
ing or of a single-fenant nonresidential structure shall be
responsible for pest elimination on the premises.

309.4 Multiple occupancy. The owner of a structure contain-
ing two or more dwelling units, a mulliple occupancy, a
rooming house or a nonresidential structure shall be responsi-
ble for pest elimination in the public or shared areas of the
structure and exterior property. If infestation is caused by
failure of an occupant to prevent such infestation in the area
occupied, the occupant and owner shall be responsible for
pest elimination.

309.5 Occupan{, The accupant of any structure shall be
responsible for the continued rodent and pest-free condition
of the structure.

Exception: Where the infestations are caused by defects
in the structure, the owner shall be responsible for pest
climination.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

16
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL Jbmstbionimriyrentiolsimesiohrmmmuos syt dcomiosydp-ismispcsm sonl

AGREEMENT. AND SUSJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



CHAPTER 4
LIGHT, VENTILATION AND OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS

User note:

About this chapter: Chapler 4 sets forth requirements fo establish the minimum environment for occupiable and habilable buildings by

mum ceiling height and restrictions to prevent overcrowding.

establishing the minimum criteria for light and ventilation and identifying occupancy limitations including minimum room width and area, mini-

SECTION 401
GENERAL

40L.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the
minimum conditions and standards for light, ventilation and
space for occupying a structure.

401.2 Responsibility. The owner of the structure shall pro-
vide and maintain light, ventilation and space conditions in
compliance with these requirements. A person shall not
occupy as owner-occipant, or permit another person o
occupy, any premises that do not comply with the require-
ments of this chapter.

401.3 Alternative devices, In lieu of the means for natural
light and vemtilation herein prescribed, artificial light or
mechanical ventilation complying with the International
Building Code shall be permitted.

SECTION 402
LIGHT

402.1 Habitable spaces. Every habitable space shall have
not less than one window of approved size facing directly to
the outdoors or to a court. The minimum total glazed area for
every habitable space shall be 8 percent of the floor area of
such room. Wherever walls or other portions of a structure
face a window of any room and such obstructions are located
less than 3 feet (914 mm) from the window and extend to a
level above that of the ceiling of the room, such window shall
not be deemed to face directly to the outdoors nor to a court
and shall not be included as contributing to the required mini-
munt total window area for the room.

Exception: Where natural light for rooms or spaces with-
out exterior glazing areas is provided through an adjoining
room, the unobstructed opening to the adjoining room
shall be not less than 8 percent of the floor area of the inte-
rior room or space, or not less than 25 square feet (2.33
m?), whichever is greater. The exterior glazing area shall
be based on the total floor area being served.

402.2 Common halls and stairways. Every common hall
and stairway in residential occupancies, other than in one-
and two-family dwellings, shall be lighted at all times with
not less than a 60-watt standard incandescent light bulb for
each 200 square feet (19 m?) of floor area cr equivalent illu-
mination, provided that the spacing between lights shall not
be greater than 30 feet (9144 mm). In other than residential
occupancics, interior and exterior means of egress, stairways

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

shall be illuminated at all times the building space served by
the means of egress is occupied with not less than 1 footcan-
dle (11 lux) at floors, landings and treads.

402.3 Other spaces. Other spaces shali be provided with nat-
ural or artificial light sufficient to permit the maintenance of
sanitary conditions, and the safe occupancy of the space and
utilization of'the appliances, equipment and fixtures.

SECTION 403
VENTILATION

403.1 Habitable spaces. Every habitable space shall have
not less than one openable window. The total openable area
of the window in every room shall be equal to not less than 45
percent of the minimum glazed area required in Section
402.1.

Exception: Where rooms and spaces without openings to
the outdoors are ventilated through an adjoining room, the
unobstructed opening to the adjoining room shall be not
less than 8 percent of the floor area of the interior room or
space, but not less than 25 square feet (2.33 m*). The venii-
lation openings to the outdoors shall be based on a total
floor area being ventilated.

403.2 Bathrooms and toilet rooms, Every bathroom and foi-
fet room shall comply with the vensilation requirements for
habitable spaces as required by Section 403.1, except that a
window shall not be required in such spaces equipped with a
mechanical ventilation system. Air exhausted by a mechani-
cal venfifation system from a bathroom or toilet room shall
discharge to the outdoors and shall not be recirculated.

403.3 Cooking facilities. Unless approved through the certif-
icate of occupancy, cooking shall not be permitted in any
rooming uni! or dormitory unit, and a cooking facility or
appliance shall not be permitted to be present in the rooming
unit or dormitory unit.
Exceptions:
1. Where specifically approved in writing by the code
official.
2, Devices such as coffee pots and microwave ovens
shall not be considered cooking appliances.
403.4 Process ventilation. Where injurious, toxic, irritating
or noxious fumes, gases, dusts or mists are generated, a local
exhaust vensilation system shail be provided to remove the
contaminating agent at the source. Air shall be exhausted to
the exterior and not be recirculated to any space.

17

INTERNATIUNAL CODE COUNCIL [Rpniaipres oot asnmstiis s s ettt vt

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT ‘1O CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER,




LIGHT, VENTILATION AND OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS

403.5 Clothes dryer exhaust. Clothes dryer exhaust systems
shall be independent of all other systems and shall be
exhausted outside the structure in accordance with the manu-
facturer’s instructions.

Exception: Listed and labeled condensing (ductless)
clothes dryers.

SECTION 404
OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS

404.1 Privacy. Dwelling units, hotel units, housekeeping
unils, rooming units and dormitory units shall be arranged to
provide privacy and be separate from other adjoining spaces.

404.2 Minimum room widths. A habitable room, other than
a kitchen, shall be not less than 7 feet (2134 mm) in any plan
dimension. Kitchens shall have a minimum clear passageway
of 3 feet (914 mm) between counterfronts and appliances or
counterfronts and walls.

404.3 Minimum ceiling heights. Habitable spaces, hall-
ways, corridors, laundry areas, bathrooms, toilet rooms and
habitable basement areas shall have a minimum clear ceiling
hetght of 7 feet (2134 mm).

Exceptions:

1. In one- and two-family dwellings, beams or girders
spaced not less than 4 feet (1219 mm) on center and
projecting not greater than 6 inches (152 mm) betow
the required ceiling height.

2. Basement rooms in one- and two-family dwellings
occupied exclusively for laundry, study or recreation
purposes, having a minimum ceiling height of & feet
8 inches (2033 mm) with a minimum clear height of
6 feet 4 inches (1932 mm) under beams, girders,
ducts and similar obstructions.

3. Rooms occupied exclusively for sleeping, study or
similar purposcs and having a sloped ceiling over all
or part of the room, with a minimum clear ceiling
height of 7 feet (2134 mm) over not less than one-
third of the required minimum floor area. In calcu-
lating the floor area of such rooms, only those por-
tions of the floor area with a minimum clear ceiling
height of 5 feet (1524 mm) shali be included.

404.4 Bedroom and living room requirements. Every bed-
room and living room shall comply with the requirements of
Sections 404.4.1 through 404.4.5.

404.4.1 Room area. Every living room shall contain not
less than 120 square feet (11.2 m?) and every bedroom
shall contain not less than 70 square feet (6.5 m*) and
every bedrecom occupied by more than one person shall
contain not less than 50 square feet (4.6 m?) of floor area
for each occupant thereof. ’

404.4.2 Access from bedrooms, Bedrooms shall not con-
stitute the only means of access o other bedrooms or hab-
itable spaces and shall not serve as the only means of
egress from other habitable spaces.

Exception: Units that contain fewer than two bed-
raoms.

18

404.4.3 Water closet accessibility. Every bedroom shall
have access 1o not less than one water closet and one lava-
tory without passing through another bedroom. Every bed-
room in a dwelling unit shall have access to not less than
one water closet and lavatory located in the same story as
the bedroom or an adjacent story.

404.4.4 Prohibited occupancy. Kitchens and nonhabit-
able spaces shall not be used for sleeping purposes.

404.4.5 Other requirements. Bedrooms shall comply
with the applicable provisions of this code including, but
not limited to, the light, ventilation, room area, ceiling
height and room width requirements of this chapter; the
plumbing facilities and water-heating facilities require-
ments of Chapter 5; the heating facilities and electrical
receptacle requirements of Chapter 6; and the smoke
detector and emergency escape requirements of Chapter 7.

404.5 Overcrowding. Dwelling units shall not be occupied
by more occupanis than permitted by the minimum area
requirements of Table 404.5.

TABLE 404.5
MINIMUM AREA REQUIREMENTS

MINIMUM AREA IN SQUARE FEET |
SPACE '1_-2.;ccupams | 3-5 occupants ] 6 or more gccupants
Living room** 120 120 | 150
q];ning room™" No 80 : 100
requirement
Edrooms Shall comply with Section 404.4.1

For SI: | square foot = 0.0929 m?

a. See Scction 404.5.2 for combined living room/dining room spaces

b. See Section 404.5.1 for limitations on determining the minimum
occupancy area for sleeping purposes
404.5.1 Sleeping area. The minimum occupancy area
required by Table 404.5 shall not be included as a sleeping
area in determining the minimum occupancy area for
sleeping purposes. Sleeping areas shail comply with Sec-
tion 404 4,

404.5.2 Combined spaces. Combined living room and
dining room spaces shall comply with the requirements of
Table 404.5 if the total area is equal to that required for
separate rooms and if the space is located so as to function
as a combination living room/dining room.

404.6 Efficiency unit, Nothing in this section shall prohibit
an efficiency living unit from meeting the following require-
ments:

1. A unit occupied by not more than one occupant shall
have a minimum clear floor area of 120 square feet
(11.2 m*. A unit occupied by not more than two occu-
pants shall have a minimum clear floor area of 220
square feet (20.4 m?). A unit occupied by three occu-
panis shall have a minimum clear floor area of 320
square feet (29.7 m?). These required areas shall be
exclusive of the areas required by Items 2 an 3.

2. The unit shall be provided with a kitchen sink, cooking
appliance and refrigeration facilities, each having a
minimum clear working space of 30 inches (762 mm)

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright © 2017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mat 9, 1018 3:59:21 PM pursuant 1o License Agreement with ICC. Na further reproduction or
distribution suthorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REFRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION 15 A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL




LIGHT, VENTILATION AND OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS

in front. Light and ventilation conforming to this code
shall be provided.

3. The unit shall be provided with a separate bathroom
containing a water closet, lavatory and bathtub or
shower.

4. The maximum number of occupanis shall be three.

404.7 Food preparation. Spaces to be occupied for food
preparation purposes shall contain suitable space and equip-
ment to store, prepare and serve foods in a sanitary manner.
There shall be adequate facilities and services for the sani-
tary disposal of food wasles and refuse, including facilities
for temporary storage.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® 19

(NTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCI L Juitivmiianiripeeibiasentishmmanpbos pihsissieke eyttt it ot bk sedati

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT T3 CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.




20 2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

C 0 D E I L Copyright © 2012 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Acceased by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2018 3:58:21 PM pursuamt 1o License Agroement with ICC No further reproduction oc
| N TE R N A N A L CO U Nc distributlon suthorlzed. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION 15 A YIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMENAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER




CHAPTER 5
PLUMBING FACILITIES AND FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS

User note:

About this chapter: Chapter 5 establishes minimum sanilary and clean conditions in occupied buildings by containing requirements for the
inslaliation, maintenance and location of plumbing systems and facilifies, including the water supply system, water healing appliances, sew-
age disposal systems and related plumbing fixtures. Chapler 5 includes requirements for providing potable water to & building and the basic

fixtures to effactively ulilize and dispose of that water

SECTION 501
GENERAL

§01.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the
minimum plumbing systems, facilities and plumbing fixtures
to be provided.

501.2 Responsibility. The owner of the structure shali pro-
vide and maintain such plumbing facilities and plumbing fix-
tures in compliance with these requirements. A person shall
not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person to
occupy any structure or premises that does not comply with
the requirements of this chapter.

SECTION 502
REQUIRED FACILITIES

IP] 502.1 Dwelling units. Every awelling unit shall contain
its own bathtub or shower, lavatory, water closet and kitchen
sink that shall be maintained in a sanitary, safe working con-
dition. The lavatory shail be placed in the same room as the
water closet or located in close proximity to the door leading
directly into the room in which such water closet is located. A
kitchen sink shall not be used as a substitute for the required
lavatory.

[P] 502.2 Rooming houses. Not less than one water closet,
lavatory and bathtub or shower shall be supplied for each four
rooming unifs.

[P} 502.3 Hotels, Where private water closets, lavatories and
baths are not provided, one water closet, one lavatory and one
bathtub or shower having access from a public hallway shall
be provided for each 10 occupants.

[P] 502.4 Employees’ facilities, Not less than one water
closet, one lavatory and one drinking facility shall be avail-
able to employees.

[P] 502.4.1 Drinking facilities. Drinking facilities shall
be a drinking fountain, water cooler, bottled water cooler
or disposable cups next to a sink or water dispenser.
Drinking facilities shall not be located in foilet reoms or
bathrooms.
[P} 502.5 Public toilet facilities, Public toilet facilities shall
be maintained in a safe, sanitary and working condition in
accordance with the International Plumbing Code. Except for
periodic maintenance or cleaning, public access and use shall

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

be provided to the toilet facilities at all times during occu-
pancy of the premises.

SECTION 503
TOILET ROOMS

[P] 503.1 Privacy, Toilet rooms and bathrooms shall provide
privacy and shall not constitute the only passageway to a hall
or other space, or to the exterior. A door and interior locking
device shall be provided for all common or shared darhrooms
and foifet rooms in a multiple dwelling.

[P] 503.2 Location. Toilef rooms and bathrooms serving
hotel units, rooming units or dormitory units or housekeeping
units, shall have access by traversing not more than one flight
of stairs and shall have access from a commeon hall or pas-
sageway.

[P] 503.3 Location of employee toilet facilities. Toilet facil-
ities shall have access from within the employees’ working
area. The required toilet facilities shall be located not more
than one story above or below the employees’ working area
and the path of trave] to such facilities shall not exceed a dis-
tance of 500 feet (152 m). Employee facilities shall cither be
separate facilities or combined employee and public facilities.

Exeeption: Facilities that are required for employees in
storage structures or kiosks, which are located in adjacent
structures under the same ownership, lease or control,
shall not exceed a travel distance of 500 feet (152 m) from
the employees’ regular working area to the facilities.

[P] 503.4 Floor surface. In other than dwelling uniis, every
toilet room floor shall be maintained to be a smooth, hard,
nonabsorbent surface to permit such floor to be easily kept in
a clean and sanitary condition.

SECTION 504
PLUMBING SYSTEMS AND FIXTURES

[P] 504.1 General. Plumbing fixtures shall be properly
installed and maintained in working order, and shall be kept
free from obstructions, leaks and defects and be capable of
performing the function for which such plumbing fixtures are
designed. Plumbing fixtures shall be maintained in a safe,
sanitary and functional condition.

[P] 504.2 Fixture clearances. Plumbing fixtures shall have
adequate clearances for usage and cleaning,

21

distributlon suthorierd, ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION (5 A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND $UBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL FENALTIES THEREUNDER.

|NTER NAT' 0 NAL CODE COUNCIL Copyright © 2017 ICC ALL RIGHTS RESERVED., Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2018 3:38.21 PM pursuant 1o License Agreement with [CC. No further reproduction o




PLUMBING FACILITIES AND FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS

{P| 504.3 Plumbing system hazards. Where it is found that
a plumbing system in a structure constitutes a hazard to the
occupanis or the structure by reason of inadequate service,
inadequatc  venting, cross connection, backsiphonage,
improper installation, deterioration or damage or for similar
reasons, the code official shall require the defects to be cor-
rected to eliminate the hazard.

SECTION 505
WATER SYSTEM

[P] 505.1 General. Every sink, lavatory, bathtub or shower,
drinking fountain, water closet or other plumbing fixture shall
be properly connected to either a public water system or to an
approved private water system. Kitchen sinks, lavatories,
taundry facilities, bathtubs and showers shall be supplied
with hot or tempered and cold running water in accordance
with the nternational Plumbing Code.

[P] 505.2 Contamination. The water supply shall be main-
tained free from contamination, and all water inlets for
plumbing fixtures shall be located above the flood-level rim
of the fixture. Shampoo basin faucets, janitor sink faucets and
other hose bibs or faucets to which hoses are attached and left
in place, shall be protected by an approved atmospheric-type
vacuum breaker or an approved permanently attached hose
conneclion vacuum breaker.

[P'] 505.3 Supply. The water supply system shall be installed
and maintained to provide a supply of water to plumbing fix-
tures, devices and appurtenances in sufficient volume and at
pressures adequate to enable the fixtures to function properly,
safely, and free from defects and leaks.

[P} 505.4 Water heating facilities. Water heating facilities
shall be properly installed, maintained and capable of provid-
ing an adequate amount of water to be drawn at every
required sink, lavatory, bathtub, shower and laundry facility
at a temperature not less than 110°F (43°C). A gas-bumning
water heater shall not be located in any bathroom, toilet
room, bedroom or other occupied room normally kept closed,
unless adequate combustion air is provided. An approved
combination temperature and pressure-relief valve and relief
valve discharge pipe shall be properly installed and main-
tained on water heaters.

[P] 505.5 Nonpotable water reuse systems. Nonpotable
waler reuse systems and rainwater collection and conveyance
systems shall be maintained in a safe and sanitary condition,
Where such systems are not propetly maintained, the systems
shall be repaired to provide for safe and sanitary conditions,
or the system shall be abandoned in accordance with Section
505.5.1.

[P] 505.5.1 Abandonment of systems. Where a nonpota-
ble water reuse system or a rainwater collection and distri-
bution system is not maintained or the owner ceases use of
the system, the system shall be abandoned in accordance
with Section 1301.10 of the Infernational Plumbing Code.

SECTION 506
SANITARY DRAINAGE SYSTEM

[P] 506.1 General. Plumbing fixtures shall be properly con-
nected to either a public sewer system or to an approved pri-
vale sewage disposal system.

[P] 506.2 Maintenance. Every plumbing stack, vent, waste
and sewer line shall function properly and be kept free from
obstructions, ieaks and defects.

[P] $06.3 Grease interceptors. Grease interceptors and auto-
matic grease removal devices shall be maintained in accor-
dance with this code and the manufacturer’s installation
instructions. Grease interceptors and automatic grease
removal devices shall be regularly serviced and cleaned to
prevent the discharge of oil, grease, and other substances
harmful or hazardous to the building drainage system, the
public sewer, the private sewage disposal system or the sew-
age treatment plant or processes. Records of maintenance,
cleaning and repairs shall be available for inspection by the
code official.

SECTION 507
STORM DRAINAGE

{P] 507.1 General. Drainage of roofs and paved areas, yards
and courts, and other open areas on the premises shall not be
discharged in a manner that creates a public nuisance.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

22
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [wiiminbiprensiobanmentshompempibrtc s Ammstmisi it imdessprp s ol vl

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER



CHAPTER 6
MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS

User note:

About this chapter: Chapter 6 establishes minimum performance requirements for healing, electrical and mechanical facilities serving exist-
ing structures, such as healing and air-conditioning equipment, appliances and their supporting systems; waler healing equipment, appli-
ances and syslems, cooking equipment and appliances; ventilation and exhaust equipment; gas and liquid fuel distribution piping and
components; fireplaces and solid fuel-buming appliances; chimneys and vents; electrical services; lighting fixtures; electrical receptacie out-
fats; efeclrical distribution system equipment, devices and wiring; and elevators, escalators and dumbwailers.

SECTION 601
GENERAL

601.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the
minimum mechanical and electrical facilities and equipment
to be provided.

601.2 Responsibility. The owner of the structure shall pro-
vide and maintain mechanical and electrical facilities and
equipment in compliance with these requirements. A person
shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person
lo occupy any premises that does not comply with the
requirements of this chapter,

SECTION 602
HEATING FACILITIES

602.1 Facilities required. Heating facilities shall be pro-
vided in structures as required by this section,

602.2 Residential occupancies, Dwellings shall be provided
with heating facilities capable of maintaining a room tem-
perature of 68°F (20°C) in all habitable rooms, bathrooms
and foilet rooms based on the winter outdoor design tempera-
ture for the locality indicated in Appendix D of the Interna-
tional Plumbing Code. Cooking appliances shall not be used,
nor shall portable unvented fuel-burning space heaters be
used, as a means to provide required heating.

Exception: In areas where the average monthly tempera-
ture is above 30°F (-1°C), a minimum temperature of §5°F
(18°C) shall be maintained.

602.3 Heat supply. Every owner and operator of any build-
ing who rents, leases or lets one or more dwelfing units or
sleeping units on terms, either expressed or implied, to fur-
nish heat to the occupants thereof shall supply heat during the
period from [DATE] to [DATE] to maintain a minimum tem-
perature of 68°F (20°C) in all habitable rooms, bathrooms
and toilet rooms.
Exceptions:

1. When the outdoor temperature is below the winter
outdoor design temperature for the locality, mainte-
nance of the minimum room temperature shall not
be required provided that the heating system is oper-
ating at its full design capacity. The winter outdoor

2018 INTERNATIONAL PRCPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

design temperature for the locality shall be as indi-
cated in Appendix D of the International Plumbing
Code.

2. In areas where the average monthly temperature is
above 30°F (-1°C), a minimum temperature of 65°F
{18°C) shall be maintained.

602.4 Occupiable work spaces. Indoor occupiable work
spaces shall be supplied with heat during the period from
(DATE] to [DATE] to maintain a minimum temperature of 65°F
(18°C} during the period the spaces are occupied.

Exceptions:

1. Processing, storage and operation areas that require
cooling or special temperature conditions.

2. Arcas in which persons are primarily engaged in
vigorous physical activities,

602.5 Room temperature measurement, The required room

temperatures shall be measured 3 feet (914 mm) above the

floor near the center of the room and 2 feet (610 mm) inward
from the center of each exterior wall.

SECTION 603
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT

603.1 Mechanical equipment and appliances. Mechanical
equipment, appliances, fireplaces, solid fuel-burning appli-
ances, cooking appliances and water heating appliances shall
be properly installed and maintained in a safe working condi-
tion, and shall be capable of performing the intended func-
tion.

603.2 Removal of combustion products. Fuel-burning
equipment and appliances shall be connected to an approved
chimney or vent,
Exception: Fuel-burning equipment and appliances that
are Jabeled for unvented operation.
603.3 Clearances. Required clearances to combustible mate-
rials shall be maintained.
603.4 Safety controls, Safety controls for fuel-buming
equipment shall be maintained in effective operation.

603.5 Combustion air. A supply of air for complete combus-
tion of the fuel and for ventilation of the space containing the

23

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL Rbwagisbaripeessiitiv-eobe i i Asbisohufp rraplosbrmptroiott-Asiphicgyshaduiot tpbondiai

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER,



MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS

fuel-burning equipment shall be provided for the fuel-buming
equipment.

603.6 Energy conservation devices, Devices intended to
reduce fuel consumption by attachment to a fuel-burning
appliance, to the fuel supply line thereto, or to the vent outlet
or vent piping thcrefrom, shall not be installed unless /abeled
for such purpose and the installation is specifically approved.

SECTION 604
ELECTRICAL FACILITIES

604.1 Facilities required. Every occupied building shall be
provided with an electrical system in compliance with the
requirements of this section and Section 605,

604.2 Service. The size and usage of applianccs and equip-
ment shall serve as a basis for determining the need for addi-
tional facilities in accordance with NFPA 70. Dwelling units
shall be served by a three-wire, 120/240 volt, single-phase
electrical service having a minimum rating of 60 amperes.

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Where it is found that the
eleetrical system in a structure constitutes a hazard to the
occupanis or the structure by reason of inadequate service,
improper fusing, insufficient receptacle and lighting outlets,
improper wiring or installation, deferioration or damage, or
for similar reasons, the code official shall require the defects
to be corrected to eliminate the hazard.

604.3.1 Abatement of etectrical hazards associated with
water exposure. The provisions of this section shall gov-
ern the repair and replacement of electrical systems and
equipment that have been exposed to water.

604.3.1.1 Electrical equipment. Electrical distribu-
tion equipment, motor circuits, power equipment, trans-
formers, wire, cable, flexible cords, wiring devices,
ground fault circuit interrupters, surge protectors,
molded case circuit breakers, low-voltage fuses, lumi-
naires, ballasts, motors and electronic controt, signaling
and communication equipment that have been exposed
to water shall be replaced in accordance with the provi-
sions of the International Building Code.

Exception: The following equipment shall be
allowed to be repaired where an inspection report
from the equipment manufacturer or approved man-
ufacturer’s representative indicates that the equip-
ment has not sustained damage that requires
replacement:

1. Enclosed switches, rated not more than 600
volts or less.

2. Busway, rated not more than 600 volts.

3. Panelhoards, rated not more than 600 volts.
4. Switchboards, rated not more than 600 volts.
5

. Fire pump controllers, rated not more than
600 volts,

. Manual and magnetic motor controllers.

=2

7. Motor control centers.

8. Alternating current circuit

breakers.

high-voltage

9. Low-voltage power circuit breakers.

10. Protective relays, meters and current trans-
formers,

11. Low- and medium-voltage switchgear.
12. Liquid-filled transformers.
13. Cast-resin transformers.

14. Wire or cable that is suitable for wet loca-
tions and whose ends have not been exposed
to water.

[5. Wire or cable, not containing fillurs, that is
suitable for wet locations and whase ends
have not been exposed to water.

16. Luminaires that are listed as submersible.
17. Motors.

18. Electronic control, signaling and communi-
cation equipment.

604.3.2 Abatement of electrical hazards associated with
fire exposure. The provisions of this section shall govern
the repair and replacement of electrical systems and equip-
ment that have been exposed to fire.

604.3.2.1 Electrical equipment. Electrical swiiches,
receptacles and fixtures, including furnace, water heat-
ing, security system and power distribution circuits,
that have been exposed to fire, shall be replaced in
accordance with the provisions of the International
Building Code.

Exception: Electrical switches, receptactes and fix-
tures that shall be allowed to be repaired where an
inspection report from the equipment manufacturer
or approved manufacturer’s representative indicates
that the equipment has not sustained damage that
requires replacement.

SECTION 605
ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT

605.1 Installation. Electrical equipment, wiring and appli-
ances shall be properly installed and maintained in a safe and
approved manner,

605.2 Receptacles. Every habitable space in a dwelling shall
contain not less than two separate and remote receptacle out-
lets. Every laundry area shall contain not less than one
grounding-type receptacle or a receptacle with a ground fault
circuit interrupter. Every bathroom shall contain not less than
one receplacle. Any new barhroom receptacle outlet shall
have ground fault circuit interrupter protection. All receptacle
outlets shall have the appropriate faceplate cover for the loca-
tion.

605.3 Luminaires. Every public hall, interior stairway, foifet
room, kitchen, bathroom, laundry room, boiler room and fur-
nace room shall contain not less than one electric luminaire.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright € 2317 4CC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2018 3:38:21 PM pursuant 1o License Agreement with 10C Ne further repraduciian ar
distribution autherized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AMD THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER

24
INTERWATIONAL CODE COUNCIL




MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS

Pool and spa luminaires over 15 V shall have ground fault
circuit interrupter prolection,

605.4 Wiring. Flexible cords shall not be used for permanent
wiring, or for running through doors, windows, or cabinets,
or concealed within walls, floors, or ceilings.

SECTION 606
ELEVATORS, ESCALATORS AND DUMBWAITERS

606.1 General. Elevators, dumbwaiters and escalators shall
be maintained in compliance with ASME A17.1. The most
current certificate of inspection shatl be on display at all
titnes within the elevator or attached to the escatator or dumb-
waiter, be available for public inspection in the office of the
building aperator or be posted in a publicly conspicuous
location approved by the code official. The inspection and
tests shall be performed at not less than the periodic intervals
listed in ASME A17.1, Appendix N, except where otherwise
specified by the authority having jurisdiction.

606.2 Elevators. In buildings equipped with passenger eleva-
tors, not less than one elevator shall be maintained in opera-
tion at all times when the building is occupied.

Exception: Buildings equipped with only one elevator
shall be permitted to have the elevator temporarily out of
service for testing or servicing.

SECTION 607
DUCT SYSTEMS

607.1 General. Duct systems shall be maintained free of
obstructions and shall be capable of performing the required
function,

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® 25

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [Epnsemimripeet ot ok sty et tscideoson el biesiortiontati

AGREEMENT. AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.




2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®
Copyright © 2017 |CC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accesscd by Gregory Cannon on Mar v, 2018 3:38:21 P pursvant to License Agreement with ICC. Mo further reproduction or
distribution authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REFRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.




CHAPTER 7
FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

User note:

About this chapter: Chapler 7 establishes fire safely requirements for existing structures by containing requirements for means of egress,
inciuding path of iravel, required egress widih, means of egress doors and emergency escape openings, and for the maintenance of fire-resis-
tance-rated assemblies, fire protection systems, and carbon monoxide alarm and detection systems.

SECTION 701
GENERAL

701.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the
minimum conditions and standards for fire safety relating to
structures and exterior premises, including fire safety facili-
ties and equipment to be provided.

701.2 Responsibility. The owner of the premises shall pro-
vide and maintain such fire safety facilities and equipment in
compliance with these requirements. A person shall not
occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person to
occupy any premises that do not comply with the require-
ments of this chapter.

SECTION 702
MEANS OF EGRESS

[F] 702.1 General. A safe, continuous and unobstructed path
of travel shall be provided from any point in a building or
structure to the public way. Means of egress shatl comply
with the International Fire Code.

|F] 702.2 Aisles. The required width of aisles in accordance
with the International Fire Code shall be unobstructed.

[F] 702.3 Locked doors. Means of egress doors shall be
readily openable from the side from which egress is to be
made without the need for keys, special knowledge or effort,
excepl where the door hardware conforms to that permitted
by the International Building Code.

[F] 702.4 Emergency escape openings. Required emergency
escape openings shall be maintained in accordance with the
code in effect at the time of construction, and the following.
Required emergency escape and rescue openings shall be
operational from the inside of the room without the use of
keys or tools. Bars, grilles, grates or similar devices are per-
mitted to be placed over emergency escape and rescue open-
ings provided that the minimum net clear opening size
complies with the code that was in cffect at the time of con-
struction and such devices shall be releasable or removable
from the inside without the use of a key, tool or force greater
than that which is required for normal eperation of the escape
and rescue opening.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

SECTION 703
FIRE-RESISTANCE RATINGS

[F] 703.1 Fire-resistance-rated assemblies. The provisions
of this chapter shall govern maintenance of the materials, sys-
tems and assemblies used for structural fire resistance and
fire-resistance-rated construction separation of adjacent
spaces to safeguard against the spread of fire and smoke
within a building and the spread of fire to or from buildings.

[F] 703.2 Unsafe conditions. Where any components are not
maintained and do not function as intended or do not have the
fire resistance required by the code under which the building
was constructed or altered, such components or portions
thereof shall be deemed unsafe conditions in accordance with
Section 111.1.1 of the International Fire Code. Components
or portions thereof determined to be unsafe shall be repaired
or replaced to conform to that code under which the building
was constructed or altered. Where the condition of compo-
nents is such that any building, structure or portion thereof
presents an imminent danger to the occupants of the building,
structure or portion thereof, the fire code official shall act in
accordance with Section 111.2 of the International Fire
Code.

[F] 703.3 Maintenance. The required fire-resistance rating
of fire-resistance-rated construction, including walls,
firestops, shaft enclosures, partitions, smoke barriers, floors,
fire-resistive coatings and sprayed fire-resistant materials
applied to structural members and joint systems, shall be
maintained. Such elements shall be visvally inspected annu-
ally by the owner and repaired, restored or replaced where
damaged, altered, breached or penetrated. Records of inspec-
tions and repairs shall be maintained. Where voncealed, such
elements shall not be required to be visually inspected by the
owner unless the concealed space is accessible by the
removal or movement of a panel, access door, ceiling tile or
entry to the space. Openings made therein for the passage of
pipes, electrical conduitl, wires, ducts, air transfer and any
other reason shall be protecied with approved methods capa-
ble of resisting the passage of smoke and fire. Openings
through fire-resistance-rated assemblies shall be protected by
sel- or automatic-closing doors of approved construction
megting the fire protection requirements for the assembly.

27

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [Rbmsdbiiisbanipwtotiasonevommpiis pApmiiieyermyttpsineasotp-Asisphiepr st et

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TQ CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER,




FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

[F] 703.3.1 Fire blocking and draft stopping. Required
fire blocking and draft stopping in combustible concealed
spaces shall be maintained to provide continuity and integ-
rity of the construction,

[F] 703.3.2 Smoke barriers and smoke partitions.
Required smoke barriers and smoke partitions shall be
maintained to prevent the passage of smoke. Openings
protected with approved smoke barrier doors or smoke
dampers shall be maintained in accordance with NFPA
105.

[F} 703.3.3 Fire walls, fire barriers, and fire partitions.
Required fire walls, fire barriers and fire partitions shall be
maintained to prevent the passage of fire, Openings pro-
tected with approved doors or fire dampers shall be main-
tained in accordance with NFPA 80,

{F] 703.4 Opening protectives. Opening protectives shall be
maintained in an operative condition in accordance with
NFPA 80. The application of field-applied labels associated
with the maintenance of opening protectives shall follow the
requirements of the approved third-party certification organi-
zation accredited for listing the opening protective. Fire doors
and smoke barrier doors shall not be blocked or obstructed, or
otherwise made inoperable. Fusible links shall be replaced
whenever fused or damaged. Fire door assemblies shall not
be modified.

[F] 703.4.1 Signs. Where required by the code official, a
sign shall be permanently displayed on or near cach fire
door in letters not less than 1 inch (25 mm) high to read as
follows:

1. For doors designed to be kept normally open: FIRE
DOOR - DO NOT BLOCK.

2. For doors designed to be kept normally closed:
FIRE DOOR - KEEP CLOSED.

IF] 703.4.2 Hold-open devices and closers. Hold-open
devices and automatic door closers shall be maintained.
During the period that such a device is out of service for
repairs, the door it operates shall remain in the closed posi-
tion.

(F] 703.4.3 Door operation. Swinging fire doors shall
close from the full-open position and latch automatically.
The door closer shall exert enough force to close and latch
the door from any partially open position.

[F] 703.5 Ceilings. The hanging and displaying of salable
goods and other decorative materials from acoustical ceiling
systems that are part of a fire-resistance-rated horizontal
assembly shall be prohibited.

[F] 703.6 Testing. Horizontal and vertical sliding and rolling
fire doors shall be inspected and tested annually to confirm
operation and full closure. Records of inspections and testing
shall be maintained.

[F] 703.7 Vertical shafts. Interior vertical shafts, including
stairways, clevator hoistways and service and utility shafts,
which connect two or more stories of & building shall be
enclosed or protected as required in Chapter 11 of the Infer-
national Fire Code, New floor openings in existing buildings
shall comply with the international Building Code.

28

[F] 703.8 Opening protective closers. Where openings are
required to be protected, opening protectives shall be main-
tained self-closing or automatic-closing by smoke detection.
Existing fusible-link-type automatic door-closing devices
shall be replaced if the fusible link rating exceeds 135°F
(57°C).

SECTION 704
FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

[F] 704.1 Inspection, testing and maintenance. Fire detec-
tion, alarm and extinguishing systems, mechanical smoke
exhaust systems, and smoke and heat vents shall be main-
tained in accordance with the fniernational Fire Code in an
operative condition at all times, and shall be replaced or
repaired where defective.

[F] 704.1.1 Installation. Firc protection systems shall be
maintained in accordance with the original installation
standards for that system. Required systems shall be
extended, altered or augmented as necessary to maintain
and continue protection where the building is altered or
enlarged. Alterations to fire protection systems shall be
done in accordance with applicable standards.

[F] 704.1.2 Required fire protection systems. Fire pro-
teclion systems required by this code, the /nfernational
Fire Code or the International Building Code shall be
installed, repaired, operated, tested and maintained in
accordance with this code. A fire protection zystem for
which a design option, exception or reduction to the provi-
sions of this code, the International Fire Code or the Inter-
national Building Code has been granted shall be
considered to be a required system.

[F] 704.1.3 Fire protection systems, Fire protection sys-
tems shall be inspected, maintained and tested in accor-
dance with the following [fmiernational Fire Code
requirements.

1. Automatic sprinkler systems, see Section 903.5.

2. Automatic fire-extinguishing systems protecting
commercial cocking systems, see Section 904.12.5.

3. Automatic water mist extinguishing systems, see
Section 904.11.

4. Carbon dioxide extinguishing systems, see Section
904.8.

5. Carbon monoxide alarms and carbon monoxide
detection systems, see Section 915.6.

6. Clean-agent extinguishing systems, see Section
904.10.

7. Dry-chemical extinguishing systems, see Section
904.6.

8. Fire alarm and fire detection systems, see Section
907.8.

9. Fire department connections, see Sections 912.4
and 912.7.

10. Fire pumps, see Section 913.5,
11. Foam extinguishing systems, see Section 904.7.
12. Halon extinguishing systems, see Section 904.9,

2018 INTERNATIONAL PRCPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright @ 2012 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVELD, Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2018 :58:21 PM pursuant to License Agrecment with [CC. No further seproduction or
distribution authotized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIDUTION 1S A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL




13. Single- and multiple-station smoke alarms, see
Section 907.10.

14, Smoke and heat vents and mechanical smoke
removal systems, see Section 910.5.

15. Smoke control systems, see Section 909.20.
16. Wet-chemical extinguishing systems, see Section
904.5.

[F] 704.2 Standards. Fire protection systems shall be
inspected, tested and maintained in accordance with the refer-
enced standards listed in Table 704.2 and as required in this
section.

TABLE 704.2

FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM MAINTENANCE STANDARDS
SYSTEM STANDARD

Portable fire extinguishers NFPA 10
Carbon dioxide fire-extinguishing system NFPA 12
Halon 1301 fire-extinguishing systems NFPA 12A
Dry-chemical extinguishing systems NFPA 17
Wet-chemical extinguishing systems NFPA 17A
Water-based fire protection systems NFPA 25
Fire alarm systems NFPA 72
Smoke and heat vents NFPA 204
Water-mist systems NFPA 750
Clean-agent extinguishing systems NFPA 2001

[F] 704.2.1 Records. Records shall be maintained of all
system inspections, tests and maintenance required by the
referenced standards.

[F] 704.2.2 Records information, [nitial records shall
include the: name of the installation contractor; type of
components installed; manufacturer of the components;
location and number of components installed per floor;
and manufacturers’ operation and maintenance instruction
manuals. Such records shall be maintained for the life of
the installation,

[F| 704.3 Systems out of service. Where a required fire pro-
tection system is out of service, the fire department and the
fire code official shall be notified immediately and, where
required by the fire code official, either the building shall be
evacuated or an approved fire watch shall be provided for all
occupants left unprotected by the shutdown until the fire pro-
tection system has been returned to service. Where utilized,
fire watches shall be provided with not less than one
approved means for notification of the fire department and
shall not have duties beyond performing constant patrols of
the protected premises and keeping watch for fires. Actions
shall be taken in accordance with Section 991 of the /nterna-
tional Firve Code to bring the systems back in service.

[E} 704.3.1 Emergency impairments. Where unplanned
impairments of fire protection systems occur, appropriate
emergency action shall be taken to minimize potential
injury and damage. The impairment coordinator shall
implement the steps outlined in Section 901.7.4 of the
International Fire Code.

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

|F] 704.4 Removal of or tampering with equipment. It
shall be unlawful for any person to remove, tamper with or
otherwise disturb any fire hydrant, fire detection and alarm
system, fire suppression system or other fire appliance
required by this code excepl for the purposes of extinguishing
fire, training, recharging or making necessary repairs.

[F] 704.4.1 Removal of or tampering with appurte-
nances. Locks, pates, doors, barricades, chains, enclo-
sures, signs, tags and seals that have been installed by or at
the direction of the fire code official shall not be removed,
unlocked, destroyed or tampered with in any manner.

[F] 704.4.2 Removal of existing occupant-use hose
lines. The fire code official is authorized to permit the
removal of existing occupant-use hose lines where all of
the following apply:

1. The installation is not required by the /nternational
Fire Code or the International Building Code.

2. The hose line would not be utilized by trained per-
sonnel or the fire department,

3. The remaining outlets are compatible with local fire
department {ittings.

[F] 704.4.3 Termination of monitoring service, For fire
alarm systems required to be monitored by the Interna-
tional Fire Code, notice shalt be made to the fire code offi-
cial whenever alarm monitoring services are terminated.
Notice shall be made in writing by the provider of the
monitoring service being terminated.

[F] 704.5 Fire department connection. Where the fire
department connection is not visible to approaching fire
apparalus, the fire department connection shall be indicated
by an approved sign mounted on the street front or on the side
of the building. Such sign shall have the letters “FDC" not
less than 6 inches (152 mm) high and words in lelters not less
than 2 inches (51 mm) high or an arrow to inlicate the loca-
tion. Such signs shall be subject to the approval of the fire
code official. '

[F] 704.5.1 Fire department connection access. Ready
access to fire department connections shall be maintained at
all times and without ebstruction by fences, bushes, trees,
walls or any other fixed or movable object. Access to fire
department connections shall be approved by the fire chief.

Exception: Fences, where provided with an access gate
equipped with a sign complying with the legend
requirements of Section 912.5 of the International Fire
Code and a means of emergency operation. The gate
and the means of emergency operation shall be
approved by the fire chief and maintained operational
at all times.

[F] 704.5.2 Clear space around connections, A working
space of not less than 36 inches (914 mm) in width, 36
inches (914 mm) in depth and 78 inches (1981 mm) in
height shall be provided and maintained in front of and to
the sides of wall-mounted fire department connections and
around the circumference of free-standing fire department
connections,

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [pwiomiantvripesnaomesinrsmmitit i erapttmmmitronit-iisiniy et

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.




FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

|F] 704.6 Single- and multiple-station smoke alarms. Sin-
gle- and multiple-station smoke alarms shall be installed in
existing Group I-1 and R occupancies in accordance with
Sections 704.6.1 through 704.6.3.

30

[F] 704.6.1 Where required. Existing Group I-1 and R
occupancies shall be provided with single-station smoke
alarms in accordance with Sections 704.6.1.1 through
704.6.1 4. Interconnection and power sources shall be in
accordance with Sections 704.6.2 and 704.6.3.

Exceptions:

1. Where the code that was in effect at the time of
construction required smoke alarms and smoke
alarms complying with those requirements are
already provided.

2. Where smoke alarms have been installed in occu-
pancies and dwellings that were not required to
have them at the time of construction, additional
smoke alarms shall not be required provided that
the existing smoke alarms comply with require-
ments that were in effect at the time of installa-
tion.

3. Where smoke detectors connected to a fire alarm
system have been installed as a subslitute for
smoke alarms.

[F] 704.6.1.1 Group R-1. Single- or multiple-station
smoke alarms shall be instailed in all of the following
locations in Group R-1:

1. In sleeping areas.

2. In every room in the path of the means of egress
from the sleeping area to the door leading from
the sleeping unit.

3. In each story within the sleeping unit, including
basements. For sleeping units with split levels
and without an intervening door between the
adjacent levels, a smoke alarm installed on the
upper level shall suffice for the adjacent lower
level provided that the lower level is less than one
full story below the upper level.

[F] 704.6.1.2 Groups R-2, R-3, R-4 and I-1, Single-
or multiple-station smoke alarms shall be installed and
maintained in Groups R-2, R-3, R4 and I-] regardless
of accupant load at all of the following locations:

1. On the ceiling or wall outside of each separate
sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of bed-
rooms.

2. In each room used for sleeping purposes.

3. In each story within a dwelling unit, including
basements but not including crawl spaces and
uninhabitable attics. In diwellings or dwelling
units with split levels and without an intervening
door between the adjacent levels, a smoke alarm
installed on the upper level shall suffice for the
adjacent lower level provided that the lower level
is less than ane full story below the upper level,

{F] 704.6.1.3 Installation near cooking appliances.
Smoke alarms shall not be installed in the following

locations unless this would prevent placement of a
smoke alarm in a location required by Section
704.6.1.1 or 704.6.1.2.

1. Tonization smoke alarms shall not be instalied
less than 20 feet (6096 m) herizontally from a
permanently installed cooking appliance.

2. lonization smoke alarms with an alarm-silencing
switch shall not be installed less than 10 feet
(3048 mm) horizontally from a permanently
installed cooking appliance.

3. Photoelectric smoke alarms shall not be installed
less than 6 feet (1829 mm) horizontally from a
permanently installed cooking appliance.

[F] 704.6.1.4 Installation near bathrooms. Smoke
alarms shall be installed not {ess than 3 feet (914 mm)
horizontally from the door or opening of a bathroom
that contains a bathtub or shower unless this would pre-
vent placement of a smoke alarm required by Section
704.6.1.1 or 704.6.1.2.

[F] 704.6.2 Interconnection. Where more than one smoke
alarm is required to be installed within an individual
dwelling or sleeping unit, the smoke alarms shall be inter-
connected in such a manner that the activation of one
alarm will activate all of the alarms in the individual unit.
Physical interconnection of smoke alarms shall not be
required where listed wireless alarms are installed and all
alarms sound upon activation of one alarm. The alarm
shall be clearly audible in all bedrooms over background
noise levels with all intervening doors closed.

Exceptions:

l. Interconnection is not required in buildings that
are not undergoing alterations, repairs or con-
struction of any kind.

2. Smoke alarms in existing arcas are not required
to be interconnected where alterations or repairs
do not result in the removal of interior wall or
ceiling finishes exposing the structure, unless
there is an attic, crawl space or basement avail-
able that could provide access for interconnection
without the removal of interior finishes.

[F] 704.6.3 Power source. Single-station smoke alarms
shall receive their primary power from the building wiring
provided that such wiring is served from a commercial
source and shall be equipped with a battery backup.
Smoke alarms with integral strobes that are not equipped
with battery backup shall be connected to an emcrgency
electrical system. Smoke alarms shall emit a signal when
the batteries are low. Wiring shall be permanent and with-
out a disconnecting switch other than as required for over-
current protection.

Exceptions:

1. Smoke alarms are permitted to be solely battery
operated in existing buildings where construction
is not taking place.

2. Smoke alarms are permitted to be solely battery
operated in buildings that are not served from a
commercial power source.

2018 INTERNATIONAL FROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright € 2017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mat 9, 2018 2:38:2t PM pursvant to Lloense Agreement with ICC. No fusther reproduction or
distribution authorited. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A YIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL



FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

3. Smoke alarms are permitted to be solely battery
operated in existing areas of buildings undergo-
ing alterations or repairs that do not result in the
removal of interior walls or ceiling finishes
exposing the structure, unless there is an attic,
crawl space or basement available that could pro-
vide access for building wiring without the
removal of interior finishes,

[F] 704.6.4 Smoke detection system. Smoke detectors
listed in accordance with UL 268 and provided as part of
the building’s fire alarm system shall be an acceptable
alternative to single- and multiple-station smoke alarms
and shall comply with the following:

1. The fire alarm system shall comply with all applica-
ble requirements in Section 907 of the International
Fire Code.

2. Activation of a smoke detector in a dwelling or
sleeping unit shall initiate alarm notification in the
dwelling or sleeping unit in accordance with Section
907.5.2 of the International Fire Code.

3. Activation of a smoke detector in a dwelling or
sleeping unit shali not activate alarm notification
appliances outside of the dwelling or sleeping unit,
provided that a supervisory signal is generated and
monitored in accordance with Section 907.6.6 of the
International Fire Code.

[F] 704.7 Single- and multiple-station smoke alarms. Sin-
gle- and multiple-station smoke alarms shall be tested and
maintained in accordance with the manufacturer’s instruc-
tions. Smoke alarms that do not function shall be replaced.
Smoke alarms installed in one- and two-family dwellings
shall be replaced not more than 10 years from the date of
manufacture marked on the unit, or shall be replaced if the
date of manufacture cannol be determined.

SECTION 705
CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS AND DETECTION

[F] 705.1 General. Carbon monoxide alarms shall be
instafled in dwellings in accordance with Section 1103.9 of
the International Fire Code, except that alarms in dwellings
covered by the International Residential Code shall be
installed in accordance with Section R315 of thal code.

|F] 705.2 Carbon monoxide alarms and detectors. Carbon
monoxide alarms and carbon monoxide detection systemns
shall be maintained in accordance with NFPA 720. Carbon
monoxide alarms and carbon monoxide detectors that
become inoperable or begin producing end-of-life signals
shall be replaced.

2048 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® 31

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [msebvidriowiriatimestathranstpednpiinirermapistosaierimtp-mi ity

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®
Copyright © 2017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Acceusedby Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2018 3:56:20 PM pursuant Lo License Agreement with ICC. No farther reproduction or
disbution authorised, ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIDUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT. AND SUHBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER




CHAPTER 8
REFERENCED STANDARDS

User note:

About this chapter: This code contains numerous references lo standards promuigaled by other organizations that are used to provide
requirements for malterials and methads of consiruction. Chapter B contains 8 comprehensive list of all standards that are referenced in this
code. These slandards, in essence, are part of this code to the extent of the reference fo the standard.

This chapter lists the standards that are referenced in various seclions of this document. The standards are listed herein by the promulgating
agency of the standard, the slandard identification, the effective dale and litle and the section or sections of this document lhat reference the
standard, The application of the referenced standards shall be as specified in Section 102.7.

ASME American Society of Mechanical Engineers
Two Park Avenue
New York, NY 10016-5990

ASME A17.1—2016/CSA B44—186: Safety Code for Elevators and Escalators
606.1

A STM ASTM Intemnational

100 Barr Harbor Drive, P.O. Box C700
West Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959

F1346—91 (2010): Pcrformance Specifications for Safety Covers and Labeling Requirements for All Covers for Swimming Pools, Spas

and Hot Tubs
303.2
ICC International Code Council
500 New Jersey Avenue, NW
6th Floor

Washington, DC 20001
IBC—I8: [nternational Building Code®
102.3, 201.3, 304.1.1, 305.1.1, 306.1.1, 401.3, 604.3.1.1, 604.3.2.1, 702.3, 704.4.2
IECC—18: International Energy Conservation Code®
102,3
TEBC—18: International Existing Building Code®
102.3, 201.3, 304.1.1, 305.1.1, 306.1.1
TIFC—18; International Fire Code®
102.3, 201.3, 604.3.1.1,702.1, 702.2, 704.1, 704.1.2, 704.1.3, 704.3, 704.3.1,
704.4.2, 704.4.3, 704.5.1, 704.6.4, 705.1
IFGC—18: International Fuel Gas Code®
102.3, 201.3
IMC—18: International Mechanical Code®
102.3, 201.3
IPC—18: International Plumbing Code®
102.3, 201.3, 502.5, 505.1, 505.5.1, 602.2, 602.3
IRC—18: International Residential Code®
102.3, 201.3

1ZC—18: International Zoning Code®
102.3, 201.3

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® 33

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [Rmiabtsbimpsnoiumenistimeap st artmriape st isridrasody- stmolveohesisiiy dvsmtl

AGREEMENT, AND SUB)ECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER




REFERENCED STANDARDS

NFPA National Fire Protection Association

1 Batterymarch Park
Quincy, MA 02169-7471

10-—17: Standard for Portable Fire Extinguishers

Table 704.2

12—15: Standard on Carbon Dioxide Extinguishing Systems
Table 704.2

12A—15: Standard on Halon 1301 Fire Extinguishing Systems
Table 704.2

17—17: Standard for Dry Chemical Extinguishing Systems
Tahle 704.2

17A—17: Standard for Wet Chemical Extinguishing Systems
Table 704.2

25-—17: Standard for the Inspection, Testing and Maintenance of Water-Based Fire Protection Systems
Table 704.2

70—17: National Electrical Code
1023, 201.3, 604.2

72—16: National Fire Alurm and Signaling Code

Table 704.2
80—16: Standard for Fire Doors and Other Qpening Protectives
703.3.3,703.4
185—16: Standard for Smoke Door Assemblies and Other Opening Protectives
703.3.2
204—15: Standard for Smoke and Heat Venting
Table 704.2
720—15: Standard for the Installation of Carbon Monoxide (CO) Detection and Warning Equipment
[F]705.2
750—14: Standard on Water Mist Fire Protection Systems
Table 704.2
2001—-15: Standard on Clean Agent Fire Extinpuishing Systems
Table 704.2
UL Underwriters Laboratories, LLC
333 Pfingsten Road
Northbrook, IL 60062

268—09; Smoke Detectors for Fire Alarm Systems
704,64

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

34
RN TR 7 s o GhA ORI D PRODUCTION O DISTRIBITION 5 A VIOLATION OF T FEERAL SomEHT ACE AND THE UCERSE

AGREEMENT, AND SUDJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER



APPENDIX A
BOARDING STANDARD

The provisions contained in this appendix are not mandatory unless specifically referenced in the adopting ~rdinance.

Uasr note:

About this appendix: Appendix A provides minimum specifications for boerding a structure. This can be utilized by a jurisdiction as a set of
minimum requirements in order to result in consistent boarding quallly, These requirements also provide a reasonable means o eliminate
having to approve numerous methods or materials for the boarding end securing of a structure. It is important to note that the provisions of
Appenadix A are not mandatory unless specifically referenced in the adopting ordinance of the authority having jurisdiction.

A101
GENERAL

Al01.1 General. Windows and doors shall be bearded in an
approved manner to prevent entry by unauthorized persons
and shall be painted to correspond to the color of the existing
structure.

A102
MATERIALS

A102.1 Boarding sheet material. Boarding sheet material
shall be minimum Y,-inch-thick (12.7 mm) wood structural
panels complying with the International Building Code.

A102.2 Boarding framing material. Boarding framing
material shall be minimum nominal 2-inch by 4-inch (51 mm
by 102 mm) solid sawn lumber complying with the /nterna-
tional Building Code.

A102.3 Boarding fasteners. Boarding fasteners shall be
minimum ¥,-inch-diameter (9.5 mm) carriage bolts of such a
length as required to penetrate the assembly and as required
to adequately attach the washers and nuts. Washers and nuts
shall comply with the International Building Code.

A103
INSTALLATION

A103.1 Boarding installation. The boarding installation
shall be in accordance with Figures A103.1(1) and A103.1(2)
and Sections A103.2 through A103.5.

A103.2 Boarding sheet material. The boarding sheet mate-
rial shall be cut to fit the door or window opening neatly or
shall be cut to provide an equal overlap at the perimeter of the
door or window.

A103.3 Windows. The window shall be opened to allow the
carriage bolt 1o pass through or the window sash shall be
removed and stored. The 2-inch by 4-inch (51 mm by 102
mm) strong back framing material shall be cut minimum 2
inches (51 mm} wider than the window opening and shall be
placed on the inside of the window opening 6 inches (152
mm) minimum above the bottom and below the top of the
window opening. The framing and boarding shall be pre-

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

drilled. The assembly shall be aligned and the bolts, washers
and nuts shall be installed and secured.

A103.4 Door walls. The door opening shall be framed with
minimum 2-inch by 4-inch (51 mm by 102 mm) framing
material secured at the entire perimeter and vertical members
at a maximum of 24 inches (610 mm) on center. Blocking
shall also be secured at a maximum of 48 inches (1219 mm)
on center vertically. Boarding sheet material shall be secured
with screws and nails alternating every 6 inches (152 mm) on
center.

A103.5 Doors. Doors shall be secured by the same method as
for windows or door openings. One door to the structure shall
be available for authorized entry and shall be secured and
locked in an approved manner.

A104
REFERENCED STANDARD
IBC—I18 International Building Code AT02.L,
Al102.2, A102.3

35

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [Ricibevinsriyrmrononaniithsmnribvicsmmsibommnidbgeiaysstisnioypmiespmispienan

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CHIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER



APPENDIX A

¥y" carriage bolis.

Bolts shall be long enough to extend from the
exterior plywood through the inlerior plywood
and strong backs and fastened from the inlerior

with a nut.
™~ 12"
{ ‘ %" CDX plywood or
8" - : performance-raled OSB.
o — ; : - "
* B

2" x 4" strong backs

1 ™ Window frame

2" x 4" strong backs

*/s" carriage bolls.

Bolts shall be long enough to extend from the
exterior plywood through the interior plywood
and strong backs and fastened from the interior
with a nut,

FIGURE A103.1(1}

BOARDING OF DOOR OR WINDOW

¥ INCH CDX PLYWOOD OR PERFORMANCE-RATED 0SB SHALL BE SECURED
TO HEADER, BSE PLATE, STUDS, STILES, AND EDGE BLOCKING USING ALTERNATE
SCREWS AND NAILS AT A MAXIMUM OF 8 INCHES O.C.

2 NCH x4 INCH HEADER

| R R
4 *u('!'f, 3 .?’ TR n R
"&'} ST 1}}! !
sl L A PELTIR
‘.{ SR -:_v‘;fé:}j ! 2 INCH x 4 INCH STILE
i 2
4 4 e
3 AR
A 'ﬂ:;'i - J|H  boorwaLL FRAME
3 Yot 1] |¥
el ELJg ‘i ¥
e
1 3 F(?, £ s‘df? SRR
| g e
A .‘{,\% s 2INCH x 4 INCH BASE PLATE
M Y
2iNCH x 4 INCH EDGE BLOCKING =11}
EITHER HORIZONTALLY OR VERTICALLY
ALONG EDGE OF EACH SHEET OF 2INCH x 4 INCH STUDS
PLYWOOD OR OSB. SPACED 24 INCHES ON CENTER
For 5I: Yinch = 25.4 mm.
FIGURE A103.1(2)
BOARDING OF DOOR WALL

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®
Copyright 02017 ICC, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED  Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 1038 :54:21 PM pursuant to License Agreement with 1CC. No further repreduction or
distribution autherlzed. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION 15 A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CREMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.

3%
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCHL




INDEX

Otherlaws. . ......... . .o e

ACCESS Referenced codes and standards. . ......... 102.7

Emergency egress .. ........oovuvuuriniaaan 702 APPROVAL

Erom bedroomS - ..o o oveeeeeeere s 404.4.2 Aternatives. ... ... ..o 105.2

Plumbing fixtures, access for cleaning. .. . . . .. 504.2 Authority .. ...l 104.1,105.2

TopublicWay . ......oovvivreeiennn..s 702.1 Modifications. . ............ ... .o e 105.1

Toilet room as passageway ................ 503.1 Researchreports .................. 000 105.6

Water closet . . . oo s 404.4.3 Used material and equipment. . ............ 105.4
ADJACENT APPROVED

Privacy {hotel units, rooming units). . ......... 404.1 Alternative materials, methods and
ADMINISTRATION equipment . ... ... o 1056.2

SCOPR + <« e e et et e 101.2 Definiion. ....... ... ... ... oo i, 202
AGENT (See also OPERATOR, OWNER) Energy conservation devices .............. 603.6

DEBiON. - v o e ee e 202 Garbage storage facilities. ............... 308.3.1
AIR Modifications. . ... ..ol 105.1

COMbUSHON &IF . ... oo eeeeeareraeaenanns 603.5 Used materials and equipment. ............ 105.4
AISLES ARTIFICIAL

Minimumwidth . .. ... 702.2 Lighting of habitable rooms. . .............. 401.3
ALTERATION Lighting of otherspaces . ... .............. 402.3

Applicability of other codes. ... ............. 102.3 AUTOMOBILE

INSPECHON . . .ot vieeeeeveaeninees 104.2 Motor vehicles. . .............. ... 302.8

ProseCution. . ... ..ot e 106.3  AWNING

Unfawfulacts ........coiiennnininnnn. 106.1 Signs, marquees and awnings ... .......... 304.9
ANCHOR

Anchored, definition ... ........... ... . ..., 202 B

Architecturaltm. .. ...................... 304.8

Signs, marquees and awnings. .. ........... 304.9 BALCONY

Unsafe conditions . . . . .............oo... 304.1.1 Handrails and guardrails. ................ 304.12
APPEAL BASEMENT

Appiication ............................ 111.1 Definitton. . .......... .o i, 202

Board deciSion . . ... ... iiiiaii . 111.8 Hatchways ................coovninn. 304.16

Board of 8ppeals ... ........c.veeieniiain. 111.2 Windows............ .o 304.17

COUM TEVIBW . . oo\ e e iaeee e, 1117 ~ BATHROOM

Disqualification . . ...................... 111.2.3 Common bathrooms .. .............. 502.3, 503.1

Financial interest .. ...............c..n. 111.2.3 Hotels .........c.cooovviinninnnnnn 502.3

Hearing' emergency orders .. ... 109.6 nghtlng ............................... 605.3

Membership ..........ooivevnnn v ianaaan. 111.2 LoCKS. . oo e 503.1

Notice ofappeal . ..............ccviuevnnnn 111.1 Outletsrequired . ....................... 605.2

Postponed hearing . ...................... 111.5 Privacy ... 503.1

(=Yoo |- T 104.6 Ventilation. ....... ... 403.2

Righttoappeal ...............covvvvivnn. 111.1  BATHTUB

Vote ... e e 111.6 Pwellingunits ... ............. . c.iea.n 5021
APPLIANCE Rooming houses. .. ... ..o e, 502.2

Cooking ..........coviuvinnvinnns 403.3,602.2 Sewagesystem. ............ ... ..c0oann, 506.1

Mechanical ........... i, 603.1 Water-heating facilites . . . .. .............. 505.4
APPLICABILITY Watersystem ................. .. .. 505.1

Application of references .................. 102.9 BOARDING

General......... .ot 102.1 Boarding standard. . .. ............... Appendix A
2018 INTERNATIONAL PROFPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® 37

Copyright 02017 [CC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregry Cannon.on Mar v, 2018 33821 PM pursuznt (o License Agreoment with 10C. No futther reproduction ve
distribution authorized. ANY UNAUTRORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A YIQLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL




INDEX

BOILER Liability, relief of personal. . ................ 103.4
Unsafe equipment . . ................... 108.1.2 Membership of board of appeals . ........... 111.2
MNotice of viclation. .. ................. 104.5, 107
c Noticesandorders. .. ..................... 107
OfSchal TeRonis, o s miiie s e 104.6
CAPACITY Personal liabllity . . .. ..................... 103.4
Heating facilities. . ............ 602.2, 602.3, 602.4 BIBSHAING vc1ccricis s T S B S 108.4
CAR (See AUTOMOBILE) PROSBOUION 5 -iovsed i e R i e e 106.3
CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS AND DETECTION Removal of placard . ................... 108.4.1
Installation ............ B i e e 705.1 BUGHE BRI L s et o e g St 104.3
Malntenance ...........coeviiiiinnin,n 705.2 Transfer of ownership .................... 107.6
CEILING Vacant SIICINEE.... & i aiviis s st s e 108.2
Basementrooms........................ 404.3 Voting of appeals board. . ........... 111.2,111.6
Fire-resistanceratings. ................... 7031  ~OMBUSTION
Interiorsurfaces. . ............ooouunnn.. 305.3 ORI I 5 ot i B i sy e s 603.5
Minlmrl.l'n height...............00covinnt. 4043  COMPONENT SERVICEABILITY
SRODINGTOOMS .. . .o ox v nmwn s vy ey 4043 Unsafe condifions. . . .. ... oo onn . 306.1.1
CHANGE, MODIFY CONDEMNATION
Application of other codes . . ............... W2, Closifig ofvacANt SWUERITEE. . o oonsons 108.2
CHIMNEY Failure tocomply ... .....o.ooovnennnnn... 110.3
Exterior structure ......................, 304.11 General ... 108.1
I o o it i et o i B 52 803.2, 603.3 Notices and orders . .. .. . ......... . 108.2, 108.3
CLEANING . PLECAING . . ..ot 108.4
Accessforcleaning . .....................504.2 Removal of placard . ................... 108.4.1
Disposalofgarbage. ................. ... 3083  ecoNFUCT
Disposal of rubbish ...................... 3082 conflict of interest ... ... ....e..uia.... 111.2.3
Interior and exterior sanitation.............. 308.1 NARIETRE .o cooovnsgemsesars s cem s 106.1
Interiorsurfaces. . .. ... ...covvniirnnnnss 306.3 CONNECTION
Plumbing facilities, maintained ............. 504.1 P ot 506.1
Required plumbing facilities. .. .............. WA WRBTRBEIAD: vis.soos s s 5054
Responsibility of persons. ................. 305.1 NMBDE BRI - . oo vovvrinraniics i S 505.1
Trashconiainers ... ...oovvnvrionenn.n J08.3.2 CONSTRUCTION
Vacant structuresand land ..................3013  Eyigting structures .. .....................101.2

CLEARANCE

CONTAINER

Heating facilities. . . . ..........c00vninnnn. 603.3 Barbage o D S A 308.3.2
Plumbing fixtures . . ... ... ... .......... 504.2 Rubbish S10rage. . ..........oouuernrnn. 308.2.1
CLOSING CONTINUOUS
Streets. ... ... s 108.3 Unobstructed BOrESE. i T e e 702.1
Vacantstructures. ... .................... 108.2 CONTROL
CLOTHES DRVER Rodent control .. .................. 302.5, 304.5
EXBUBE v o e st T 403.5 Safetycontrols .. . .......................6034
CODE OFFICIAL WEEH . ..ttt 302.4
Condemnation...............coivunienn, 108.1 COOLING
EIRORION. oo s cminsint it i el (ORORNGANIN., . . normn e s e 304.11
DS o o it it S S s 104 CORRIDOR
Emergency order. ... ...l 109 Accumulation of rubbish. ... ............... 308.1
Enforcement authority . . .................. 104.1 T | S 42,9
Faillure to comply with demolition order......... 103 ighting fixtures .. ....................... 605.3
Idartileaan. s s i i 1088 ORGICHONE: .« o e ssos mamn 7021, 702.2
INSPOCHONS. .....evvviivnii DL Ratings maintained ....................... 703

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright © 2017 ICC, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2008 3:50:21 PM pursuant (o License Agreement with ICC. No further repraduction or
digtribution suthorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED AEPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION t$ A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL FENALTIES THEREUNDER.

38
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL




INDEX

D Plumbing connections. . .. .................. 506
DAMP, DAMPNESS Slormdrainage ., .. ... 507
FROOI = b s L S R D 3047 DUCT
Window, door frames .. .................. gidds DRI e s s 30%-3
DANGEROUS, HAZARDOUS CICERYEMRITIE - o v mim st om0 086 807
Condemnation . . ........................ 108.4  DUST
Demolition. . ... .o 110 Processventilation . ...............c000us 403.4
Electrical hazards .. ............... 604.3, 604.3.1 D‘:E'a-n“l::m T
Existing remedies. .. ..................... gLy DR A R -
lmmﬂ GANGON. . o et et e 202 Deﬂni!lnn ................................ 202
Unsafa gqulprm +++++ T —— 108.1.2 Electrical . . . : .......................... 604.1
Unsafe structures or premises . . .......... 108.1.5 Heating facilities . . ........................ 602
DECKS Rﬁql.ﬁ'ed | e R e e 502
Handrails and guardrails. . .. .............. 304.12
Mainlenan o0’ - s e 304.2, 304.10 E
DEMOLITION EGRESS
Existingremedies. .. ..................... 102.4 Aisles ........... ... ..., TO22
Falluretocomply ........................ 110.3 EmMergency 8sCape. .. ... ..c.ove i 7024
General. .. ... 110 General..........ooiiii ... 7024
Order . ... 110.2 LIGNENG ... cocvnninwisevmsen min v v aseisin 0 3oain coa . 402.2
Salvagemalerials. . ....... ... ... .. ... 110.4 Lockeddoors .. - ....ccivvioansanno... TO23
DETECTORS Obstructions prohibited. . . .. ...........00 7021
ENVIOME aobim oo ohomton e e i S % e i 0 704 Stairs, porches and railings. . . ............304.10,
DETERIORATION 305.4, 305.5, 307 A1
Componentsof systems. .. .............. 306.1.1 ELECTRIC, ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT
DeANMION i o st S v e i s 202 Abatement of hazards, fire exposure ... .. .. 604.3.2
Extoniorstructurd ......c.ccocvicervesann 30411 Abatement of hazards, water exposure . .... 604.3.1
Extardorwalls o coonivn vnssauivassiiiig o 304.6 Condemnation. . .. .......civiviiinniinns 1081
DIRECT Electrical equipment ... ............... 604.3.1.1
BOrems. oy i s s B 7021 Faclitiesrequired . .............coniirans 604.1
DISPOSAL Hezards:- 0 5 Ll nim S SR e 604.3
Disposalofgarbage . ...........ociviiiu 308.3 Installation. . ........... ... ............. 605.1
Disposal of rubbish. . ..................... 308.2 Lighting fixtures. . . ... ....... ... ........ 605.3
DOOR Receptacles ...................... 604.3, 605.2
[ 559100 oo - 702.3 ResponsibiMy .. ....cov0vaiiianniinans 601.2
B i it i i i e A A S i 7032 BEOVIOB, oo ccn s G o e et 604.2
HEMIWEEE oo v b v ao sk i s s 304.15  ELEVATOR, ESCALATORS, DUMBWAITERS
Insect screens ..304.14 Condemnation. . ...............c.evnnnn 108.1
Interior surfaces . ................ Ee 305.3 ATIONAL L, v o R S D e 606.1
Lo s e S A e R 304.15, 702.3 Maintenance . . . ...................606.1, 606.2
Maintenance. .. .................304.13, 30415 EMERGENCY
Weathertight ... ...........cciiiaiuann. 304.13 Emergency escape openings . ............. 702.4
Window and doorframes . ................ 304.13 Emergency measures. . .. .................. 109
DORMITORY (ROOMING HOUSE, HOTEL, MOTEL) EmMergency Ordars. . ... .ocoavisrarsnsases 109.1
Locked doOrg ' jici 5o i st s s 702.3  ENFORCEMENT
Privacy . .......ccooiiininnnnnnanns 503.1, 503.2 Dutiesandpowers .................ccoonnn 104
DRAFT STOPPING BOODE « oot i it e 101.2
Maintenance. . . .............vinnaaas 703.3.1 EQUIPMENT
DRAIN, DRAINAGE Alternative, ... ... ..., 105.2
Basementhatchways . ................... 304.16 CombustBi air . ....cc cvaniinemis s iammae v 603.5
2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® 38

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [Rpesiiadipretyotismssiesiusmpibio A erpeistoleitsmipistiatvoeiit e

AGREEAENT, AND SUBJECT TO GI¥IL & ND CRIMIMAL FEMALTIES THEREUNDER.



INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL

INDEX

Condemnation................... 108.1.2, 108.3
Electrical installation ... .................. 605.1
Emergencyorder............cooviviunn.n, 109.1
Energy conservation devices. .............. 603.6
Instaltation . ... .......... ... ... ... ... 603.1
Interior structure. . .......... ... ... . ... .. 305.1
Placarding . . ... ........ ... ... ... 108.4, 108.5
Prohibiteduse . ......................... 108.5
Responsibility. . .................... . ... 601.2
Safetycontrols. . .......... ... ... . ..., 603.4
5 Tolo ] o7 T 101.2
Scope, mechanical and electrical ........... 601.1
Support, definition . . ............. . Ll 202
Unsafe.......... ... o, 108.1.2
Used ...t i e 105.4
EXHAUST
Clothesdryer............. .o, 403.5
Exhaustducts .......................... 304.9
Process ventilation. . . .................... 403.4
EXISTING
Remedies. .. ........................... 102.4
SCOPe. . . e 101.2
Structural members. . ............. 304.1.1, 304.4
Structures ... ... ... i e 101.3
EXTERIOR
Decorative features . . .................... 304.8
Exteriorstructure . . ............. ... ... ... 304
Exteriorwalls .. ............ .. ... ... .. ... 304.6
Painting . .......c oot 304.2, 304.6
Rodentharborage . ................ 302.5, 304.5
Sanitation. . .......... ... ... .. 304.1
SCope. ... e 3011
L - || A 304.10
Streetnumbers .......... .. i, 304.3
Unsafeconditions ..................... 304.1.1
Weathertight.................. ... ..., 30413
F
FAN
Exhaustvents . ...............c.vun. 30286
FEES, EXPENSES, COST
Closing vacant structures .. ............... 108.2
Demglition .. ................ 110.1, 110.3, 110.4
Extermination.......... 309.2, 309.3, 309.4, 309.5
General ......... .o i e 103.5
Relief from personal liability, . . ............. 103.4
FENCE
ACCESSOMY ..ot iiiiitin i 302.7
Maintenance ......... ... .. i 304.2
FIRE
Blocking Maintenance .. ................ 703.3.1
40

FIRE DEPARTMENT
Connectionaccess. . ............ 704.5.1,704.5.2
Connections. ............coiviiivninnen 704.5
FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS
Emergency impairments ................ 704.3.1
Equipment ............... 704.4,704.41,704.4.2
Inspection. . ............... 704.1,704.1.3,704.2
Installation . .............. ... ... ..... 704.1.1
Maintenance. . ............. 7041, 704.1.3, 704.2
Qutofservice.................. ... ..., 704.3
Records of maintenance ................ 704.2.1
Required systems .............. 704.1.2,704.2.2
Smokealarms .. ....... .. e e 704.6
Smoke detections systems ... .. ....... .. 704.6.4
Termination of service .. ................ 704.4.3
Testing................... 704.1, 704.1.3, 704.2
FIRE-RESISTANCE RATINGS
Ceailings .....coooi i, 703.5
Draftstopping .......cooviiiininennnn 703.3.1
Firebarriers . ......................... 703.3.3
Fireblocking .................. ... ... 703.3.1
Firepartiions......................... 703.3.3
Firewalls ................0 it 703.3.3
Maintenance ............... . ... .. ... 703.3
Opening protective. ... ................... 703.4
Shafts. .. .......... . 703.7
Smokebarriers. . ........... ... ... L. 703.3.2
Smoke partitions . ...... ... .. o, 703.3.2
Unsafe conditions. .. ..................... 703.2
FLAMMABLE LIQUID
Containers ............... ... cvuin.. 108.1.2
FLOOR, FLOORING
Area for sleeping purposes .. ............ 404.4.1
Fire-resistanceratings . . .................. 703.1
interiorsurfaces . . ................. 305.1, 305.3
Space requirements. .............. 404.4.1,404.6
FOOD PREPARATION
Cockingequipment . ..................... 403.3
Sanitary condition. . ................ 305.1,404.7
Ventilation . ........... ... . i, 403.4
FOUNDATION
Condemnation .. ...........cc..ovvnnn. 108.1.1
Foundationwalls ........................ 304.5
Unsafe conditions. .............. 304.1.1, 305.1.1
FRAME
Windowand doorframes................. 304.13
G
GAS
Energy conservation devices............... 603.6
Exhaustvents. ................ ... ....... 302.6

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright © 2017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2008 3:58:21 PM pursuant 1o License Agreement with ICC. Ne funther teproduction ot
distribution authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCNON OK DISTRIBUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYHIGHT ACT AND ‘I'HE LICENSE

AGREEMENT, AND SUBIECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



INDEX

GLAZING |
Materials, .. 2o e R dins B A3 IDENTIFICATION
fARADE Codaolfiolal = ccovss o inisns v s 104.4
Dfﬁ'lm ........................... 302 2,, 507 IHFEET\&TIQH
SUARD Condemnation. . ....................... 108.1.3
Anchorage and maintenance .............. 304.12 TN | 202
EXRMOOL WIICORS. .5 e sy 304182 nsectand rodent ......... .. 302.5,304.14, 309.1
Definition. ... ........ ..ot 202 INSECTS
Infestation . . ......... ... ... 309.1
H InsectScreens. .. ...................... 304.14
HABITABLE Pestelimination. ... ....................... 309
Definfion. ...........coiiiimiiiiiinninnn, 202 INSPECTIONS
BN s iy e w0 402 KBNTA o005 i s i e 104.2
Minimum ceiling height. ... ... .. T T TR 404.3 RIGREOF BAMY. - < oo s s b i o Foials 1043
Minimum roomwidth . .................... 4042  INSPECTCR
Required plumbing facilities ........... A T 502 Identificaion .. ............cc0vevunnn.... 1044
Residential heating facilites . . ........ 602.2,602.3 I HON oo 2 oom o g ieim e 104.2
Spacerequirements .. .................. 404.4 1 ROCONS, s i s P e i s e 104.6
NVEntlalion . o coue s mpoe e s e e 403 INTENT
HANDRAILS AND GUARDRAILS e T oy S L T 101.3
Handeails ... ver v 304.12, 305.5, 307 1 INTERIOR
Stairsandporches . ...........o000n.un ..304.10 Intarbor structong = .. oo i i 305
HARDWARE Interiorsurfaces . ....................... 053
Do hardwame: s S I Eengsg 304.15, 702.3 Meansolfegress. .. ... .coovneevniininen, 702
Openable windows . ................... 304.13.2 SaMMBIOoN .o s Sl R R 30541
HAZARDOUS (See DANGEROUS, HAZARDOUS) Unsafecondiions...................... 305.1.1
HEAT, HEATING
Energy conservation devices . .............. 6036 J
Fireplaces. . ..............covivnrnrnenns 603.1 JURISDICTION
PIOBHIN ez s s i e R Y BORL. il o oo b SO e 101.1
Mechanical equipment . .. ................. 603.1
Required capabilities ......................602 K
Residential heating. . . ... ........... 602.2, 602.3
SUPPIY. < - e 602.3 KITCHEN _
Water healing facilities . ................... 5054  Electrcal outlets required .. ............... 605.2
VT ) R S 505 ”“'mt:d“:'::’ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ;;4“:3
HEEHT Fldﬂb‘ ......................... A,
Minimum ceiling height. . ... ............... 4043 Room lighting . ...l 605.3
HOT (See HEAT, HEATING) Water heating facilities . .................. 505.4
HOTELS, ROOMING HOUSES AND DORMITORY
UNITS, MOTELS L
DEIIROR < v s oo o s i i 0 202 LANDING
Lockeddoors . ...........ooiviiiinn, 7023 Handrails andguards . .................. 304,12,
Required facilities . . . ......................502 305.5, 306.1
Toiletrooms .............. - 503 Maintenance . . . .................. 304.10, 305.4
HOUSEKEEPING UNIT LAUNDRY
Definition. . .......ooiiiiii 202 Roomlighting ............ccvveeeenn..., 605.3
Water-heating facilities .. ................. 505.4
2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® 4

Copyright © 1017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Giregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2018 3:38:2t PM pursuant 10 License Agreement with ICC. No further reproductisn or
distribution suthorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION (S A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL



INDEX

LAVATORY

e S S I N 502.3 ROOMMIEIY 71 5 5 s st s b i s e ] 404.2
Required facilities . ... .................... 502  MODIFICATION
Rooming hOUSES ... ... .ovinivneienin..s 502.2 Approval, .. ... e 105.1
Sanitary drainage system .. ................ 506 MOTEL (See HOTELS)
Waler-heating facilities .. ................. 5054 MOTOR VEHICLES
Walar SYBIBMY. ... . - o aihia s e e 505 Inoperalive . . ... ..ottt 30z.8
LEASE (SELL, RENT) Painting . . .. 302.8
Heat supplied. . . ... ..............ccvun.. 602.3
Salvage materials .. ..................... 1104 N
Transfer of ownership ... ................. 1076 NATURAL
LIEN Lighting. .. ....401.3, 402
Closing of vacant structures ............... 1082 \ontlalion .. ..\vv'sie e 401.3, 403
Damalition.<: s s s ers ey iy e 1103 yoTICES AND ORDERS
Fallure to comply . ...........coovennn 1103 AD0eal . e 111.1
LIGHT, LIGHTING Form....... - 107.2
Comman halls and Etﬂh'ql'ﬂﬁ ......... 402.2, 605.3 Method of SBIVICE. . . . oo e e e 107.3
Ganeal ., o e T e 402 AR e e o i P
Habiable fOOMS. ........................ 402.1 b G o
Kitchen. . ...o.ovvinnnniiiiininiiniin, o e A . 107.5
Laundry rooms. . ............oooiniaanas 605.3 Placarding of SHUGIINE . . ... .. vvoerennnnns 108.4
Luminaires. . ..., 605.3 Transfer of OWnership .. .................. 107.6
Other 3pﬂﬁ:ﬂ“& ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 402.3 Unauthorized Inmperng IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII 107.4
Rﬂﬁpﬂﬂs‘bl"l}‘ ........................... 401.2 "u"al:&th'lg RIS o s s s e 108.2
$3::pe ................................. ;g; : AR
BB ORI .. oo s i i o et ;
LIVING ROOM enseli e i e
ROON BIGR oo it g ot e BRE e o ST P T 404.4.1 NUISANCE
EOAD, LORTYNS | Closing of vacant Structures. . .. ............ 108.2
Elevators, escalators and dumbwaiters. ... ... 606.1
Handrails and guardrails . .......... 304.12, 305. o
LINBIORA oo 5o s st s e 304.4, 305.2
Samand i 1L d ey OBV .
e e T L AR, 104.3
OCCUPANCY (See USE)
M OPENABLE
MAINTENANCE He s o S 702.3
Bl onss o5 ST B S i 102.2 T T o S 304.13.2, 403.1
MATERIAL OPENING PROTECTIVES
ARG = e e S R R e 105.2 ClDBaE o rn s R o S R 703.8
SENADE: I e R R I R 110.4 Dooraparation :: & o se s iy 703.4.3
BB - o RN s 105.4 Hold-open devices . . ................... 703.4.2
MEANS OF EGRESS (See EGRESS) MBIBIRNGS 5 s T E S 703.4
MECHANICAL Sone o e e 703.4.1
InStallation . . .. .. ......ereeeneie 603.1 FOUlng [ i s T b e 703.6
Responsibility. ... ...\t 601.2 OPERATOR
T v 1 601.1 Dafinilion . ...ouve i ieinins i 202
Ventilation, general . ... ................... 403  ORDER (See NOTICE)
Ventilation, toilet rooms . ... ............... 4032  ORDINANCE, RULE
MINIMUM Applicability ... .. e 102
Ceiling height. .. ... .iiiiieiininnns 4043  Application forappeal. .................... 111.1

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Cepytlghs © 1007 I0C. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accewed by Gregary Cannenon Mar & 2008 1001y PM porsssel i Lo Apeetment with 100 Ma Fankay piodetiacn of
dwiribetion authanaed. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODLICTION OR DISTRISLITION 1S A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COFY RIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMEMT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRAMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER

42
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL



INDEX

OUTLET Clearance . . ... ..ovie s n i 504.2
Electrical. . ...t i 605.2 Connections . ...........civineniusnass 506.1
OWNER Contamination. . . ............. ... ..cuats 505.2
Closing of vacant structures. . .. ............ 108.2 Employee's facilities . .. . ................. 503.3
Definition. . .. ... ... i 202 Fixtures . . .. .o s 504.1
Demolition. . . ....... ... o i 110 Required facilities . . ....................... 502
Failuretocomply ............. .. ..covnn-. 110.3 Responsibility .. ..................... ... 501.2
Insectand ratcontrol .......... 302.5, 309.2, 309.4 Sanitary drainage system . .................. 506
Notice..................c.ooni.. 107.1,108.3 SCopE . ... s 501.1
Pestelimination ......................... 309.2 Stormdrainage . ... ......... ... i 507
Placardingof structure . . .................. 108.4 Supply. .. ... 505.3
Responsibility . . . ............ ... oo 301.2 Walter heating facilities . .. ................ 5054
Responsibility, firesafety .. ................ 701.2 PORCH
Responsibility, light, ventilation. . ... ......... 401.2 Handrails. ........ ..oy 304.12
Responsibility, mechanical and electrical. . .. .. 601.2 Structurallysound. . .................... 304.10
Responsibility, plumbing facilities. . .......... 501.2 PORTABLE (TEMPORARY)
Rightofentry ............ ... .. .. ... ... 104.3 Cocking equipment. . .................... 603.1
Rubbishstorage . ............ ... .. ..., 308.2.1 PRESSURE
oo o |- 20 101.2 Watersupply............ .. ... .. il 505.3
Transferof ownership. . ............. ... ... 107.6 PRIVATE, PRIVACY
Bathtuborshower. . ..................... 503.1
P Occupancy limitations. . .. .......... T 404.1
PASSAGEWAY Required plumbing facilities . ................ 502
Common hall and stairway . ... ............. 402.2 Sewagesystem. .............covia . 506.1
Interiorsurfaces . ......... ... . ol 305.3 ma:er clostet and lavatory . ................ ggg:
' . atersystem .......... i .
Pél’::e: .;c;oms. directaccess. ................ 503.1 PROPERTY, PREMISES
T e 107.5 Cleanhness. ....................... 304.1, 308.1
Placarding of StrUCUre . . . ... o.ooervnnn... 108.4 Cond‘e'mnatlon ............................ 108
Prohibited occupancy . .. .. ... .. oL 108.5 Deﬁmtl‘o'n """"""""""""""""" 202
Removal of placard. . . .. ................ 108.4.1 Demolition. . ... ............ ... 110
BOOPR . v vttt e 101.2 Emergency EEUILSE e nae0easaaaanon o g 109
VIOIBHONS « - v oo oo 106.4 Exteriorareas ............cooviivinvnien.. 302
PEST ELIMINATION Failun_'e to comply ........................ 110.3
CONAOMNAON - - v o v oo oo 108.1 Grading and drainage.................... 302.2
DENItION. . .o ov e vttt 202 Pest slimination, multiple occupancy ... 302.5, 303.4
Insect and rodent control 302.5, 304.5, 304.14, 309.1 Pest elimination, single occupancy. . ... . 302.5, 309.3
Y U 309.1 Responsibility . ... 301.2
Responsibility of owner. . . ........... 301.2,3092  SCOPB ...l 301.1
Responsibility of tenant-occupant.309.3, 309.4,309.5 ~ SOMAMAINAGE . .....vovvninncnienenn oty
PLACARD, POST Vacant structuresandland. . .............. 301.3
CIOSING -+« e e e 1082 PROTECTION
Condemnation . . .. .. v oo 108.1 B.asement vylndows ..................... 304.17
Demolition. .......... ...t 110 F[re R prererrrrmeres 704
EMErgency. NOMICe . - - - -« veneeeeeenneenn. 109.1 Signs, marquees and awnings . ............ 304.9
NOUCE 10 OWNET. . . ...\ ee' e 107.1,108.3 FUBLIC
Placarding of structure . . .................. 108.4 Cleanliness . ..............oovvnnn 304.1, 305.1
PrOIDHEd USE. . -+ + v ves e e 1085  E9MESS........iiii 702.1
REMOVAl .« - - oo oo 108.4.1 Hallway . ........ ... 502.3
PLUMBING Sewage §¥§tem ......................... 506.1
Clean and SaNItany . . . ....oovnveeeenenn.. 504.1 Toilet facilities . . .. .................. 502.5, 503
2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® 43

Copyright © 3017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Acccsscd by Gregory Cannon on Mar ¥, 4616 35811 FM purmuant to License Agreement with ICC. No further reproduction or
distribution sutherized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL



INDEX

Vacant structuresandland . ... ....._ ...... 301.3 RODENTS
Watersystem. ... ... ..................... 505 Basemenlhatchways. . .................. 304.16
PUBLIC WAY Condemnation . . ........coouviiiinnnne... 108
[BF) 1)1 RS A 202 Foundations............ccoiveiinrnnnss 304.5
Guards for basement windows. .. .......... 304.17
R Harborage . ......ocovvinrrinianrirines, J02E
Insecland rodentcontrel ... ............... 309.1
NN ERIOR ENVELOREY Y INTO BUNLOMG Pest elimination ...................... 302.5, 309
Basement hatchways. . .................. 30416  ROOF
Exteriorwalls . ........................ 304.6 Exterior structure ... 304.1
Grading and drainage .. .................. 302.2 Roofs . ......oovvviiii 304.7
ROOMS . o oo e e e e 304.7 Slorm EarE0e. oo e s R 507
Window and door frames. . . .............. 30413  ROOM
RECORD Bedroom and livingroom. . ................ 404 .4
Oficial TeCordS. .« oo e e 104.6 Cooking facilities ........................ 403.3
REPAIR Direct Bccass:: i s b s 503.2
Application of othercodes . .. .............. 102.3 Habitable:st s ar ik s i bois et il 402.1
RTINS .. 304,11 Heatingfacilities. . ...............cccvveunn. 602
211 [ ] S S 1101 Light. ....oooeni 402
EXIOTOPAUTABSE ... .o i e g st 304.1 Minimum ceiling heights. .................. 404.3
MOOBAE < oo oo oo oo e N 101.3 Minimum width. .. ............... 404.2
MATIENENES . . wicowios i s vl i 102.2 Overcrowding. ................ooeeinnn 404.5
Signs, marquees and awnings. . . ........... a04.9 Prohibited use . ........ ... .. iiiinnas 404.4.4
Stairsand porches. . ..........c.ouevnnen. 04,10 TOMPEFEIING. ... i ine s vy Smpera et s 602.5
Weather8ght . o voovviinveiviens ses s 304.13 TN o oo S et S 503
Workimanghlp: - o oncamas pas i b v s e 1 102.5 VOnHIaBon oo ase iy i 403
REPORTS ROOMING HOUSES (Sea DORMITORY)
TBE TR0 3 A AR S 105.3.2 RUBBISH
RESIDENTIAL Accumulalion ... ... oo ii i 308.1
Past eliminabion. ..« s sl saier uben s 309 DO ot R A A S e 202
Residential heating . ..................... 602.2 DISPOBRAE: s s s e SO e R 308.2
SOOPE: o e T e S L e 101.2 Garbage facilities . .. .........ocvvvvvien 308.3.1
RESPONSIBILITY Rubbish storage. ... ................... 308.21
Pestelimination.......................... 309
Firesafely ........... ... .ciiviinennn 701.2 s
Garbagedisposal. . . ... ... ... ... ... 308.3 SAFETY, SAFE
BB .. - oecs e sy e siw g o o vy a2 Fire safety requirements ....... 701, 702, 703, 704
Mechanical and electrical ................. 601.2 Safety conlrols . . .........oouvieiaanaaa, 603.4
Persons ........ ST e R L R 3011 SANITARY
Placarding of structure. . . ................. 108.4 Cloanlingss. . ... .o onerronsnnnss . 304.1, 305.1
Plumbing facilities ....................... 501.2 Disposalofgarbage. . .........couuueenn.. 308.3
Rubbish storage. ...............ooo0iun, 308.21 Disposalofrubbish. . . ................000s 308.2
DI o e R A TR A 101.2, 301.1 Exterior property areas. . ... ............... 3021
REVOKE, REMOVE Exterior Structure .. ... .................. 304.1
Demolltlon . & e e A AT e b Foodpreparation . ...........vvunnrnnnn. 404.7
Existing remedies ........ .. bR el 102.4 Furnished by occupant. . .................. 302.1
Removalofplacard . . .. ................ 108.4.1 Grease interceplors . ... ............00nuns 506.3
Rubbishremoval . ..................... 308.21 Interiorsurfaces . ........oovvv i, 305.3
RIGHT OF ENTRY Plumbing fixtures .. ........ i e ... . 5041
Duties and powers of code official ... ........ 104.3 Required plumbing facilities. . .. ............. 502
IREPOCHONIE, -wu ot i it i s w5 104.2 B o e e e R S A L e 101.2

2018 INTERMATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTEMANCE CODE®
Copyright © 2317 10 ALL RPGHTS RESELVED. Accessed by Grogony Canton om Mar 5, 2008 3351 P8 puriuaal o e Agreement whh BOC Mo Rurther sipeadiaction e
dimlirtion sabadieed ANY UNAUTHORIZED REFRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTEON 154 VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREESUNT, ARD SUBILCT TO CIVIL AND CRIMIMAL PEMHALTIES THEREUMDER

44
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL




INDEX

SCREENS SPACE
Insectscreens ...............cco0iiuenn 304.14 General, light. ..........ccooo i 402
SECURITY General, ventilation. . ............. .. ... ... 403
Basementhatchways .................. 304.18.3 Occupancy limitations. .. .........coivivnnss 404
BUHARE, . oae s s e g p1-s el 304.18 Privacy ..... S R A 404.1
70T 304.18.1 SCOPE . ....oviin 401.1
Vacant structures and land. ................ 301.3  STACK
T T RS 304.18.2 SMOKe. ... e 304.11
SELF-CLOSING SCREEN DOORS STAIRS
NEmCt SOTBBING: - o o e A 304.14 Common hals and mal’& "ﬂht ---------- 402.2
SEPARATION Exitfacilities . ...... ... .. ....c0iiiiinas 305.4
Fire-resistance ratings .. ................... 703 Exterior property areas. .................. 3023
BN s A A A R ST 4041  Handrails. ... 304.12, 305.5
Separalion b omte oG s 404.1 Lighing .........covvirinnrenieiinnnn. 605.3
SERVICE Stairsandporches .. ................... 304.10
BICHICHE. « ..o 1.0 o 8 S A AR R B 6042 STANDARD
MEHNO ... \eeeeeieeeeee e 1078 B0 s et 0
Notices and orders . ... ............ forasdia  STUBRWORKORDER
Service on mpant IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII 108.3 AU‘,hUﬂtf B2 T T N i 1121
SEWER Emergenches. ... ....o..-vvaraasrssrianns 1123
ORI L s o R O A R 506.1 FalNNe 10 COMPIY.....cvvm et inins mw g e 1124
R BIT RSB o ettt ot e 506.2 ABBLIAIICE . .o St ¥ i S, TSNS 112.2
SHOWER rpec B w047
o BT T R ;
e i g Garbage storage facilities . . .. ............. 308.3
Rooming houses. . .......ooeuviniinnanans 502.2 s
Rubbish storage facilities . ............... 308.2.1
Water-heating facilities . . .. .......... ... ... 505.4 SENMAION « o v e 308.1
sg;tﬂ sysbami s e 505 STRUCTURE
Fire door signs 703.4.1 Accessory structures. . ... ... 302.7
L TR b hgof\rac:alﬂa’trumures ............... 108.2
Signs, marquees and &wnings . ............. 205 Definition. . T Y R R B e e
Unauthorizedlampering . . . . .......coven e 107.4 Emergency measures. . ............. L 109
SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING General, condemnation. . . .. ................ 110
Extermimation .. ... ...t iuinninnnnen aon9 Gﬂ'ml.ﬂtﬁ'iﬂr.q+.p e S g LA
SINK General, interior structure. .. ... ........... 305.1
Kitchensink ...............cco0iaiaannn, 5021 Placarding of Sructure . .. ................ 108.4
Sewage system . ... 506 D e A A R 301.1
Water supply. .. ...ooooeiiiiiii 505.3 Structural members. . ............... 304.4, 305.2
SIZE Vacant structuresandland. .. ............. am.a
Efficiencyunil . ..........ccoivvivniiinnna 4046 guppLY
Habitable room, fight. . ...............oouen. 402 Combushionalr = o s re P e v 603.5
Habitable room, ventilation. . ................ 403 Public water system .............. s 505.1
OO G & i P s e R e 404 4.1 Water-heating facilities . . ... .............. 505.4
SMOKE ALARMS Wabtsr BUPPIE: o s v 505.3
Sroupr Y s T s R R 704.6.1.1 Waler SyStem .........coiieeriinerinnanes 505
Groups R-2, R-3, R4 and -1............T04.6,1.2 SURFACE
Installation near bathrooms . ............ T04.6.1.4 Exteriorsurfacas. .. ......covinnnnnn 304.2, 304.6
Installation near cooking appliances. ... ... 704.6.1.3 Intarior SUAfBCES . . ... .vveeen i 305.3
Interconnection . ..........c.ooeiaiiin. 704.6.2 SWIMMING
POWEFSOUNCE . ..o vevnernoeiinrennns T704.6.3 EncloSUMg . ........ccciivenavinisorsnss 303.2
BN 300005 i, S PR TS g o e 704.7 Safely COVEIS .. .o v vvneineinannan s 303.2
Whererequired. ... ... .........ociuannn 704.6.1 Swimmingpools ... ..o 3031
2018 INTERMATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® 45

Cappright © 1017 1CC. ALL ANGHTS RESERVED, &ccmued by Greogory Caanon on Mar 5, 3008 300631 B purinal 1y Licesie A presment with 10T, Mo Feriher ropraduction of
disirbution sathorised. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REFRODUCTION CR DISTRISUTION 15 A WIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AMD SUBJECT TO CIWIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL



INDEX

T

TEMPERATURE
Nonresidential structures . . . ............... 602.4
Residential buildings . .................... 602.2
Water-heating facilites . .................. 505.4

TENANT
SCOPR. . i e 101.2

TEST, TESTING
Agency. .. ...t 105.3.1
Methods. . ........................... 105.3.1
Reports .............. ... ... .. ...... 105.3.2
Required ............. ... iiiiivrnnn. 105.3

TOXIC
Process ventilation. . . .................... 403.4

TRASH
Rubbishandgarbage ..................... 308

)

UNOBSTRUCTED
Accesstopublicway..................... 7021
General,egress. . ........ ..ot 702.1

UNSAFE STRUCTURES AND EQUIPMENT
Abatementmethods. ..................... 108.6
Dangerous structure or premises . ........ 108.1.5
Equipment........... ... .. ... ... ..... 108.1.2
Existingremedies ....................... 102.4
General, condemnation..............., 108, 110
General, demolition . . ..................... 110
Noticesandorders. . ................. 107, 108.3
Record......... ... i, 108.7
Structures .. ........... ... . il 108.1.1

USE
Application of othercodes . . .. ............. 102.3
General,demolition . ...................... 110

UTILITIES
Authority todisconnect . ................ 108.2.1

Vv

VACANT
Abatementmethods. . .................... 108.6
Authority to disconnect service utilities .. ... 108.2.1
Closing of vacant structures ............... 108.2
Emergencymeasure . ..................... 109
Method of service ................. 107.3, 108.3
Notice to owner or to

personresponsible. ................ 107, 108.3
Placarding of structure. . . ................. 108.4
Record................ ... 108.7
Vacant structuresandland ................ 301.3

VAPOR
Exhaustvents .......................... 302.6

46
INTERNATIONAL COBE COUNCIL

VEHICLES
Ingperative. . .................... ... .... 302.8
Painting .......... ... . .. i it 302.8
VENT
Plumbinghazard . ....................... 504.3
Exhaustvents. .......................... 3026
Flue ... e 603.2
VENTILATION
Clothesdryerexhaust .................... 403.5
Combustionair.......................... 603.5
Definition .. ....... ... .o i, 202
General, ventilation .. ..................... 403
Habitablerooms. . ....................... 403.1
Process ventilation. . ..................... 403.4
Recirculation . .................... 403.2,403.4
Toilletrooms . ..., 403.2
VERMIN
Condemnation . .......................... 108
Insect and rodentcontrol . ............. 302.5, 309
VERTICAL SHAFTS
Requiredenclosure . ..................... 703.7
VIOLATION
Condemnation . .......................... 108
Enforcement. . ........... .. ... .. ... ..., 106.2
General ......... ... ... ... . e 106
Notice....................coint. 107, 108.3
Separateoffenses .. ..................... 106.4
Ptacarding of structure . .. ... .............. 108.4
Prosecution .. .......................... 106.3
Strict liability offense .. ............ ... 106.3, 202
Transferofownership .. .................. 107.6
W
WALK
Sidewalks................ ... .. it 302.3
WALL
Accessory structures .. .................., 302.7
Exteriorsurfaces .................. 304.2, 304.6
Exteriorwalls ........................... 304.6
Foundationwalls ........................ 304.5
General, fire-resistancerating .. ............ 7031
Interiorsurfaces . ........................ 305.3
Oulletsrequired . ........................ 605.2
Temperature measurement . . .............. 602.5
WASTE
Disposalofgarbage...................... 308.3
Disposalofrubbish. .. .................... 308.2
Garbage storage facilities ............... 308.3.1
WATER
Basementhatchways. . .................. 304.16
Connections............................ 506.1

2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®

Copyright © 2017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERYED. Accessed by Gregory Cannon on Mar 9, 2018 3:38:21 PM putiuant 16 Liécnse Agreement with ICC. No Rerther reproduction ar
distribution suthorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIDUTION IS A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



INDEX

Contaminalion; 50 oo seisie sl O s s o 505.2
General,sewsge .........................508
General, storm drainage. . .. ................ 507

General, watersystem ... .................. 505
P BB 0 3 0 e 2 St 505.4
L e S S .| 502.3
KHEEN BINK o v v i v e s 502.1
Monpotable waterreuse . ........... 505.5, 505.5.1
Reguired faciliies . . .........cocviiiiavaras 502
Roominghouses. .. ...................... 502.2
BUPEIY =50 i S A R R 505.3
o A e P e e 505
Tolat rooms. o0 e S Ry 503
Water-heating facilities . . . ................. 505.4
WEATHER, CLIMATE
Heating facilities . .. ....................... 602
WEEDS
MNoxious weads . . . ......oviereniunnnnnnns 302.4
WIDTH
Minimumrmomwidth ..................... 404.2
WINDOW
Emergency escape. ... c..cvveveirnnranan T702.4
GBI . oo e i R R e 304,131
Guards for basement windows. . ........... 304.17
Habitablerooms . .........oooiniiiivnnuas 402.1
Inseclecreans ..............coviinvnnnn 304.14
Intewior BUAGE .. ... iii v irerarn i er e s 305.3
LI g s A e R R S R 402
Openablewindows . . ..............0... 304.13.2
Tollet raome = = s e R i sa0A 2
santiation: . ; visi ik s naR s Has ol S 403

Woeathertight .......................... 30413
Window and door frames .. ...............30413

WORKMANSHIP
L Lo e P 1025
2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE® 47

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL [Pttt st smriigrsstoisivats sorat

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECY TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE®
Copyright ©2017 ICC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. Accessed by Gecgory Cannon on Mar 9, 2018 3:38:21 PM pussuant 1o License Agreement with IOC. No Runber reproduction o
distriburion authorized. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION OR DISTRIBUTION IS A YIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LICENSE
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER




INTERNATIOMAL

CODE
ARE COUNCIL Peaple Helping Peopte Build a Safer World

BENEFITS THAT WORK FOR YOU

No matter where you are in your building career, put the
benefits of ICC Membership to work for you!

Membership in ICC connects you to exclusive |-Codes resources, continuing education opportunities
and Members-Only benefits that include:

Free code opinions from |-Codes experts

Free |-Code book(s) or download to new Members*

Discounts on 1-Code resources, training and certification renewal
Posting resumes and job search openings through the ICC Career Center
Mentoring programs and valuable networking opportunities at ICC events

Free benefits — Corporate and Governmentai Members: Your staff can receive free ICC
benefits too’

Savings of up to 25% on code books and training materials and more

Put the benefits of ICC Membership to work for you and your career. Visit www.iccsafe.org/mem3
to join now or to renew your Membership. Or call 1-888-1CC-SAFE (422-7233), ext. 33804 to learn

more today!

i cC. . Accessed by G Ca 3 58: License Agreement with ICC. No furths roducti
T RIEIRIE G v e ahomves eamomueon O TRIBsTON A IOLATION GF THE FEDEARL CORYRIGHT ACT AND THE IS
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TG-CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



R ICC Plan Review Services...
ARRN For the most detailed and precise
R Plan Rewe ws in the mdustry

Ever wonder why code officials, architects and other building
professionals value and accept ICC plan reviews?
o Experience - Qur |-Code experts have expertise in ALL the International Codes® (I-Codes®)

¢ Detailed Report - identifies code deficiencies found
e Complimentary re-review of reissued plans’

Plus, |ICC Plan Review Services has over 200 years of combined experience with applications of the
codes, 6 registered design professionals on staff and 120 International Code Council Certifications,
50 you can be assured that ICC will deliver the most detailed and precise plan reviews in the industry.

"Applies to “Complete Plan Review Services”. Contact ICC Plan Review staff for details.

To get your plan review started now or to learn about disciplines reviewed, plan
review options and more, visit www.iccsafe.org/plrd or call 888-422-7233, x5577.

E-13058

TR STRIVIYIHIE o U OZED REPROUCTION OR ISTRIBSTION S A HOLATION OF ToE EDERRL COPRRIGHT ACT AND THE LicEnSS

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.




IHTERMATIONAL

CODE
COUNCIL People Helping Peaple Build a Sater World

Looking for the missing piece?
Solve the puzzle and )

advance your career
with ICC University

ICC University has been built from the
ground up with you in mind.

Take advantage of tools to help you better track - '

‘x‘ﬂ-\.

and manage your career growth and professional
development, including automatic CEU tracking and

simplified search options to find code training. Plan for your o :
future and manage your professional development from one, ‘? 4
easy-to-use location. r / -

ICC University provides you with:

e Simplified access to over 300 training options
» Automatic CEU tracking to keep you on track for recertification

¢ Robust curriculums that identify supporting courses, publications and exam study materials
to assist you in preparing for certification exams and achieving your next professional
milestone

* The ability to purchase all courses, related publications and exam preparation materials - as
well as register for certification exams — from a single screen

s And more!

www.iccsafe.org/ExplorelCCU

L1435

B . Accessed by G < Mar 9, 521 PM License Aj with ICC. Ne furth roductio,
TN AWITETRIE cvcem soiricet 400 nAUTHORZED REPROBUCTHON OR GUSTRIBUTION S A VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL COPYRIGHT ACT AND THE LCENSE.
AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER.



R, I"-TERI'U\TEOF‘ML

CODE
ARRN couiic

in the 2018 |- Codes

L COLOR! HUMDREDS OF PHOTOS AND ILLUSTRATIONS!

4 #7024518

| SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE g 2 " [
#7101518 i

2018 EDITION
#7202518

CRDER YOUR HELPFUL GUIDES TODAY!
1-800-786-4452 | www.iccsafe.org/hooks

HIRE ICC TO TEACH

Want your group to learn the Significant Changes to the |-Codes from an ICC expert instructon?
Schedule a seminar today!

email: ICCTraining@iccsalte.org | phone: 1-888-422-7233 ext. 33818

ETTATEIENTVNIMTR on ierecs v hnuiOnizem REmeoDUCTIOR Ok roTRIBUTION 5 A HOLATION OF T FEDERAL ConTRGHT ACT AND THE RHGE

AGREEMENT, AND SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES THEREUNDER









Town of Wellton

28634 Oakland Avenue ® P.O. Box 67 ® Wellton, Arizona 85356 ® {(928) 785-3348 @ Fax {928) 785-4374 ® wellton@town.wellton.az.us

Staff Report
To: Board of Adjustment
From: Sandra Jones
Deputy Town Clerk
Date: August 1, 2023
Re: Variance Case V-24-002

1. Requested Action

Variance Case #V-24-002: Scott and Twanette Stauth request a variance of Planning & Zoning
Code Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D (1): Minimum Interior Yard Setback: 6 on his lot located at
11771 Castle Dome Street (Parcel #: 709-59-312). The request is for a S-foot variance of the
interior yard setback for construction of 2 storage sheds and a 2-foot variance of the rear yard
setback for one of the storage sheds.

2. Summary
The location is 11771 Castle Dome Street.

3. Fiscal impact
N/A

4. Recommended Motion
Variance Case V-24-002 will be on the September 5, 2023 Regular meeting Agenda.

Prepared by: W w

sanfira Jones, Deputy Town Clerk

Approved for /2 ) Z é M

Agenda by:

Richard Marsh, Town Manager



Town of Wellton

Department of Planning and Zoning
PO Box 67 ® 28634 Oakland Avenue

Wellton, Arizona 85356

{928) 785-3348 @ (928) 785-4374 Fax

APPLICATION
0O REZONING VARIANCE O CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
0O MAJOR AMENDMENT O MINOR AMENDMENT O LOT SPUIT/LOTTIE
0O OTHER:

V-2H-002

Case Number:

Public Hearing Date:

8/1/2022

—t |“) Property Information

Address/Parcel %
T e Porge ST elty

S 1l i1 ]

Areaé/acres/sq ftitob f aﬁected

Proposed Zoning o/j\l mber of Lot Splits/Ties:
A

Current Use:

//naf‘fcmw /u Hone

Proposed Use:
: (?) A Stocagé )/w’/ﬂé

Reqmt ?Ack red L{cfh/w’)

Valuat% of Work:

0,000

Purpose of the above requested actions?

See atfached 6@;@//@%{;77“«/ -hed]

Property Owner(s) / Agent(s) Information

ame(s):

Pméé *ﬁs} wapelte Siagit

Agent's Name(s):

5 gstle Dontest

Mailing Address:

f“ %m Az F535(,

City, State, & Zip:

V5D 52— 52 O

Phone:

E-mail:

E-mail:
Fax:

—

Fax:

1 affirm that | am the owner of record of the subject property. if an ngent is
named, | hereby authorize thot person to act on my behalf in matters relating to
this application. Property Owner's signature is mandatory on all appliations.

t hereby declare that ol of the above information contained in this application is
true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | acknowledge that
errors in this opplcation may delay review.

Date

I??{)wre

Agent's Signature Date

Date

Agent's Signature Date

P@p y Owner' E SISW




VARIANCE APPLICATION SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Property owner: Scott and Twanette Stauth
11771 Castle Dome Street, Wellton, AZ

PURPOSE OF THE REQUESTED VARIANCE:

To place two small storage sheds on the subject property. Both sheds will be placed
on pads 9'x 5' and be 7 feet high.

Shed #1 request a variance of Zoning Code Section 8-5.4.1-D(1) in sideyard
(interior)setback from 6’ to 1' on south side of property

Shed #2 request a variance of Zoning Code Section 8-5.4.1-D(1) from sideyard
(interior)setback from 6' to 1' and from rearyard setback from 3' to 1°'.

REASONS FOR GRANTING THE VARIANCE:

1. The strict application of the Zoning Code deprives the property owner of
privileges enjoyed by other property in the vicinity and under identical zoning
classification.

2. The variance will not constitute a special privilege inconsistent with the
limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which this property is
located.

3. The variance will not authorize a use or activity which is not otherwise
expressly authorized by the applicable use classification.

4. Granting the variance will not be materially detrimental to the publicv health,
safety, or welfare, or injurious to the property or improvements in the vicinity and
zone in which the property is located.



zo_h<o_>(2xo mno.:OZm_._c.s_m_x._.
oD 26maouo| VHOZIEV walsAg uonjewloju) diydeadoan

JO ‘W3 ‘Sleandde aq Jou Aew 1o Aew dews siyl uo seadde .

1BL} S13A| BlEQ "A|UO 32UDIRS 1oy 51 pue ays Buiddew Fh ., LA >|_|z :OU <§ D>

18Ui9U| ue woy Jndino Jeys pajesauad sasn e s dew siy)

SINAYIS ADOTONHIIL NOILYWHOINI




11771 CASTLE DOME STREET 08/01/2023




08/01/2023

b
Ll
LJ
o
T
(Tal
L
=
@]
O
Ll
=
—
)
<T
(W)
—
™~
I~
—
~—




PUBLIC NOTICE

The Town of Wellton Board of Adjustment will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, August 1, 2023,
at 6:00PM in the Town Council Chambers, Wellton Town Hall, 28634 Oakland Avenue, Wellton
Arizona, to consider the following item(s):

1. Variance Case #V-24-002: Scott and Twanette Stauth request a variance of Planning &
Zoning Code Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D (1): Minimum Interior Yard Setback: 6 on his
lot located at 11771 Castle Dome Street (Parcel #: 709-59-312). The request is for a 5 foot
variance of the interior yard setback for construction of 2 storage sheds and a 2 foot
variance of the rear yard setback for one of the storage sheds.

2. Variance Case #V-24-003: Jose A Montoya requests a variance of Planning & Zoning Code
Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D (1): Minimum Interior Yard Setback: 6 feet on his lot located
at 28412 Telegraph Avenue (Parcel #: 709-58-332). The request is for a 6 foot variance of
the interior yard setback for construction of a carport.






Town of Wellton

28634 Oakland Avenue ® P.O. Box 67 ® Wellton, Arizona 85356 @ (928) 785-33438 @ Fax (928) 785-4374 @ wellton@town.wellton.az.us

Staff Report
To: Board of Adjustment
From: Sandra Jones
Deputy Town Clerk
Date: August 1, 2023
Re: Variance Case V-24-003

1. Requested Action

Variance Case #V-24-003: lose A Montoya requests a variance of Planning & Zoning Code
Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D {1): Minimum Interior Yard Setback: 6 feet on his lot located at
28412 Telegraph Avenue (Parcel #: 709-58-332). The request is for a 6-foot variance of the
interior yard setback for construction of a carport.

2. Summary
The location is 28412 Telegraph Avenue.

3. Fiscal impact
N/A

4. Recommended Motion
Variance Case V-24-002 will be on the September 5, 2023 Regular meeting Agenda.

Prepared by: WM w

Sanfira Jones, Deputy Town Clerk

Approved for /E ' Z é M

Agenda by:

Richard Marsh, Town Manager



Town of Wellton

Department of Planning and Zoning
PO Box 67 ® 28634 Oakland Avenue

Wellton, Arizona 85356

{028) 785-3348 ® (928) 785-4374 Fax

APPLICATION
O REZONING VARIANCE 0O CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
0O MAJOR AMENDMENT 0O MINOR AMENDMENT O LOT SPLIT/LOT TIE
O OTHER:

Case Number: V’ aq‘ - 00 >

Public Hearing Date:

S/ /2022

Property Information

Address/Parcel No.:

3841 Tolegrah By J04 5833

Current Zori or\ﬁ] f_p

Area (acres/sq ft) to be affected:

Proposed Zoning or Number of Lot Splits/Ties:

bt v iance on

Current Use: Proposed
25 Aen i s Voo Aeprt o ara
Request: _%_([— Valuation of Work:

Purpose of the above requested actions?

ingt2 0| A,&VV\ODF'T-

Property Owner(s) / Agent(s) Information

Property Owner's Name(s):

Acg.a A Hm fox o

Agent’'s Name(s):

Mailing Address:

2847 Toegaarh [N

Mailing Address:

City, State, & Zip:
wollon A7 85256

City, State, & Zip:

Phone: Phone:
10.584-98 29

E-mail: E-mail:
AosoHontoya397560 Q’Mo‘“\ .Cam

Fax: Fax:

1 affirm that | am the owner of record of the subject property. If an agent is
nomed, | hereby authorize thot person to act on my behalf in matters relating to
this application. Property Owner's signature is mandatory on oll appliations.

| hereby declare that alf of the above information contained in this application is
true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | acknowledge that
errors in this applcation may delay review.

o5& A\ Maloyd 7//7./23

Property Owner's Signature Datd Agent's Signature Date
Property Owner's Signature Date Agent's Signature Date




O1LY5 O
NowLYSUAYN 04 0350 38 Wmﬂwu w.m.ﬁ‘u”ﬂ oy wiaysAg uoewIojU] 21yde 8039

30 “JUaANY ‘31eIN2DE 3q J0ou Aew Jo Aew dew siyl uc seadde
1841 S1aAe] BI1BQ "AUO 30UBIAJA) JO) St pue 3us Suiddew h [ - & >|_|Z DOU <S_ :>
19W3u| ue woy ndino anels paresauad sasn e 51 dews syl

S3DIAHIS ADOTONHIIL NOILVWYOLNI

511IHLOO 4
F Y

LUNS N




28412 TELEGRAPH AVENUE 08/01/2023




Town of Weliton
28634 QOakland Ave.
P.O. Box 67
Wellton, AZ 85356

May 26, 2023

To Whom It May Concern:

We Gary and Connie Bennett reside at 28402 Telegraph Ave. in Wellton, Az. It has come to our
attention that permits will be needed by our neighbors Jose and Nora Montoya living at 28412
Telegraph Ave to install a shaded car port on their property.

This letter is to inform the Town of Wellton that we Gary and Connie Bennett, who are the

neighbors west of 28412 Telegraph Ave, are perfectly accepting of the instaliment of the car
port on Jose and Nora Montoya’s property.

Sincerely

Gary and Connie Bennett

/504’7 Benait

28402 Telegraph Ave.
Wellton, AZ
970-946-4564

cc Jose and Nora Montoya



PUBLIC NOTICE

The Town of Wellton Board of Adjustment will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, August 1, 2023,
at 6:00PM in the Town Council Chambers, Wellton Town Hall, 28634 Oakland Avenue, Wellton
Arizona, to consider the following item(s):

1. Variance Case #V-24-002: Scott and Twanette Stauth request a variance of Planning &
Zoning Code Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D (1): Minimum Interior Yard Setback: 6 on his
lot located at 11771 Castie Dome Street {Parcel #: 709-59-312). The request is for a 5 foot
variance of the interior yard setback for construction of 2 storage sheds and a 2 foot
variance of the rear yard setback for one of the storage sheds.

2 Variance Case #V-24-003: Jose A Montoya requests a variance of Planning & Zoning Code
Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D (1): Minimum Interior Yard Setback: 6 feet on his lot located
at 28412 Telegraph Avenue (Parcel #: 709-58-332). The request is for a 6 foot variance of
the interior yard setback for construction of a carport.






Town of Wellton

28634 Oakland Avenue @ P.O. Box 67 ® Wellton, Arizona 85356 ® (928) 785-3348 @ Fax {328) 785-4374 @ wellton@town wellton.az.us

Staff Report
To: Board of Adjustment
From: Sandra Jones
Deputy Town Clerk
Date: August 1, 2023
Re: Variance Case V-24-001

1. Requested Action
Variance Case #V-24-001: Quick Fix Pools and Spas LLC, agent for Jim and Tamra Wilcox, requests
a variance of Planning & Zoning Code Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D (1): Minimum Interior Yard
Setback: 6 feet on their lot located at 28731 Canal Avenue {(Parcel #: 709-52-139) for the
installation of a pool.

2. Summary
The location is 28731 Canal Avenue. The customer would like to maintain a width of 6 feet for
their pool.

3. Fiscal Impact
N/A

4. Recommended Motion
It is recommended the Town Council approve Variance Case V-24-001.

Prepared by: WM w

sanfira Jones, Deputy Town Clerk

Approved for /E ) t é M

Agenda by:

Richard Marsh, Town Manager



Town of Wellton RECEIVED
Department of Planning and Zoning
PO Box 67 @ 28634 Oakdand Avenue JUN 12 2023
Wallton, Arizona 85356
{928) 785-3348 @ (928) 785-4374 Fax TOWN OF WE LLTON
APPLICATION
O REZONING xI VARIANCE 0 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
0O MAJOR AMENDMENT 0O MINOR AMENDMENT 0O LOT SPUT/LOT Tie
] OTHER:
Case Number: \] _2'-‘"‘ oo| Public Hearing Date: 7/ l l/ }0} 3
Property Information
Address/Parcel No.: {Current Zoning:
28731 Canal Ave 8535€ ‘l Dct 694301 Residential
Area (acres/sq ft) to be affected: Proposed Zoning or Number of Lot Splits/Ties:
40 No change
Current Use: ; Proposed Use:
Set back from property line Set back variance to allow for more width on pool

RequesOur request is to bring the closer to property |[Valuation of Wark:
Line. We would like to build 5ft off the property lin $80,000.00

Purpose of the above requested actions?

To have more width for pool water

Property Owner(s) / Agent(s) information

Property Owner's Name{s): . Agent's Name(s):

Shanna Helgath i' o~ Quick Fix Pools And Spas LLC
Mailing Address: Mailing Address:

28731 Canal Avenue 13835 east 52nd drive
City, State, & Zip: City, State, & Zip:

Waellton arizona 85356 Yuma Arizona 85367
Phone: Phone:

+12533509718 9289200838

E-mail: €-mailk
ShannaHetgath@hotmail.com Office@quickfixpools.com
Fax: Fax:

i affirm that | am the awner of record of the subject property. If an ageat is 1 hereby deciare that aif of the above information contoined in this opplication Is
named, | hereby autharize that person to oct on my behalf In motters relating to true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | acinowiedge that
this application. Property Owner's signature is mandatory on alf appliations. errors in this applcation may delgy review

&-/[-22

Date Agent's Signature

Date
3 @ 6/11/23

Agent's Sighature Date




‘l.m
= - |
4
£
— ¥ < 1z
- O
P » H wdap yg Z&wv tme
eH.£ > iU ¥s'E 3 D w
r Of £
, il
v

b MG
Y7 ) 290 1A

9¢cs9 2 eIt
angy (vuroD | CLAS



.FBzm&:m
NOLLYDIAVY Y04 0360 30 _m. o S_Eu.._ﬁ WISAS uonewsoyu| d1ydeisoa9

10 JUALIND ‘FlRINDIE 3 J0u Aewl Jo Aew dew sy uo Jeadde S

1BYY sudde) eeq "Ajuo 20uUalAJAL 10} S| pue s Fuwddew -4 _. A >|_|z Dou <§ D>

19WIa3Y| ue woy ndino e palesauad Jasn e sp dew s




PUBLIC NOTICE

The Town of Wellton Board of Adjustment will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, July 11, 2023,
at 6:00PM in the Town Council Chambers, Wellton Town Hall, 28634 Oakiand Avenue, Wellton
Arizona, to consider the following item(s):

1. Variance Case #V-23-003: Quick Fix Pools and Spas LLC, agent for Jim and Tamra Wilcox,
requests a variance of Planning & Zoning Code Chapter 8, Section 8-5.4.1-D {1): Minimum
Interior Yard Setback: 6 feet on their lot located at 28731 Canal Avenue (Parcel #: 709-52-
139).






Town of Wellton

28634 Qakland Avenue ® P.O, Box 67 @ Wellton, Arizona 85356 @ (928) 785-3348 @ fax (928) 785-4374

Staff Report
To: Mayor & Council
From: Richard Marsh
Town Manager
Date: August 1, 2023
Re: Professional Services Agreement (PSA) between the Town of Wellton and Osuch

Consulting Services, PLLC for Finance Director

1. Requested Action
Approve the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) between the Town of Wellton and Osuch
Consulting Services, PLLC for Finance Director.

2. Summary

The former Finance Director $79,400 (inclusive of benefits). There was also the additional
expense of $35,000 for the CPAs to prepare the financial statements for the annual Fiscal Year
Audit. The contractor’s fee would be a flat $78,000. The contractor is a CPA and will complete all
necessary financial statements and fulfill duties of the Finance Director.

3. Fiscal Impact
Total savings to the Town would be $36,000 annually. The contractor has a higher degree of
expertise and experience for the position.

4. Recommended Motion
It is recommended the Mayor and Council approve the Professional Services Agreement (PSA)
between the Town of Wellton and Osuch Consulting Services, PLLC for Finance Director.

Prepared and
Approved for '/2 : z 2 /‘z K

Agenda by:

Richard Marsh, Town Manager



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
THE TOWN OF WELLTON
AND
OSUCH CONSULTING SERVICES, PLL.C

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as
of September 1, 2023, between the Town of Wellton, an Arizona municipal corporation (the
“Town”), and Osuch Consulting Services, PLLC, an Arizona professional limited liability
company (the “Consultant™).

RECITALS

A. The Town requires the services of a Finance Director, including but not limited to
monthly bank reconciliations and other key reconciliations, review and approval of processed
payroll, banking transactions (including ACH approvals, bank transfers, Xpress pay
reconciliations, and transfers to the Town checking account), certain grant reimbursement
preparations, review of accounts payable, budget preparation, and other duties necessary by the
Town or Town Manager (the “Services”).

B. The Consultant possesses the skill and experience required to provide the Services.

C. After a competitive selection proves, the Town has selected the Consultant to
provide the Services pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing introduction and recitals, which
are incorporated herein by reference, the following mutual covenants and conditions, and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the Town and the Consultant hereby agree as follows:

1. Term of Agreement.

1.1 Initial Term. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date first set forth
above and shall remain in full force and effect until August 31, 2024 (the *Initial Term”), unless
terminated as otherwise provided in this Agreement.

1.2 Renewal Terms. After the expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement
may be renewed for up to two successive one-year terms {each, a “Renewal Term”) if (A) it is
deemed in the best interests of the Town, subject to availability and appropriation of funds for
renewal in each subsequent year, (B) at least 30 days prior to the end of the then-current term of
this Agreement, the Consultant requests, in writing, to extend this Agreement for an additional
one-year term, and (C) the Town approves the additional one-year term in writing (including any
price adjustments), as evidenced by the Town Manager’s signature thereon, which approval may
be withheld by the Town for any reason. The Consultant’s failure to seek a renewal of this
Agreement shall cause this Agreement to terminate at the end of the then-current term of this

4892606.2



Agreement; provided, however, that the Town mays, at its discretion and with the agreement of the
Consultant, elect to waive this requirement and renew this Agreement. The Initial Term and any
Renewal Term(s) are collectively referred to herein as the “Term.” Upon renewal, the terms and
conditions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

1.3 Non-Default. By requesting extension for a Renewal Term as set forth
above, or by consenting to a Renewal Term in any manner, Consultant shall be deemed to
affirmatively assert that (A) the Town is not currently in default, nor has been in default at any
time prior to the Renewal Term, under any of the terms or conditions of the Agreement, and (B)
any and all claims, known and unknown, relating to the Agreement and existing on or before the
commencement date of the Renewal Term are forever waived.

2. Scope of Work. The Consultant shall (i) provide the Services, (ii) be responsible
for all means, methods, techniques, sequences, and proceedings associated with the Services, and
(iii) be responsible for the acts and omissions of its employees, agents and other persons
performing any of the Services under a contract with the Consultant.

3. Compensation. The Town shall pay the Consultant for the Services at a rate of
$6,500 per month, for a maximum amount not to exceed $78,000 in a single Term or Renewal
Term.

4. Payments. The Town shall pay the Consultant monthly for the Services, based
upon work performed and completed to date and upon submission and approval of invoices. All
invoices shall document and itemize all work completed to date. Each invoice statement shall
include a record of time expended and work performed in sufficient detail to justify payment.

5. Safety Plan. The Consultant shall provide the Services in accordance with a safety
plan that is compliant with Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”), American
National Standards Institute, and National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health standards.
If, in the Consultant’s sole determination, the Services to be provided do not require a safety plan,
the Consultant shall notify the Town, in writing, describing the reasons a safety plan is
unnecessary. The Town reserves the right to request a safety plan following such notification.

6. Documents. All documents, including any intellectual property rights thereto,
prepared and submitted to the Town pursuant to this Agreement shall be the property of the Town.
The Town may use such documents for other purposes without further compensation to the
Consultant; however, any reuse without written verification or adaptation by the Consultant for
the specific purpose intended will be at the Town’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure
to the Consultant.

7. Consultant Personnel. The Consultant shall provide experienced personnel,
capable of and devoted to the successful performance of the Services under this Agreement. The
Consultant agrees to assign specific individuals to key positions. If deemed qualified, the
Consultant is encouraged to hire Town residents to fill vacant positions at all levels. The
Consultant agrees that, upon commencement of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, key personnel will not be removed or replaced without prior written notice to the
Town. If key personnel are not available to perform the Services for a continuous period exceeding

4892606.2



30 calendar days, or are expected to devote substantially less effort to the Services than initially
anticipated, the Consultant shall immediately notify the Town of same and shall, subject to the
concurrence of the Town, replace such personnel with personnel possessing substantially equal
ability and qualifications.

8. Inspection; Acceptance. All work shall be subject to inspection and acceptance by
the Town at reasonable times during the Consultant’s performance. The Consultant shall provide
and maintain a self-inspection system that is acceptable to the Town.

9. Licenses. The Consultant shall maintain in current status all federal, state, and local
licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Consultant. The
Town has no obligation to provide the Consultant, its employees, or subcontractors any business
registrations or licenses required to perform the specific services set forth in this Agreement.

10.  Materials; Equipment. The Consultant shall provide, pay for, and insure under the
requisite laws and regulations all labor, materials, equipment, tools, transportation, and other
facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Services.

11. Performance Warranty. In addition to any specific obligations set forth in Section
2, the Consultant warrants that the Services rendered will conform to the requirements of this
Agreement and shall be carried out with the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the same
profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality.

12.  Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant shall
indemnify and hold harmless the Town and each council member, officer, employee, or agent
thereof (the Town and any such person being herein called an “Indemnified Party”), for, from and
against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including, but not
limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs and the costs of appellate proceedings) to which
any such Indemnified Party may become subject, under any theory of liability whatsoever
(“Claims”) to the extent that such Claims (or actions in respect thereof) are caused by the negligent
acts, recklessness or intentional misconduct of the Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, or
any tier of subcontractor in connection with the Consultant’s work or services in the performance
of this Agreement. The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth below will
in no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this Section.

13. Insurance.
13.1 General.

A. Insurer Qualifications.  Without limiting any obligations or
liabilities of the Consultant, the Consultant shall purchase and maintain, at its own expense,
hereinafter stipulated minimum insurance with insurance companies authorized to do
business in the State of Arizona pursuant to ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 20-206, as amended, with
an AM Best, Inc. rating of A- or above with policies and forms satisfactory to the Town.
Failure to maintain insurance as specified herein may result in termination of this
Agreement at the Town’s option.

4892606.2



4892606.2

B. No Representation of Coverage Adequacy. By requiring insurance
herein, or by approving or expressing satisfaction with insurance policies and forms
pursuant to the provisions of this agreement, the Town does not represent that coverage
and limits will be adequate to protect the Consultant. The Town reserves the right to review
any and all of the insurance policies and/or endorsements cited in this Agreement, but has
no obligation to do so. Failure to demand such evidence of full compliance with the
insurance requirements set forth in this Agreement or failure to identify any insurance
deficiency shall not relieve Consultant from, nor be construed or deemed a waiver of, its
obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the performance of this
Agreement.

C. Additional Insured. All insurance coverage, except Workers’
Compensation insurance and Professional Liability insurance, if applicable, shall name, to
the fullest extent permitted by law for claims arising out of the performance of this
Agreement, the Town, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, and
employees as Additional Named Insured as specified under the respective coverage
sections of this Agreement.

D. Coverage Term. All insurance required herein shall be maintained
in full force and effect until all work or services required to be performed under the terms
of this Agreement are satisfactorily performed, completed, and formally accepted by the
Town, unless specified otherwise in this Agreement.

E. Primary Insurance. The Consultant’s insurance shall be primary
insurance with respect to performance of this Agreement and in the protection of the Town
as an Additional Insured.

F. Claims Made. In the event any insurance policies required by this
Agreement are written on a “claims made” basis, coverage shall extend, either by keeping
coverage in force or purchasing an extended reporting option, for three years past
completion and acceptance of the services. Such continuing coverage shall be evidenced
by submission of annual Certificates of Insurance and necessary endorsements citing
applicable coverage is in force and contains the provisions as required herein for the three-
year period.

G. Waiver. All policies, except for Professional Liability, including
Workers” Compensation insurance, shall contain a waiver of rights of recovery
(subrogation) against the Town, its agents, representatives, officials, officers, and
employees for any claims arising out of the work or services of the Consultant. The
Consultant shall arrange to have such subrogation waivers incorporated into each policy
via formal written endorsement thereto.

H. Policy Deductibles and/or Self-Insured Retentions. The policies set
forth in these requirements may provide coverage that contains deductibles or self-insured

retention amounts. Such deductibles or self-insured retention shall not be applicable with
respect to the policy limits provided to the Town. The Consultant shall be solely
responsible for any such deductible or self-insured retention amount.



4892606.2

L. Use of Subcontractors. If any work under this Agreement is
subcontracted in any way, the Consultant shall execute written agreements with its
subcontractors containing the indemnification provisions set forth in this Section and
insurance requirements set forth herein protecting the Town and the Consultant. The
Consultant shall be responsible for executing any agreements with its subcontractors and
obtaining certificates of insurance verifying the insurance requirements.

I Evidence of Insurance. Prior to commencing any work or services
under this Agreement, the Consultant will provide the Town with suitable evidence of
insurance in the form of certificates of insurance and a copy of the declaration page(s) of
the insurance policies as required by this Agreement, issued by the Consultant’s insurance
insurer(s) as evidence that policies are placed with acceptable insurers as specified herein
and provide the required coverages, conditions and limits of coverage specified in this
Agreement and that such coverage and provisions are in full force and effect. Confidential
information such as the policy premium may be redacted from the declaration page(s) of
each insurance policy, provided that such redactions do not alter any of the information
required by this Agreement. The Town shall reasonably rely upon the certificates of
insurance and declaration page(s) of the insurance policies as evidence of coverage but
such acceptance and reliance shall not waive or alter in any way the insurance requirements
or obligations of this Agreement. If any of the policies required by this Agreement expire
during the life of this Agreement, it shall be the Consultant’s responsibility to forward
renewal certificates and declaration page(s) to the Town 30 days prior to the expiration
date. All certificates of insurance and declarations required by this Agreement shall be
identified by referencing this Agreement. A $25.00 administrative fee shall be assessed
for all certificates or declarations received without the appropriate reference to this
Agreement. Additionally, certificates of insurance and declaration page(s) of the insurance
policies submitted without referencing this Agreement will be subject to rejection and may
be returned or discarded. Certificates of insurance and declaration page(s) shall
specifically include the following provisions:

(1) The Town, its agents, representatives, officers, directors,
officials, and employees are Additional Insureds as follows:

(a) Commercial General Liability — Under Insurance
Services Office, Inc., (“ISO”) Form CG 20 10 04 13 or equivalent.

(b) Auto Liability — Under ISO Form CA 20 48 or
equivalent.

(c) Excess Liability — Follow Form to underlying
insurance.

(2) The Consultant’s insurance shall be primary insurance with
respect to performance of this Agreement.



4892606.2

(3) All policies, except for Professional Liability, including
Workers” Compensation, waive rights of recovery (subrogation) against Town, its
agents, representatives, officers, officials, and employees for any claims arising out
of work or services performed by Consultant under this Agreement.

ACORD certificate of insurance form 25 (2014/01) is preferred. If ACORD certificate of
insurance form 25 (2001/08) is used, the phrases in the cancellation provision “endeavor
to” and “but failure to mail such notice shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind
upon the company, its agents or representatives” shall be deleted. Certificate forms other
than ACORD form shall have similar restrictive language deleted.

K. Endorsements. The Consultant shall provide the Town with the
necessary endorsements to ensure Town is provided the insurance coverage set forth in this

Section 13.

13.2 Required Insurance Coverage.

A. Commercial General Liability. The Consultant shall maintain
“occurrence” form Commercial General Liability insurance with an unimpaired limit of
not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence, $2,000,000 Products and Completed
Operations Annual Aggregate, and a $2,000,000 General Aggregate Limit. The policy
shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, products-
completed operations, personal injury, and advertising injury. Coverage under the policy
will be at least as broad as ISO policy form CG 00 010 93 or equivalent thereof, including
but not limited to, separation of insured’s clause. To the fullest extent allowed by law, for
claims arising out of the performance of this Agreement, the Town, its agents,
representatives, officers, officials, and employees shall be cited as an Additional Insured
under ISO, Commercial General Liability Additional Insured Endorsement form CG 20 10
04 13, or equivalent, which shall read “Who is an Insured (Section II) is amended to include
as an insured the person or organization shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to
liability arising out of “your work™ for that insured by or for you.” If any Excess insurance
is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this subsection, such Excess insurance shall be
“follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance.

B. Vehicle Liability. The Consultant shall maintain Business
Automobile Liability insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 each occurrence on the
Consultant’s owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles assigned to or used in the performance
of the Consultant’s work or services under this Agreement. Coverage will be at least as
broad as ISO coverage code “1” “any auto” policy form CA 00 01 12 93 or equivalent
thereof. To the fullest extent allowed by law, for claims arising out of the performance of
this Agreement, the Town, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, and
employees shall be cited as an Additional Insured under ISO Business Auto policy
Designated Insured Endorsement form CA 20 48 or equivalent. If any Excess insurance is
utilized to fulfill the requirements of this subsection, such Excess insurance shall be
“follow form™ equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance.

6



C. Professional Liability. If this Agreement is the subject of any
professional services or work, or if the Consultant engages in any professional services or
work in any way related to performing the work under this Agreement, the Consultant shall
maintain Professional Liability insurance covering negligent errors and omissions arising
out of the Services performed by the Consultant, or anyone employed by the Consultant,
or anyone for whose negligent acts, mistakes, errors, and omissions the Consultant is
legally liable, with an unimpaired liability insurance limit of $2,000,000 each claim and
$2,000,000 annual aggregate.

D. Workers” Compensation Insurance. If the Consultant employs
anyone who is required by law to be covered by workers’ compensation insurance, the
Consultant shall maintain Workers’ Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed
by federal and state statutes having jurisdiction over the Consultant’s employees engaged
in the performance of work or services under this Agreement and shall also maintain
Employers Liability Insurance of not less than $500,000 for each accident, $500,000
disease for each employee and $1,000,000 disease policy limit.

13.3 Cancellation and Expiration Notice. The Consultant shall provide at least
30 days prior written notice to the Town before insurance required herein expires, is canceled, or
is materially changed.

14.  Termination; Cancellation. The Town may, by written notice to the Consultant as
set forth in this Section, terminate this Agreement in whole or in part.

14.1 For Town’s Convenience. This Agreement is for the convenience of the
Town and, as such, may be terminated without cause after receipt by the Consultant of written
notice by the Town. Upon termination for convenience, the Consultant shall be paid for all
undisputed services performed to the termination date.

14.2  For Cause. If either party fails to perform any obligation pursuant to this
Agreement and such party fails to cure its nonperformance within 30 days after notice of
nonperformance is given by the non-defaulting party, such party will be in default. In the event of
such default, the non-defaulting party may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause and
will have all remedies that are available to it at law or in equity including, without limitation, the
remedy of specific performance. If the nature of the defaulting party’s nonperformance is such
that it cannot reasonably be cured within 30 days, then the defaulting party will have such
additional periods of time as may be reasonably necessary under the circumstances, provided the
defaulting party immediately (A) provides written notice to the non-defaulting party and (B)
commences to cure its nonperformance and thereafter diligently continues to completion the cure
of its nonperformance. In no event shall any such cure period exceed 90 days. In the event of
such termination for cause, payment shall be made by the Town to the Consultant for the
undisputed portion of its fee due as of the termination date.

14.3  Due to Work Stoppage. This Agreement may be terminated by the Town
upon 30 days’ written notice to the Consultant in the event that the Services are permanently
abandoned. If the Consultant abandons the Services without the consent of the Town, the
Consultant shall be liable for all actual, incidental, and consequential damages arising from or

4892606.2



related to said abandonment, including, but not limited to: (A) the difference between the cost of
a replacement consultant to complete the Services and the contract price for the Consultant under
this Agreement; and (B) any additional charges, costs, fees or expenses for labor, materials, or
professional services incurred by the Town as a result of delays caused by abandonment of the
Services by the Consultant. The Town shall use its best efforts to replace the Consultant within a
reasonable time.

14.4  Conflict of Interest. This Agreement is subject to the provisions of ARIZ.
REV. STAT. § 38-511. The Town may cancel this Agreement without penalty or further obligations
by the Town or any of its departments or agencies if any person significantly involved in initiating,
negotiating, securing, drafting, or creating this Agreement on behalf of the Town or any of ils
departments or agencies is, at any time while this Agreement or any extension of this Agreement
is in effect, an employee of any other party to this Agreement in any capacity or a consultant to
any other party of this Agreement with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.

14.5 Gratuities. The Town may, by written notice to the Consultant, cancel this
Agreement if it is found by the Town that gratuities, in the form of economic opportunity, future
employment, entertainment, gifts, or otherwise, were offered or given by the Consultant or any
agent or representative of the Consultant to any officer, agent or employee of the Town for the
purpose of securing this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is canceled by the Town pursuant
to this provision, the Town shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover
and withhold from the Consultant an amount equal to 150% of the gratuity.

14.6  Agreement Subject to Appropriation. The Town is obligated only to pay its
obligations set forth in this Agreement as may lawfully be made from funds appropriated and
budgeted for that purpose during the Town’s then-current fiscal year. The Town’s obligations
under this Agreement are current expenses subject to the “budget law” and the unfettered
legislative discretion of the Town concerning budgeted purposes and appropriation of funds.
Should the Town elect not to appropriate and budget funds to pay its Agreement obligations, this
Agreement shall be deemed terminated at the end of the then-current fiscal year term for which
such funds were appropriated and budgeted for such purpose and the Town shall be relieved of
any subsequent obligation under this Agreement. The parties agree that the Town has no obligation
or duty of good faith to budget or appropriate the payment of the Town’s obligations set forth in
this Agreement in any budget in any fiscal year other than the fiscal year in which this Agreement
is executed and delivered. The Town shall be the sole judge and authority in determining the
availability of funds for its obligations under this Agreement. The Town shall keep the Consultant
informed as to the availability of funds for this Agreement. The obligation of the Town to make
any payment pursuant to this Agreement is not a general obligation or indebtedness of the Town.
The Consultant hereby waives any and all rights to bring any claim against the Town from or
relating in any way to the Town’s termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section.

14.7  Forced Labor of Ethnic Uyghurs. To the extent applicable under ARIZ. REV.
STAT. § 35-394, the Consultant warrants and certifies that it does not currently, and agrees that it
will not for the duration of this Agreement use the forced labor, any goods or services produced
by the forced labor, or any contractors, subcontractors, or suppliers that use the forced labor or any
goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of
China. If the Consultant becomes aware that it is not in compliance with this paragraph, the

4892606.2



Consultant shall notify the Town of the noncompliance within five business days of becoming
aware of it. If the Consultant fails to provide a written certification that it has remedied the
noncompliance within 180 days after that, this Agreement shall terminate unless the termination
date of this Agreement occurs before the end of the remedy, in which case this Agreement
terminates on the contract termination date

14.8  Obligations Upon Receipt of Termination Notice. Upon receipt of a notice
of termination as set forth above, the Consultant shall (A) immediately discontinue all Services

affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (B) deliver to the Town copies of all data,
reports, calculations, drawings, specifications, and estimates entirely or partially completed,
together with all unused materials supplied by the Town, related to the Services including any
completed divisible part of the Services which can be deemed to stand alone (the completed
divisible parts of the Services will be determined by both parties at the time of termination). Such
termination shall not relieve the Consultant of liability for errors and omissions. Any use of
incomplete documents for the Services or for any other project without the specific written
authorization by the Consultant will be without liability or legal exposure to the Consultant. The
Consultant shall appraise the work it has completed and submit the appraisal to the Town for
evaluation.

15. Suspension of Work.

[5.1 Order to Suspend. The Town may, for its convenience, order the
Consultant, in writing, to suspend all or any part of the Services for such period of time as it may
determine to be appropriate.

15.2  Adjustment to Contract Sum. If the performance of all or any part of the
Services is, for any unreasonable period of time, suspended or delayed by an act of the Town in
the administration of this Agreement, or by its failure to act within the time specified in this
Agreement (or if no time is specified, within a reasonable time), an adjustment shall be made for
any increase in cost of performance of this Agreement necessarily caused by such unreasonable
suspension or modified in writing accordingly. However, no adjustment shall be made under this
clause for any suspension or delay (A) to the extent that performance was suspended or delayed
for any other cause, including the fault or negligence of the Consultant, or (B) for which a change
order is executed.

16. Miscellaneous.

16.1 Independent Contractor. It is clearly understood that each party will act in
its individual capacity and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venturer, or associate of the
other. An employee or agent of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employee or
agent of the other for any purpose whatsoever. The Consultant acknowledges and agrees that the
Services provided under this Agreement are being provided as an independent contractor, not as
an employee or agent of the Town. The Consultant, its employees, and subcontractors are not
entitled to workers’ compensation benefits from the Town. The Town does not have the authority
to supervise or control the actual work of the Consultant, its employees, or subcontractors. The
Consultant, and not the Town, shall determine the time of its performance of the services provided
under this Agreement so long as the Consultant meets the requirements of its agreed Scope of

4892606.2



Work as set forth in Section 2. The Consultant is neither prohibited from entering into other
contracts nor prohibited from practicing its profession elsewhere. The Town and the Consultant
do not intend to nor will they combine business operations under this Agreement.

16.2  Applicable Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of
the State of Arizona, and suit pertaining to this Agreement may be brought only in courts in Yuma
County, Arizona.

16.3 Laws and Regulations. The Consultant shall keep fully informed and shall
at all times during the performance of its duties under this Agreement ensure that it and any person
for whom the Consultant is responsible abides by, and remains in compliance with, all rules,
regulations, ordinances, statutes, or laws affecting the Services, including, but not limited to, the
following: (A) existing and future Town and County ordinances and regulations, (B) existing and
future State and Federal laws, and (C) existing and future OSHA standards.

164 Amendments. This Agreement may be modified only by a written
amendment signed by persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Town and
the Consultant,

16.5 Provisions Required by Law. Each and every provision of law and any
clause required by 1aw to be in this Agreement will be read and enforced as though it were included
herein and, if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly
inserted, then upon the application of either party, this Agreement will promptly be physically
amended to make such insertion or correction.

16.6  Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable to the extent
that any provision or application held to be invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction shall not
affect any other provision or application of this Agreement that may remain in effect without the
invalid provision or application.

16,7 Entire Agreement; Interpretation; Parol Evidence. This Agreement
represents the entire agreement of the parties with respect to its subject matter, and all previous
agreements, whether oral or written, entered into prior to this Agreement are hereby revoked and
superseded by this Agreement. No representations, warranties, inducements, or oral agreements
have been made by any of the partics except as expressly set forth herein, or in any other
contemporaneous written agreement executed for the purposes of carrying out the provisions of
this Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to its plain meaning,
and no presumption shall be deemed to apply in favor of, or against the party drafting this
Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that each has had the opportunity to seek and
utilize legal counsel in the drafting of, review of, and entry into this Agreement.

16.8  Assignment; Delegation. No right or interest in this Agreement shall be
assigned or delegated by the Consultant without prior, written permission of the Town, signed by
the Town Manager. Any attempted assignment or delegation by the Consultant in violation of this
provision shall be a breach of this Agreement by the Consultant.

4892606.2
10



16.9  Subcontracts. No subcontract shall be entered into by the Consultant with
any other party to furnish any of the material or services specified herein without the prior written
approval of the Town. The Consultant is responsible for performance under this Agreement
whether or not subcontractors are used. Failure to pay subcontractors in a timely manner pursuant
to any subcontract shall be a material breach of this Agreement by the Consultant.

16.10 Rights and Remedies. No provision in this Agreement shall be construed,
expressly or by implication, as waiver by the Town of any existing or future right and/or remedy
available by law in the event of any claim of default or breach of this Agreement. The failure of
the Town to insist upon the strict performance of any term or condition of this Agreement or to
exercise or delay the exercise of any right or remedy provided in this Agreement, or by law, or the
Town’s acceptance of and payment for services, shall not release the Consultant from any
responsibilities or obligations imposed by this Agreement or by law, and shall not be deemed a
waiver of any right of the Town to insist upon the strict performance of this Agreement.

16.11 Attorneys’ Fees. In the event either party brings any action for any relief,
declaratory or otherwise, arising out of this Agreement or on account of any breach or default
hereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to receive from the other party reasonable attorneys’
fees and reasonable costs and expenses, determined by the court sitting without a jury, which shall
be deemed to have accrued on the commencement of such action and shall be enforced whether or
not such action is prosecuted through judgment.

16.12 Liens. All materials or services shall be free of all liens and, if the Town
requests, a formal release of all liens shall be delivered to the Town.

16.13 Offset.

A Offset for Damages. In addition to all other remedies at law or
equity, the Town may offset from any money due to the Consultant any amounts the
Consultant owes to the Town for damages that have been reduced to a judgment resulting
from breach or deficiencies in performance or breach of any obligation under this
Agreement.

B. Offset for Delinquent Fees or Taxes. The Town may offset from
any money due to the Consultant any amounts the Consultant owes to the Town for
delinquent fees, transaction privilege use taxes, and property taxes, including any interest
or penalties.

16.14 Notices and Requests. Any notice or other communication required or
permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been
duly given if (A) delivered to the party at the address set forth below, (B) deposited in the U.S.
Mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, to the address set forth below or (C) given to
a recognized and reputable overnight delivery service, to the address set forth below:

If to the Town: Town of Wellton
28634 Oakland Avenue
Wellton, Arizona 85356

4892606.2
11



Attn: Richard Marsh, Town Manager

With copy to: GUST ROSENFELD P.L.C.
One East Washington Street, Suite 1600
Phoenix, Arizona 85004-2553
Attn: Andrew J. McGuire

If to Consultant:

Attn: Dennis Osuch

or at such other address, and to the attention of such other person or officer, as any party may
designate in writing by notice duly given pursuant to this subsection. Notices shall be deemed
received (A) when delivered to the party, (B) three business days after being placed in the U.S,
Mail, properly addressed, with sufficient postage, or (C) the following business day after being
given to a recognized overnight delivery service, with the person giving the notice paying all
required charges and instructing the delivery service to deliver on the following business day. If
a copy of a notice is also given to a party’s counsel or other recipient, the provisions above
governing the date on which a notice is deemed to have been received by a party shall mean and
refer to the date on which the party, and not its counsel or other recipient to which a copy of the
notice may be sent, is deemed to have received the notice.

16.15 Confidentiality of Records. The Consultant shall establish and maintain
procedures and controls that are acceptable to the Town for the purpose of ensuring that
information contained in its records or obtained from the Town or from others in carrying out its
obligations under this Agreement shall not be used or disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or
employees, except as required to perform the Consultant’s duties under this Agreement. Persons
requesting such information should be referred to the Town. The Consultant also agrees that any
information pertaining to individual persons shall not be divulged other than to employees or
officers of the Consultant as needed for the performance of duties under this Agreement.

16.16 Information Technology.

A Limited Access. If necessary for the fulfillment of this Agreement,
the Town may provide the Consultant with non-exclusive, limited access to the Town’s
information technology infrastructure. The Consultant understands and agrees to abide by
all Town policies, standards, regulations, and restrictions regarding access and usage of the
Town’s information and communication technology resources. The Consultant shall
enforce all such policies, standards, regulations, and restrictions with all the Consultant’s
employees, agents, or any tier of subcontractor granted access in the performance of this
Agreement and shall be granted and authorized only such access as may be necessary for
the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of this Agreement.

B. Permitted Access. The Consultant’s employees, agents, and
subcontractors must receive prior, written approval from the Town before being granted
access to the Town’s information and communication technology resources and data. The

4892606 2
12



Town, in its sole discretion, shall determine accessibility and limitations thereto. The
Consultant agrees that the requirements of this Section shall be incorporated into all
subcontractor/subconsultant agreements entered into by the Consultant. 1t is further agreed
that a violation of this Section shall be deemed to cause irreparable harm that justifies
injunctive relief in court. Notwithstanding the provisions in Section 14, a violation of this
Section may result in immediate termination of this Agreement without notice.

C. Data Confidentiality. All Town data and technical information,
regardless of form, including originals, images, and reproductions, prepared by, obtained
by, or transmitted to the Consultant in connection with this Agreement, are confidential,
proprietary information owned by the Town. Except as specifically provided in this
Agreement, the Consultant shall not, without the prior, written consent of the Town
Manager or authorized designee, (A) disclose data generated in the performance of the
services to any third party, or (B) use Town data and information.

D. Data Security. Personal identifying information, financial account
information, or restricted Town information, whether in electronic format or hard copy,
must be secured and protected at all times to avoid unauthorized access. At a minimum,
the Consultant must encrypt and/or password-protect electronic files. This includes data
saved to laptop computers, computerized devices, or removable storage devices. When
Town information, regardless of its format, is no longer required by the Consultant to
execute the work contracted by the Town, the information must be redacted or destroyed
through appropriate and secure methods to ensure the information cannot be viewed,
accessed, or reconstructed.

E. Compromised Security. In the event that data collected or obtained
by the Consultant in connection with this Agreement is believed to have been
compromised, the Consultant shall immediately notify the Town Manager, or authorized
Town designee. The Consultant agrees to reimburse the Town for any costs incurred by
the Town to investigate potential breaches of this data by the Consultant and, where
applicable, the cost of notifying and/or assisting individuals who may be impacted by the
breach.

F. Disengagement. In the event this Agreement is terminated by either
party, the Consultant agrees to confer back to the Town all of its data, in usable and
normalized format, within 30 days of notice of termination. There shall be no charge for
the return of Town data to the Town.

G. Survival. The obligations of the Consultant under this Section 16.15
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

16.17 Records and Audit Rights. To ensure that the Consultant and its

subcontractors are complying with the warranty under subsection 16.18, the Consultant’s and its
subcontractor’s books, records, correspondence, accounting procedures and practices, and any
other supporting evidence relating to this Agreement, including the papers of any of the
Consultant’s and its subcontractors’ employees who perform any work or services pursuant to this
Agreement (all of the foregoing hereinafter referred to as “Records™), shall be open to inspection

13



and subject to audit and/or reproduction during normal working hours by the Town, to the extent
necessary to adequately permit (A) evaluation and verification of any invoices, payments or claims
based on the Consultant’s and its subcontractors’ actual costs (including direct and indirect costs
and overhead allocations) incurred, or units expended directly in the performance of work under
this Agreement and (B) evaluation of the Consultant’s and its subcontractors’ compliance with the
Arizona employer sanctions laws referenced in subsection 16.18. To the extent necessary for the
Town to audit Records as set forth in this subsection, the Consultant and its subcontractors hereby
waive any rights to keep such Records confidential. For the purpose of evaluating or verifying
such actual or claimed costs or units expended, the Town shall have access to said Records, even
if located at its subcontractors’ facilities, from the effective date of this Agreement for the duration
of the work and until three years after the date of final payment by the Town to the Consultant
pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant and its subcontractors shall provide the Town with
adequate and appropriate workspace so that the Town can conduct audits in compliance with the
provisions of this subsection. The Town shall give the Consultant or its subcontractors reasonable
advance notice of intended audits. The Consultant shall require its subcontractors to comply with
the provisions of this subsection by insertion of the requirements hereof in any subcontract
pursuant to this Agreement.

16.18 E-Verity Requirements. To the extent applicable under ARIZ. REV. STAT. §
41-4401, the Consultant and its subcontractors warrant compliance with all federal immigration
laws and regulations that relate to their employees and their compliance with the E-Verify
requirements under ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 23-214(A). The Consultant’s or its subcontractor’s failure
to comply with such warranty shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and may result
in the termination of this Agreement by the Town.

16.19 Israel. To the extent ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 35-393 through § 35-393.03 are
applicable, the parties hereby certify that they are not currently engaged in, and agree for the
duration of this Agreement to not engage in, a “boycott” of goods or services from Israel, as that
term is defined in ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 35-393.

16.20 Conflicting Terms. In the event of any inconsistency, conflict or ambiguity
among the terms of this Agreement, any amendments, the Scope of Work, any Town-approved
Purchase Order, or the Fee Proposal, the documents shall govern in the order listed herein.

16.21 Time is of the Essence. The timely completion of the Services is of critical
importance to the economic circumstances of the Town.

16.22 Meaning of Terms. References made in the singular shall include the plural
and the masculine shall include the feminine or the neuter.

16.23 Non-Exclusive Contract. This Agreement is entered into with the
understanding and agreement that it is for the sole convenience of the Town. The Town reserves
the right to obtain like goods and services from another source when necessary.

Signatures on following page.

4892606.2
14



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date
and year first set forth above.

“Town” “Consultant”
TOWN OF WELLTON, OSUCH CONSULTING SERVICES,
an Arizona municipal corporation PLLC, an Arizona professional limited

liability company

Richard March, Town Manager Dennis Osuch, Owner

ATTEST:

Sandra Jones, Deputy Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Andrew J. McGuire, Town Attorney
Gust Rosenfeld, PLC

4892606.2
15



